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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present
the annual report of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group recorded an audited consolidated revenue and loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$417.31 million and HK$353.16 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing
an increase of 164.73% and a decrease of 29.48% respectively
with compared to last year.

In 2016, initial success has been achieved in the Group’s strategic
transformation. Benefiting from significant breakthroughs in
the intelligent car parking and automotive device business, the
overall consolidated revenue increased by HK$259.68 million
as compared with that of 2015, which contributed external
revenue of HK$210.55 million and accounted for 50.45% of the
Group’s total revenue. As performance of the above business
surpassed the shipbuilding business for the first time, it became
the Group’s main source of revenue. Since the acquisition of
intelligent car parking business at the end of 2015, the Group
has acquired and established wholly-owned companies, joint
ventures and cooperated with other partners such as large state-
owned enterprises and domestic listed companies to make use of
their resources and advantages. Therefore, satisfactory progress
has been made in the manufacturing and sales of intelligent
car-parking equipment and automotive electronic equipment,
investment in intelligent car parks and internet operation of car
parks, etc. The shipbuilding business of the Group was still
influenced by the economic downturn. Although the revenue of this
segment during the year managed to keep flat with last year, the
Group has identified risks of default on the shipowners’ part and
has been negotiating with the existing shipowners for solutions.
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Looking into 2017, we will keep implementing our business
transformation strategies and further expand our business into
intelligent car parking and automotive device business. We will
continue to shift our R&D advantages and spare manufacturing
capacity of the shipbuilding business towards the R&D and
manufacturing of car-parking equipment, and extend the industrial
chain into offering car charge management systems with barrier
gates, new energy charging and other auxiliary services, so
as to provide the domestic car parking market with integrated
solutions which include a complete value chain from equipment
manufacturing and upgrading to investment operations, financial
services and vehicle owners value-added services, etc.

As for the shipbuilding business, the Group has entered into
a substantial acquisition agreement to acquire a steelwork
manufacturing company which has synergistic effect with the
Company, introducing an excellent and experienced management
and operation team to improve the quality and production
efficiency of the Company’s existing shipbuilding business.
Meanwhile, the Group established a joint venture in Nantong,
Jiangsu Province, with a large state-owned enterprise and Xiamen
Xiangyu Group last year, to leverage on the strengths of respective
parties in engaging in special ship manufacturing and investment
business in Nantong. The Group expected that the cooperation can
facilitate the transfer of shipbuilding capacity, further control costs
and open up new markets so as to get the overall shipbuilding
business out of difficulties as soon as possible.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to
our shareholders, investors and partners for their strong support.
I would also like to express my gratitude to our Directors and all
Group employees for their diligence and valuable contributions.

Yours faithfully,
LI Ming

Chairman

30 March 2017
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Management Discussion And Analysis
&é}g Djuﬂ:ﬂ &ﬁ*ﬁ

OVERVIEW

China Ocean Industry Group Limited is engaged in the intelligent
car-parking and automotive electronics business, shipbuilding
business, trading business, and financial services business.

In face of the continued sluggish global shipbuilding market,
the Group sought for strategic transformation from three ways:
transfer of manufacturing capacity, activation, adjustment and
optimization of stock resources, and value-addition of new-type
services. In 2015, the Group developed into the intelligent car-
parking equipment manufacturing and automotive electronics
business through acquisition, thus successfully shifting the mature
shipbuilding capacity to the research & development of car-parking
equipment; and the car parks industry has become the exact new
hot spot of domestic market demands. Meanwhile, relying on the
manufacturing of car-parking equipment and automotive electronic
equipment, the Group extended the industrial chain downward
to develop the business of investment and operation of intelligent
car parks, and provide domestic car parks market with the
integrated solution containing a full value chain from equipment
manufacturing, upgrading & transformation, investment &
operation, financial services, and car-owner value-added services.

In 2016, the Group'’s strategic transformation has shown positive
results. The intelligent car-parking and automotive electronics
business achieved significant breakthrough with the revenue from
this business exceeding that of shipbuilding for the first time,
making it become the primary source of revenue of the Group.
The manufacturing and selling of intelligent car-parking equipment
and automotive electronics have achieved the expected result,
meanwhile we have made positive progress in investment in
intelligent car parks and internet operation of car parks through
cooperation with large state-owned enterprises and domestic listed
companies.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Management Discussion And Analysis

While exploring new business, the Group also actively adjusted
and reorganized the shipbuilding business, shifted toward the steel
bridge structures and special equipment utilizing the existing spare
capacity in shipbuilding, and transferred the shipbuilding capacity
and ship-owner resources to the costal region such as Nantong
in Jiangsu Province through cooperation with other advantageous
enterprises. Meanwhile, we also endeavored to develop the logistics
industry along the Yangtze River in an effort to expand new
profitability by integrating the resources of Jiangxi Shipbuilding like
the riverbanks, wharfs and lands along the Yangtze River.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$417.31 million (2015: HK$157.64 million),
representing an increase of approximately 164.72% as compared
to 2015. This increase was mainly due to the contribution of
the revenue of intelligent car-parking and automotive electronics
business of HK$210.55 million (2015: HK$11.01 million). The
shipbuilding business recorded external revenue of HK$154.22
million (2015: HK$143.19 million), basically maintaining at the
same level as compared with the last year. During the year of
2016, the trading business recorded external revenue of HK$51.12
million (2015: Nil). During the year of 2016, the financial services
business recorded external revenue of HK$1.42 million (2015:
HK$3.44 million), a slight decrease compared to the last year.
During the year under review, the Group recorded gross loss
of HK$30.48 million (2015: gross loss of HK$157.86 million),
substantially decreased by 80.69% as compared to 2015. The
significant decrease in gross loss was due to the contribution of
intelligent cark-parking and automotive electronics business.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
&é}g Djuﬂ:ﬂ &ﬁ*ﬁ

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s selling
and distribution expenses sharply increased to HK$299.92 million
(2015: HK$88.92 million), mainly due to the additional provision
of HK$94.77 million (2015: Nil) under the effect of shipbuilding
business, as well as the intangible assets amortization and
goodwill impairment of HK$104.32 million (2015: HK$3.3 million)
generated by the intelligent car-parking and automotive electronics
business. In 2016, the Group's finance cost decreased significantly
by 32.46% to HK$136.32 million (2015: HK$201.85 million),
mainly due to the great effort in adjusting financing methods and
negotiation with subscribers of convertible bonds and creditors to
convert substantially all convertible bonds and debts into shares by
the Group in 2015.

In conclusion, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$353.16 million (2015: loss of HK$500.80
million) during the year ended 31 December 2016, decreased by
approximately 29.48% as compared to the last year.

SHIPBUILDING BUSINESS

Affected by the financial crisis, the Group had 10 ships which
were construction and 18 ships which were under design during
the year ended 31 December 2016. Among which seven ships
had reached the term of abandonment, the Group has therefore
adopted measures to negotiate with existing ship-owners but no
formal agreement has yet been reached. The Group has continued
to cut overcapacity and speed up structure upgrading so as to
help the shipbuilding business out of difficulties through various
means including setting up joint venture with large state-owned
enterprises, shifting shipbuilding capacity to other locations.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of the
shipbuilding segment amounted to HK$154.22 million (in 2015:
HK$143.19 million),
compared with the last year and the gross loss was HK$321.28

representing an increase of 7.70% as

million (in 2015: HK$350.65 million), representing a reduction of
8.38% as compared with the last year.

TRADING BUSINESS

The trading business recorded insignificant losses in 2016 (2015:
Nil).
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Management Discussion And Analysis

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

During the year under review, the financial services business
mainly provided financial support to the Group’s shipbuilding and
intelligent car parking business through financing. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the external sales of financial
services segment contributed revenue of HK$1.42 million (in 2015:
HK$3.44 million) and the financial services segment recorded
loss of HK$14.55 million (in 2015: profit of HK$3.11 million). In
addition, the Group's shared profits from Zhejiang Ocean Leasing
Company Limited in which the Group holds 20% stock rights
increased by 58.02% to HK$13.89 million (in 2015: HK$8.79
million).

INTELLIGENT CAR PARKING AND
AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRONICS BUSINESS

During the period under review, the Group's intelligent car-
parking and automotive electronics business made significant
breakthrough. As of 31 December 2016, the intelligent car parking
and automotive electronics business recorded external revenue
of HK$210.55 million (in 2015: HK$11.01 million), representing
50.45% of the Group’s total revenue (2015: 6.98%). Following the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Success Capture
Limited (the “Target Company”) by the Group at the end of 2015,
the Group has successfully developed into the car parks related
businesses. The Group has successively set up a series of wholly
owned enterprises and joint ventures, and has fully carried out all
businesses relating to the car-parking segment through cooperation
with other cooperative partners like large state-owned enterprises
and domestic listed companies and utilizing the resources and
advantages of all these parties involved. Manufacturing and sales
of 13 car park projects with a total of 6,520 parking spaces were
completed during the year under review. The Target Company
recorded a profit of RMB63.25 million (the Guarantee Profit
as stated in the Acquisition Agreement is no less than RMB60
million), but the due to the fact that the car parks investment
and operation business was still at the development stage where
involved a large amount of prophase investment expenditure
and the synergy effect it produced with car-parking equipment
manufacturing has not fully displayed, the entire intelligent car-
parking and automotive electronics business recorded a loss of
HK$49.96 million (2015: loss of HK$4.94 million) during the year.
The Group believes that this segment will gradually show positive
results with the progressive development of the business.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
&é}g Djuﬂ:ﬂ &ﬁ*ﬁ

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash
(including pledged bank deposits) of approximately HK$101.79
million (31 December 2015: HK$151.71 million) of which no bank
deposits (31 December 2015: HK$81.53 million) was pledged;
short-term borrowings of HK$1,049.15 million (31 December
2015: HK$953.15 million); long-term borrowings of HK$1,039.05
million (31 December 2015: HK$253.99million); convertible
bonds payable amounted to approximately HK$348.88 million (31
December 2015:HK$293.73 million) represented the principal
amount of HK$351 million (31 December 2015: HK$252 million).
The gearing ratio defined as non-current liabilities and short-term
borrowing divided by total shareholders’ equity was (3.75) as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: (4.35)).

FUND RAISING FROM ISSUE OF SHARES/
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 40,000,000 shares of
HK$0.05 each were issued pursuant to the exercise of share option
granted under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 27
June 2012 at exercise price of HK$0.211 per share.

On 2 June 2015, the Company, Mr. Li Ming (“Mr. Li") and Prosper
Talent Limited (“Prosper”) which is indirectly and wholly-owned by
CCB International (Holdings) Limited, entered into a subscription
agreement. Pursuant to the subscription agreement, Prosper
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, the convertible notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$200 million carrying an interest of 7.5%
per annum (“2015 Convertible Notes”). The 2015 Convertible
Notes were issued on 8 July 2015 with initial maturity date falling
on 8 July 2016 (“Initial Maturity Date”). On 15 June 2016, the
Company and Prosper reached an agreement to extend the Initial
Maturity Date to the date falling on the 12th month after the
Initial Maturity Date (i.e. 8 July 2017) pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the 2015 Convertible Notes. The parties then entered
into an acknowledgement and confirmation on 7 July 2016 to
formalise and confirm their agreement in respect of the extension
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Management Discussion And Analysis

of the Initial Maturity Date. During the year ended 31 December
2016, no conversion rights attached to the 2015 Convertible
Notes has been exercised. Upon the exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the 2015 Convertible Notes in full at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.2481 per conversion share, a maximum
of 806,126,561 shares would be issued.

On 6 December 2016, the Company and Macquarie Bank Limited
(“Macquarie”) entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to
which Macquarie has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, convertible notes
in aggregate principal amount of up to HK$400 million, separated
in 4 tranches with each trance in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$100 million, with interest rate at 2% per annum (“2016
Convertible Notes”). The conversion price shall be 100% of the
volume weighted average price of the shares of the Company as
traded on the Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately
preceding the date of delivery of the relevant conversion notice
to the Company, but in any event shall not be lower than the
minimum conversion price. The minimum conversion price of
HK$0.18 per conversion share represented a discount of 23.72%
to the closing price of HK$0.236 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 6 December 2016. Upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the 2016 Convertible Notes in full at
the minimum conversion price of HK$0.18 per conversion share,
a maximum of 2,222,220,000 shares would be issued. To secure
the performance of the Company’s obligations under, among
others, the terms and conditions of the 2016 Convertible Notes,
on 8 December 2015 the Company entered into a charge over its
cash account opened with Macquarie for receiving and holding the
net subscription moneys of the 2016 Convertible Notes in favour
of Macquarie. On 15 December 2016, the Company issued the
first tranche of the 2016 Convertible Notes in principle amount
of HK$100 million to Macquarie. On the same day of the issuing
of the convertible notes, Macquarie exercised the conversion
rights attached to the 2016 Convertible Notes in principal amount
of HK$1 million and the Company issued 4,775,000 shares to
Macquarie at conversion price of HK$0.2095, representing a
discount of 4.77% to the closing price of HK$0.22 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 15 December 2016. As at
the date of this report, 2016 Convertible Notes in total principle
amount of HK$13 million have been converted, resulting in the
issue of 62,935,000 shares in total and receipt of net proceeds of
HK$12.22 million by the Company which were used for general
working capital purpose.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements from pages 175 to 186.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, no (31 December 2015: HK$81.53
million) deposits, HK$148.84 million (31 December 2015:
HK$309.05 million) of property, plant and equipment and
HK$129.87 million (31 December 2015: HK$151.57 million) of
prepaid lease payments were pledged to banks or other parties
to secure borrowings, bills payable and facilities granted to the
Group. The pledge on the bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bills payables and borrowings.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company pledged the entire equity
interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Jiangxi
Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Ltd., to secure an bank borrowing
amounting to RMB108 million (31 December 2015: RMB107
million).

As at 31 December 2016, as security to the issue of HK$200
million convertible bond, the Company had pledged its shares
in China Ocean Shipbuilding Holdings Limited, its wholly owned
subsidiary in BVI, to Prosper Talent Limited; and China Ocean
Shipbuilding Holdings Limited also pledged its shares in its
Hong Kong subsidiary, China Ocean Shipbuilding (Hong Kong)
Limited, to Prosper Talent Limited. For details please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 June 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, as security to the performance of
the Company’s obligations under, among others, the terms and
conditions of the 2016 Convertible Notes, the Company had
entered into a charge over its cash account opened with Macquarie
for receiving and holding the net subscription moneys of the 2016
Convertible Notes in the amount of HK$94 million in favour of
Macquarie. For details please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 December 2016.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED
HEDGES

The income and expenditure of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk profile as the Group could not find a suitable
instrument to manage this exposure. The Board will continue to
consider the appropriate hedging measures.

NEW BUSINESS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 16 November 2016, China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen)
Limited Company ()8 E T ORI BR A F), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with Nantong Xinda Shipping
Technology Development Company Limited ( #3822 2 f SR %
ZERARAF), Mr. Huo Qi and Mr. Ma Zhenggiang pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the
entire registered capital of Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry
Company Limited (BB EE T AR A A, “Huakai”), a
company established under the laws of the PRC at the maximum
consideration of RMB270,000,000 (subject to downward
adjustment) (“Acquisition”).

On 18 January 2017, the parties to the Acquisition Agreement
entered into a supplemental agreement to the Acquisition
Agreement to extend the long stop date for fulfilment of the
conditions precedent from 18 January 2017 to 31 March 2017.
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Upon completion of the Acquisition, Huakai will become a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of which
will be consolidated into the financial statements of the Company.
Huakai is principally engaged in manufacturing and selling
steel structures and fittings for ship, marine equipment, mining
equipment, ro-ro equipment. The Board believed the acquisition
provides a valuable opportunity to (i) broaden its source of revenue;
(i) improve productivity, technical know-how and diversify products
mix to enhance competitiveness in the heavy industry market; and
(iii) achieve economies of scale to reduce production cost and
expand production capacity to improve profitability, by acquiring
enterprises with such potential from the industry. The acquisition
constitutes a very substantial acquisition for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and therefore the Company is
subject to reporting, announcement and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. At the Special General
Meeting held on 14 March 2017, shareholders of the Company
had approved the Acquisition Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder. (For details refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 16 November 2016, 23 December 2016,
18 January 2017, 25 January 2017 and 14 March 2017 and
circular of the Company dated 24 February 2017.)

Save as disclosed above, there was no new business, material

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year under review.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant events after the end of the reporting period are set out in
Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements on page 287.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2016, details of the pending litigations of the

Group are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In June 2016, a contractor filed its writ to ;T EE & % A
RJEBT against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment
of contracting services. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding payable of
the principal payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB313,000 in aggregate, were recognised
under “Trade, bills and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In August 2016, a supplier filed its writ to SE ™ ARE
BT against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment of
the sale of cable. At the end of the reporting period, the
litigation was judged and the outstanding payable of the
principal payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB392,000 in aggregate, were recognised
under “Trade, bills and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In September 2015, a contractor filed its writ to % /8%
vEBT against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment
of provided vessel decoration services. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged and the
outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB4,636,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade, bills and
other payables”
position.

in the consolidated statement of financial

In November 2015, a supplier filed its writ to JUT{FEZE
B against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment of
provided gas services. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding payable of
the principal payment and the relevant interests accrued
of approximately RMB3,422,000 in aggregate, were
recognised under “Trade, bills and other payables” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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(v)

(vi)

5Y 58 &R D AT

In November 2015, a contractor filed its writ to /&M 4
L& A RJEBT against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed
payment of provided vessel decoration services. At the
end of the reporting period, the litigation was judged and
the outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB762,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade, bills and
other payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In December 2014, a contractor filed its writ to B2/ =
yABT against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment
of provided vessel decoration services. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged and the
outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB4,287,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade, bills and
other payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Other than disclosed above, the members of the Group has no

other material litigation as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December

2015.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had around 600 employees as at 31 December 2016.
It has been the Group’s policy to ensure that the pay levels of its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. The
Group has participated in a mandatory provident fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong. Shares options may also be granted to
eligible persons of the Group.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant balances with related parties and related party

transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 are disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 274 to 276.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong participate in a mandatory

provident fund scheme. Particulars of this retirement scheme are

set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on page

267.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not paid the social
security fund for and on behalf of its employees which
expose the Group to the risk of being imposed the penalty
by the relevant government authority. The social security
fund accrued up to 31 December 2016 of approximately
HK$40,206,000 (equivalent to RMB36,221,000) in
aggregate, were recorded as “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position
(2015: HK$39,681,000 (equivalent to RMB33,628,000)).

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the relevant government authority on 26 January 2015
in respect of the settlement of the unpaid social security
fund. Per the agreement, all outstanding amounts should
be repaid before December 2019. The Directors considered
that if the Group could settle the unpaid social security fund
according to the repayment agreement, no penalty would
be imposed by the relevant government authority.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not paid the housing
provident fund contributions for and on behalf of its
employees which expose the Group to the risk of being
imposed the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The housing provident fund contributions accrued up
to 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$5,483,000
(equivalent to RMB4,940,000) in aggregate, were recorded
as “Trade, bills and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (2015: HK$6,798,000
(equivalent to RMB5,761,000)).
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(c)

(d)

8Y 58 R D AT

The Directors are of the opinion that the possibility to
the risk of being imposed the penalty by the relevant
government authority is remote.

The Company had recognised the provision in relation to
the litigations of approximately RMB13,812,000 (2015:
RMB10,611,000) under “Trade, bill and other payables”
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016. On the basis of internal legal advice from
the Group that it is not probable that these claims would
result in an out flow of economic benefits exceeding the
provisions made by the Group.

On 3 December 2015, Merge and other shareholders
of Zhejiang Ocean as counter guarantors (collectively
referred to the “Counter Guarantor”) entered into the
counter guarantee agreement with Zhoushan Marine
Comprehensive Development and Investment Co., Ltd*
(UG FEFEAEREIRERR AR (the “Guarantor”),
pursuant to which the Counter Guarantors shall, in
proportion to their respective shareholding in Zhejiang
Ocean and upon demand of the Guarantor, indemnify
the Guarantor for all liabilities and expenses which may
be incurred by the Guarantor under any guarantee given
or to be given by the Guarantor in favour of Zhejiang
Ocean during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2020 in respect of loan agreements and
asset securitization agreements entered into by Zhejiang
Ocean (the “Guarantee”), up to an aggregate amount
of RMB900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,107,000,000), together with any interests, penalty,
compensation and related fees and expenses which
may be payable by the Guarantor under the Guarantee.
Accordingly, the maximum amount which Merge
shall indemnify the Guarantor is 20% of the aforesaid
aggregate amount, being RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$221,400,000).

Other than disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group has no other material contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has capital commitments of
approximately HK$128.79 million (31 December 2015: HK$77.5
million) for its associates, HK$308.80 million for its subsidiaries
(31 December 2015: HK$161.90 million) and HK$116.24 million
for a joint venture (31 December 2015: nil) as unpaid registered
capital; capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$78.98 million (31
December 2015: nil). All these commitments are contracted but
not provided in the consolidated financial statements. Details of
capital commitments as of 31 December 2016 are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements on page 258.

PROSPECTS

The Group adopted diversified business strategies to cope with the
risks of the PRC’s domestic economy downturn. The intelligent
car-parking and automotive electronics business acquired by
the Group at the end of 2015 achieved significant breakthrough
in 2016, becoming the primary source of revenue of the Group.
Looking forward, with PRC’s continuous growth in car ownership
and the worsening problem of urban car parking, the demands
for investment and operation & management of intelligent car-
parking, electronic automotive devices and car parks will expand
continuously. Except the manufacturing, selling and installation of
auto parking equipment, the Group will, together with cooperative
partners, jointly provide supporting services like car parks
investment and operation, barrier gate charge management system
and new energy automotive charging, so as to realize the package
services including car park equipment design & manufacturing, car
parks investment, car parks operation and management, financial
services and car owner value-added services.
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To cope with the issue of continued losses of the shipbuilding
business, the Group has signed a very substantial Acquisition
Agreement to conditionally acquire the entire registered capital of
Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry Company Limited. The Acquisition
will bring in an excellent shipbuilding management and operation
team with extensive experience to the Group and attract more
talents to join in, which will improve the product quality and
productivity of the Company’s existing shipbuilding business.

The Group has set up a new joint venture with Xiamen Xiangyu in
Nantong city of Jiangsu province, to engage in the manufacturing
and investment of special-type ships by consolidating their original
shipbuilding capacity and utilizing their respective competitive
advantages, this cooperation is expected to bring about new
opportunities to the Group’s shipbuilding business.

The Wuxue Yangtze River Bridge located near the Yangtze River
Wharf of Jiangxi Shipbuilding has already been approved for
construction by the state, which is now under construction.
After completion of construction, the Bridge will provide traffic
convenience to Jiangxi Shipbuilding. The Group will, by making full
use of the geographic advantage of bordering the Yangtze River,
seize this opportunity to revitalize the assets of Jiangxi Shipbuilding
and develop logistics business fully utilizing the resources of
Yangtze River Wharf, in a bid to lay a foundation for transformation
and development of Jiangxi Shipbuilding and bring new point of
growth to the Group.

All in all, the Group will continue with the diversification strategy

and be flexibly in deployment of resources, in a bid to grasp
investment opportunities to generate greater return to our investors.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’'s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company's long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management and to evaluate the performance of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has held 12 board meetings in total. The individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Number of
board meetings

attended

HEEES
Name ®E BEZXH
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Li Ming (Chairman) FREE (FFE) 12/12
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong (Chief Executive Officer) REERE (TTHAEE) 12/12
Mr. Wang San Long TR AE 12/12
Mr. Liu Jin 2R E 12/12
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Honorary Chairman) BZERLE (FEEE) 12/12
Independent non-executive directors: BYKHITES:
Mr. Hu Bai He BRAEAN S A4 12/12
Ms. Xiang Si Ying 15 B R+ 12/12
Ms. Xiang Ying ML L 12/12
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When the Board considers any material transaction in which a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest, a
board meeting is held and Independent Non-executive Directors
who have no material interest in the transaction will be present
at such board meeting. At the meeting, the Director who has an
interest in the transaction is required to abstain from voting.

Every Director shall ensure that he/she can contribute sufficient
time and effort to the corporate affairs of the Company once he/she
accepts the appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Board appointed Mr. Li Ming as the Chairman, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board
to achieve its primary responsibilities. With the support of the
executive directors, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and that
all directors receive adequate and reliable information on a timely
manner. The Chairman also encourages Directors to be fully
engaged in the Board's affair and make contribution in performing
the Board's functions. The board appointed Mr. Zhang Shi Hong as
Chief Executive Officer, who is vested with executive responsibilities
over the business directions and operational decisions of the
management and performance of the Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises four executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors as at
the date of this report. The independent non-executive directors
constitute over one-third of the Board. In addition, one of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.
The Directors are considered to have a balance of knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. The independent non-executive directors also serve
the important function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an
effective corporate governance framework. The Board considers
that each independent non-executive director is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independent criteria as required by the Listing Rules.
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Report on Corporate Governance

DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD

In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors and measurable criteria, such as age, education
background, industry experience, geographical location and
duration of service. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
composition of the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and
concluded that the composition of the Board is in compliance with
the diversification requirements of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Board confirmed that the Company has received written
confirmation from each of all three independent non-executive
directors of their independence and considers them to be
independent throughout the year.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors is appointed for
an initial term of not more than two years commencing from his/
her date of appointment and is renewable successively for a term
of two years until termination. He/She is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Based on specific enquiry of all the
Directors of the Company, the Directors have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure that
there are fair and transparent procedures for the appointment, re-
election and removal of directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board and three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Ming, Mr.
Hu Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Ms. Xiang Ying. The Chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Xiang Ying. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the
terms set out in the Code. The nomination of directors should take
into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, experience, ability
and potential contributions to the Company. The revised terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted by the Board
on 20 December 2013 and were consistent with the terms set out
in the Code.

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December
2016. All members attended the meetings. The members of the
Nomination Committee reviewed the details of proposed directors’
and made recommendation to the Board for the appointment of
directors during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that there are formal and transparent procedures for setting
up policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were consistent with the terms set out in the Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and
Ms. Xiang Ying and one executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Shi
Hong. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Xiang
Ying.

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2016.
All members attended the meetings. They made recommendation
to the Board regarding the Company’s remuneration policy and
the remuneration package of all directors (excluding his own
remunerations) of the Company. No Director was involved in
deciding his own remuneration during the year under review.
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Report on Corporate Governance

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which was re-adopted on 31 March 2016 in light of the
amendment of Listing Rules,
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is

is available on the websites of

primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor; (b) approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (c) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management and

internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, and the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Hu Bai
He, possesses a professional accountancy qualification and has
substantial experience in accounting and financial matters.

Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The individual attendance of each
memober is set out below:
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committee

meetings attended

HEZES

Name of member REESR BREZRH
Mr. Hu Bai He FAMAAN S & 3/3
Ms. Xiang Si Ying HB R 33
Ms. Xiang Ying ML 3/3

The Group’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2016
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016 had
been reviewed by the Audit Committee and recommendation was
provided to the Board for approval.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the auditors of the
Company received approximately HK$3,035,000 for audit services
and approximately HK$539,000 for other services (including
agreed-upon procedures on interim results and disbursement).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken constant review of the
policies for corporate governance of the Company, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. During this year, the Board
performed the duties relating to corporate governance matters such
as appointed external professionals to carry out internal control
review.
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Report on Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are continually updated on the latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules, the Code and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure the compliance with the same
by the Directors. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors namely Li Ming,
Zhang Shi Hong, Wang San Long, Liu Jin, Chau On Ta Yuen, Hu
Bai He, Xiang Si Ying and Xiang Ying had provided a record of
training they received during the year to the Company. According to
the training records provided by the Directors, the training attended
by them during the reporting period was related to Corporate
Governance, regulatory development and training on other relevant
topics.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable. The management has provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates on internal financial statements so as
to give the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, position and prospects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the

sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risks associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2016, certain
significant risks have been identified and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

e Business risk

Business risk refers to the over-capacity and lowering
contract prices haunting the overall shipbuilding industry.
The Company adopted strategies of adjusting its business
structure; optimizing the allocation of resources and
improving operational efficiency. On the other hand, the
Company proactively diversified into car parking related
business to absorb its redundant production capacity and
minimize business risk.
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e  Financing Risk
The Company is in a net liability position and its financial
cost is high. In year 2016, the Company signed HK$400m
Convertible Notes subscription agreement with Macquarie
Bank Limited to ease its financial pressure and is in talks
with PRC banks to obtain credit facilities to finance its new
car-parking business.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which
enables the Company to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components
of the internal system are shown as follow:

° Control Environment: a set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

° Control Activities: action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

° Information and Communication: internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the group, which
include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2016, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit

During the year, the audit committee appointed external
professional to conduct an internal audit review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
external professional is assigned with the task to perform reviews
on operational, financial and compliance aspects and will alert the
management on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any,
advise on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal
audit reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review made by internal audit function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such
systems, however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders and investors. The Company’s annual general
meeting is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders. All shareholders of the Company are given
at least 21 days’ notice for the date and venue of such annual
general meeting. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings. The Chairman and/or the Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group's businesses at the meetings. The
Company provides information relating to the Company and its
business in its annual and half-year report and also disseminates
such information electronically through its website at “www.irasia.
com/listco/hk/chinaoceanindustry/” and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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EXEBRS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each material matters, including the election of individual Directors,
for shareholder to consider and vote. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting; and (b)
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal
office of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of the
Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the principal
office of the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
BYE-LAWS OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Ming
Chairman
30 March 2017
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PREAMBLE

The Board believes that a sound environmental, social and
governance structure is vital for continued sustainability
and development of the Group’s activities. In addition to
business growth, the Group has been pursuing excellence
in environmental protection, social responsibility, and
governance areas. Meanwhile, the Group also wishes to
enhance its transparency to achieve and uplift the sense of
social caring and responsibility amongst various stakeholders
including shareholders and investors, employees, customers,
suppliers, government and regulators, the environment and
the community. With reference to its own experience and
practice, the Group primarily adopts the principles and basis
of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules as its standards,
with an aim to establish a sound environment, social and
governance structure.

This Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
is a review of its performance in environment, social and
governance areas for the period from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016. This report is designed to allow
shareholders, investors (including potential investors) and
the public to have a more comprehensive and profound
understanding of the Group’s corporate governance and
culture. The Group is willing to take more responsibilities for
the society to balance the shareholders’ interests and the
society's benefits.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF
THE REPORT

This ESG report covers the operational boundaries including
the activities of our headquarter in Hong Kong and several
operating subsidiaries in mainland China.

The reporting period of this ESG report is for the financial
year 2016, from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
(“FY2016"), unless specially stated otherwise. There were
no significant changes in the Group’s subsidiaries’ locations,
share capital structure and operation scale during 2016.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

China Ocean Industry Group Limited acknowledges the need
and importance of the stakeholder engagement as one of the
key elements in ESG reporting. The Group is also committed
to achieving a high standard of ESG that can properly
promote the Group’s reputation as a caring and responsible
company to enhance corporate value and accountability of
the company.

During FY2016, the Group has conducted a series of
stakeholders’ participation surveys to collect their advice
and opinions on the Group’s environmental and social
governance in various communication channels, such as
online surveys, telephone interviews, face-to-face interviews
or distribution of questionnaires. Stakeholders with high
influence and high dependence on the Group are selected
by the management of the Group. The selected stakeholders
have been invited to express their views and concerns on
major social and environment issues. For the ESG report in
FY2016, the Group determines environmental policy, energy
consumption, pollutant control, supply chain management
and operational management compliance as material
concerns to stakeholders, which will be all included in this
report and descriptions of the work done and the progress
made by the Group in these areas. The Group will focus
on these topics in its long-term operations, and formulate
appropriate strategies, improve policies and set long-term
goals.
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group attaches great importance to corporate
environmental and social responsibility. In strict compliance
with relevant environmental regulations, the Group
proactively shoulders environmental responsibility by
advancing technological innovations, enhancing resource
utilisation efficiency and promoting energy conservation
and emission reduction in its production and development,
to explore approaches that featuring low consumption,
low emission and high output. The Group is engaged in
the production and operation of shipbuilding, trading,
and providing financial services business and intelligent
car-parking and automotive electronics business. For
the shipbuilding business, main techniques adopted in
the production process are cutting and paint spraying.
Therefore, the main emissions in this business segment
exclude industrial wastewater and exhausted gas. The main
operation process of the subsidiaries running intelligent car-
parking and automotive electronics business are to assemble
purchased semi-finished steel products and electronic
components, and of that of the subsidiaries running trading
and financial services business are usually about paper
and online office work. Therefore, these two business
segments have less emission and little bad influence on
the environment. To analyse the environmental impacts the
Group exerts more clearly, this report will disclose them
by different parts according the nature of business where
necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This section will primarily disclose the policies and practices
on use of resources, carbon emissions and environmental
and natural resources of the Group during the financial year
of 2016.

A.1.Emissions

The Group adamantly implements government laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection.
Each of the manufacturing bases has been equipped
with environmental protection facilities up to standard.
The Group'’s current environmental protection system is
sound. Each of the manufacturing bases has set up an
environment management system; the manufacturing
departments has established a management team
to specialize in environmental protection and energy
saving matters; and each of the manufacturing
bases has responsible staff in charge of operation of
environmental protection and energy saving facilities.

The emission mainly comprises domestic wastewater,
solid waste and Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) emission
and noise. The Group has appealed the staff to save
water and electricity in the daily operation; it has also
taken initiatives for full recycling of waste materials
to reduce unnecessary waste produced therefore
to minimise the environmental impact. The specific
emissions are reported respectively as below:

A. Wastewater Produced
Wastewater produced of the Group mainly generated
from the general operation of the factories and daily
use from its staff in office and staff canteen. The Group
has strictly comply with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {(FFZEE AR
HFMBRIBREL) ) and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution ( (/2 A R ABIKSEBTAE) ).

The quality of drained wastewater must meet the
requirements of the country and the district. Domestic
wastewater is discharged to the sewage pipe directly,
while industrial wastewater is collected separately in
special containers and sent to professional treatment
company for further treatment. For the domestic
wastewater, the Group has taken various measures in
reducing water consumption (which will be explained
particularly in A.2).
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Solid Waste Produced

In dealing with the solid waste produced by the Group,
it has strictly comply with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ( (¥
EARAMBEEBEYSLARENAZE) ) and
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( (P EARKMBEIRIBREL) ), Safety
Management of Hazardous Chemicals ( (/& {t 2%
L2 EIREH) ), National List of Hazardous Wastes
((EREBEYWEE:) ) and Administrative Measures
on Registration of Dangerous Chemicals ( (/& 1t
BREDZEEME) ). Due to the nature of different
kinds of businesses, solid wastes produced by the
Group are divided into general waste and hazardous
waste. General solid waste includes the domestic solid
waste generated by the employees in working hours
and wasted paper and other wasted office appliance.
General solid waste is in put garbage bags and
collected by the local bureau for environmental health
every day. Hazardous waste, which is only generated
in the shipbuilding business and intelligent car-parking
and electronic automotive device business, is collected
and sealed in specific containers, which is sent to
professional treatment company regularly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Shipbuilding Business

In the shipbuilding business, relevant subsidiaries have
strictly abided by the national laws and regulations, and
internal Regulations on the Management of Hazardous
Wastes ( {(fEEEYIF G E IR E) ). Solid waste
generated in this business segment includes hazardous
solid waste and domestic solid waste. Hazardous solid
waste includes paint bucket, waste mineral oil, waste
oil drums, paint residue, electroplating sludge, waste
batteries, waste ink cartridges, waste lamps, waste
film, and oil rags. According to the internal regulation,
relevant departments should put the hazardous solid
waste in classified dustbins. Department of transport is
in charge of the collection, storage and transportation
of all the solid waste. The Planning Department is
responsible for the disposal and treatment of all
the solid waste while the department of security will
supervise all the procedure from generation to disposal
of the solid waste.

Noise

In compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise
Pollution ( (A RHFMBERBHMAITRIIAE) ),
the Group has conducted noise detection around the
operation site to meet the requirement of the PRC
Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprise Noise at
Boundary ( { TIR{> A ERIBHABEBUZEZE) ) (GB
12348-2008).
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A.2.Use of Resources A.2. ERfEA
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BUSINESS AND OFFICE WORKS

A.

Electricity Consumption

All of its electricity consumption is directly
coming from the lighting, air-conditioners,
computers and other electricity consuming
equipment in the office, and the regular
operation of the machines in the operation
site. The Group understands well the positive
correlation between the electricity consumption
and the GHGs emission. Thus, to ensure the
effective use of electricity and reduce the
electricity consumption, several practices were
applied by the Group during FY2016, including
the following:

In the offices:

° Turn office lights off whenever and
wherever not necessary; replace traditional
lamps with power saving ones like LED
lights; use voice operated switch of the
lights in the passway;

° Adjust the air-conditioners according to the
real temperature in the office, and turning
them off whenever not necessary.
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In the factories:

Replace high electricity consumption
lamps with the installation of electricity
saving lamps for office lighting;

Turn off machines that are not in operation
to avoid idling;

Make careful selection of the transformer
capacity and motors;

Arrange the operation of machines
reasonably and repair them once there is
malfunction;

Replace old equipment to improve the
electricity utilization efficiency;

Improve the operation procedure by
replacing the spraying production line,
ovens and refrigeration equipment with
more efficient ones.
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B. Water Consumption B.

Water consumption by the Group includes
domestic use and industrial use. To reduce water
consumption, the Group has conducted the
following practice in 2016:

1. Adopt low-flow faucets or showers in the
office and staff living areas. Once there is
a leaking problem, the Group will send a
plumber immediately;

2. Try to recycle domestic water in the daily
practice;

3. Some factories set a utilization limit of
water for the employees and charge them
for extra water bill;

4. Get employees involved in the business’s
green efforts;

b. Purchase water-efficient equipment to
replace the traditional ones;

6. Reduce landscape water use by planting
native landscapes or other less water-
intensive alternatives and installing a rain-
harvesting system to collect water on site
for landscape irrigation or using a sensored
irrigation system to better control exterior
water use.
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Paper Consumption

To ensure environmental and efficient use of
paper, the Group has made great efforts from
the “starting point” to the “end point”. The
“starting point” means to indirectly reduce the
paper consumption without the office physical
boundary. In other words, to choose the more
environmental friendly paper source as the
supplier, through which to indirectly reduce
the amount of trees loss while producing the
same amount of paper; to choose recycled
paper instead of normal paper to reduce natural
resources loss in some cases. The “end point”
means to directly reduce the amount of paper
consumption through varies measurements
within the office physical boundary. The Office
and the Company has also endeavoured to
take several methods to manage the paper
consumption described as below:

o To “think before print”: use posters and
stickers as the reminder for office staff;

o To use both side: set computer defaults to
print double-sided when possible;

° Give a second chance: use paper printed
on only one-side for draft documents or as
scratch paper;

° E-mail tips: to remind staff consider the
environment before printing the email;

° Go electronic: to create some electronic
systems to eliminate unnecessary paper
forms.
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D.  Other Consumptions

The main operation of the intelligent car-
parking and electronic automotive device
business is assembling and packaging. The
main consumptions includes steel, electrical
components, mechanical transmission
equipment, packaging, protective film, warranty
card, model stickers, envelopes, cartoon boxes,
care, stickers and so on.

The main packaging materials consumed by
the Group are cartons in different sizes. The
consumption of packaging materials is made-to-
order basis, thus there is no specific measures to
reduce the consumption.

SHIPBUILDING BUSINESS

In order to strengthen energy management, reduce
energy consumption, eliminate energy waste and
improve energy efficiency, relevant subsidiary in this
business segment of the Group has formulated internal
energy management standard on the consumption
of electricity, water, fuel, town gas, coal and other
resources. Based on the national laws and energy
conservation policy, combined with the Group'’s actual
status of production and energy consumption, the
Group complies with the standard to save energy and
reduce emission. Generally, all the management are
supposed to supervise and promote the implement of
the standard. Generally, the subsidiary of the Group
has taken the following measures to achieve the goal of
energy management:

° During reconstruction or new fixed assets
investment, the Group should consider energy
consumption and conservation and arrange a
professional energy assessment. All projects
must abide by the energy consumption standard
and energy-saving technical specifications while
the Group should avoid conducting projects or
using equipment with backward technology, high
energy consumption and low efficiency.
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The Group has gradually replaced
equipment of high energy consumption
and low efficiency and backward
technology for energy-saving and low-
emission ones.

Relevant departments should record
their energy consumption and conduct
energy economy accounting and statistical
analysis. All the report and data should
hand in to the management.

All departments should take the initiative
to carry out energy-saving education and
organize relevant employees to participate
in energy-saving training.

Relevant departments should make plans
for annual and quarterly use of energy
based on past years of energy use.

Relevant departments must strengthen
the equipment maintenance and improve
the utilization efficiency of equipment to
reduce light or no-load operation. They
should check the pipe network and joints
to avoid leakage and reinforce insulation
around the heat and heat transfer pipelines
to maximize the energy efficiency.
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A.  Electricity consumption A.

Knowing that the GHG emission is positively
correlated to electricity consumption, the relevant
subsidiaries in this business segment have taken
the following measures to save electricity:

° Control the start frequency of some major
power consumption equipment to improve
the load rate and avoid electricity peak
when starting them.

° Replace the incandescent light bulbs for
energy-saving lamps in the operating area.

° Limit the use of electric heaters. For the
industrial need, employees must ask
relevant departments for permission.

° Relevant departments should give
preference to energy-saving equipment
and avoid purchasing unnecessary high-
energy equipment.

° Engage employees in the energy

management and conservation and collect
ideas for energy saving.
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Coal consumption

Since the coal consumption is indirectly based
on the orders, there is no specific measure
taken to reduce the consumption. But the Group
has regulations avoid unnecessary waste of the
raw coal. Coal purchased must be examined,
weighed and recorded. Users must operate in
accordance with instructions (or equipment
instructions) to eliminate coal waste. Users
should also strengthen the management of raw
coal, compare the real consumption to estimated
one and take positive savings measures.

Water consumption

Relevant subsidiaries have strictly implemented
relevant regulations formulated by the Group and
take the following measures to save water:

° Engage and educate employees in the
water conservation activities and enhance
their awareness of water conservation.

° Recycle the cooling water to make full use
of water resources.

° Check pipe network in the workshops
regularly to avoid leakage.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR -TTEREGCEHS

Fuel consumption

Fuel consumed by the Group includes diesel
and gasoline consumed by the vehicles and
ships of the Group in the working hours. The
planning department will make the purchase
plan based on the actual production situation.
Relevant departments will examine and record
the purchased fuel. Relevant users should make
consumption records and actively take fuel-
saving measures.

Gas consumption

Gases consumed by the Group include
compressed air, oxygen, carbon dioxide gas,
acetylene gas, nitrogen, argon, steam and
other gases needed in the production process.
Relevant workshops make purchase plans
according to the actual production situation.
Gases purchased by the purchase department
will be examined and recorded. Users should
strengthen the inspection of gas pipelines to
prevent air discharge and leakage. The Group
should also check the gas storage containers
and transportation pipelines and do maintenance
work regularly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A.3.The Environment and Natural Resources

In relation to the operation site, the Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
such as Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Conserving Energy ( {fF# A R L0 B & 4 48R
7%) ) and Circular Economy Promotion Law of the
people’s Republic of China ( (AR KB EIR
LR HESR) ). It has conducted regularly inspecting
and monitoring on the regular operation of the Group.
As for the environmental impacts from the operation
process, the Group’s routine operation exerts no bad
influence on its surroundings. The wastes, noise and
other environmental impacts generated from the
operation process of the Group are in conformity with
environmental laws and regulations. In the operation
site of shipbuilding business, the Group has formulated
the Material Recycling Incentives ( {#17& [a] Y & 47
#EEHE%) ) to encourage employees to make use
of residues and wastes (include waste steel, waste
steel wire, cable head, non-ferrous metal scrap, iron
shavings, paint bucket, wood/paper crates, welding
head, wire rod, waste steel flange, pipe elbow, round
plate and flange plate), and save raw materials (include
electrodes, paint, diesel, gasoline and others). The
Group will reward employees financially who comply
with the incentives accordingly.

The Group will continue to adhere to the safety,
harmony and green development concept and make
unremitting efforts to create a resourcing-saving and
environmentally-friendly corporate.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group persisted in the combination of a people-oriented
management philosophy and an innovation mechanism.
Through diversity and humanistic management, the Group
has established a close relationship of mutual trust and
support between the Group and its staff, and created a
positive, healthy and motivated corporate culture and work
environment for its employees. Meanwhile, the Group
cherishes every talent and provides employees with a
competitive remuneration mechanism. Moreover, the Group
also incessantly optimized its human resources structure,
and improved its management methods in order to fully bring
out employees’ enthusiasm and initiatives.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B.1.Employment

The Group regards employees as its most important
and valuable assets, seeking to provide a safe and
sound working environment for employees and
cultivating talents experienced in technology and
management. By improving the remuneration system
and career paths, the Group expects to establish a
comprehensive incentive system based on physical,
mental, emotional and growth motivations to carry
forward the harmonious and stable employment
relationship.

The human resources policies strictly adhere to
the applicable employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and the PRC, including, the Employment
Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Schemes
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Labour Law
of the PRC ( (EEARLMBELE L) ), Labour
Contract Law of the PRC ( {FFZEAREMEI L B4 [F
%) ), and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ( ¢
= AREMBLEREE) ) . The Human Resources
Department reviews and updates relevant company
policies constantly in accordance with the latest laws
and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To motivate and reward the employees, the Group
offers competitive and fair remuneration and benefits
based on individuals' performance, professional
qualifications, experiences and market benchmarks to
attract, motivate and retain high-calibre workforce. The
Group has the internal Performance Appraisal System
and will conduct annual review to ensure that the staffs
are recognised by the Group appropriately with regard
to their working efforts and contributions. Meanwhile,
any termination of employment contract would be
based on reasonable and lawful grounds. The Group
strictly prohibits any kinds of unfair or unreasonable
dismissals.

To cultivate employees’ sense of belonging, the
Group provides its employees in mainland China with
two days off per week and housing fund and five
insurances including endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injury
insurance, and maternity insurance, and those in
Hong Kong with medical insurance, MPF and year-end
bonus. On some traditional Chinese festivals, the Group
will give out bonus and gifts to the employees.

Throughout the Group, it arranges reasonable working
hours and leave for the employees which are in line
with local employment laws. In addition to statutory
holidays stipulated by the region, employees may also
be entitled to paid annual leave, maternity leave and
paternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and sick
leave for employees under the employment law of the
local government.
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Talent acquisition is vital to the business future
development. The heartening improvement is
very much contributed by the effective two-way
communication system between the general staff
and managerial staff. Employees maintain timely
and smooth communication with the management,
colleagues and partners of the companies within the
Group through internal email, employee handbook,
manager meeting. The interactive communication
system benefits the Group’s decision-making
process and results a barrier-free employer-employee
relationship.

The Group is committed to create a fair, respectful
and diverse working environment by promoting anti-
discrimination and equal opportunity in terms of
all human resources and employment decisions,
for instance, training and promotion opportunities,
dismissals and retirement policies irrespective of their
gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital
status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality
or any other non-job related factors in all business
units. The equal opportunities policy enforces
zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination,
harassment or victimization in accordance to relevant
government legislation, ordinances and regulations
such as Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Race
Discrimination Ordinance and Sex Discrimination
Ordinance.

To cultivate the sense of belonging in the employees,
the Group will also set aside reserved funds for
activities. In 2016, the Group hosted a series of
activities for the employees, including 2016 Spring
Festival Meal and annual dinners. These events helped
the employees to relieve stress, and served to exemplify
the Group's corporate culture of the spirit of solidarity
and cohesion among its employees.
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B.2.Health and Safety

Complying with the policy of “Safety First, Prevention
Primary, Comprehensive Treatment” (“&Z &% — -
JERG A E 4R A "), the Group attached great
importance to providing and maintaining a good
working conditions and a safe and healthy working
environment. The safety and health policies are in
line with various laws and regulations stipulated by
the Government of Hong Kong and PRC, including
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, the
Production Safety Laws of the PRC ( {(FEIZ 24
EEJ%) ), the People’s Republic of China Occupation
Disease Prevention Law ( (BB ZEAE) )
and Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
((ITERBIEBY ). Furthermore, the Group has
stipulated Production Safety Management Compiled
Rules and Regulations which includes detailed rules
and regulations on responsibilities, production, training,
chemical management, fire safety, hazardous operation
management, emergency management, system of
rewards and penalties on safe production and so on.

To engage all relevant departments in the Group
to shoulder the responsibility of safe production,
the Group has established the Safety Production
Responsibility Assessment System which set time
for the Group to review relevant workshops and
departments regularly. The Group has established
the Security Committee to ensure safe production
and environmental protection which include relevant
departments and the management in the operation
site. Different departments are supposed to shoulder
specific responsibilities under strict rules. The relevant
departments or individuals will be awarded or punished
accordingly based on the evaluation. The Group also
has worked out different emergency plans for different
situation, and arrange drills at least once per year. The
Group strives to maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-free,
non-toxic, non-hazardous, healthy and safe working
environment.
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In order to ensure the employees’ health and
related rights, the Group spares no effort to
enhance the physical fitness of employees and
eliminate occupational hazards. The Group will
arrange free occupational health checks for relevant
employees including entry physical examination, in-
service physical examination and off-post physical
examination. To implement the policy of “prevention
first, combine with prevention” (“TEBI AB=E B4
&") and protect employees from being affected by
occupational hazards and occupational diseases, the
Group formulated “Workplace Occupational Safety
and Health Management System” ( {{EZI5Frigs
ZREEREEESE) ) according to Occupational
Disease Prevention Law ( <BEZJE7/A)%) ) and
execute to the letter, which contains detailed practice
and requirements of the management of production
procedure and the environment of the workshops.

B.3.Development and Training

The Group offers different training and development
opportunities to the staff in order to strengthen work-
related skills and knowledge and improving operational
efficiency and productivity. For new hired employees,
it provides comprehensive orientation training to
understand the corporate culture, business flow,
working health and safety, management systems and
group development. For experienced staff, the Group
has online learning website for employees and relevant
department will occasionally share some learning
material through intranet. The Group provides training
to the employees in terms of different stages of the
work needs and requirements.

The Group has training centre in Shandong Ruitong
Parking Equipment Company Limited, whose
purposes are to adjust local recruitment according
to the development of the Group, to help employees
in Shandong build their career path and to provide
training courses including basic quality, professional
knowledge and social knowledge. Furthermore, the
Group has online training platform called Times
Huaguang (B R E X ELF I EHL) in Shandong
subsidiary.
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B.4.Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC
((hE ARLFBELE)E) ), Labour Contract Law
of the PRC ((PFEARKMBELZHERE) ),
Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC ( {#rEIZE |1
FRZETHRE) ) and other related labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and China to prohibits any
child and forced labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child
labour and forced labour, prior the confirmation of
employment, the human resources staff specifies
that all employees shall provide a valid identity
documents to ensure that the applicants are lawfully
employable and a whistle blowing mechanism has
been established by Human Resources Department
to monitor and ensure full compliance of latest and
relevant laws and regulations that prohibits child labour
and forced labour. There would be regular checks and
inspections on the execution of the human resources
policies for the Group headquarters and subsidiaries.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5.Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and
vital to maintain and manage a sustainable and
reliable supply chain. The Group achieves this goal
by conducting comprehensive evaluation of potential
suppliers and thorough investigations of selected
suppliers, imposing strict standards on the quality of
suppliers’ raw materials and services, and reviewing
the suppliers’ products, services, previous track
record, ongoing projects, reputation, quality and their
social and environmental responsibility annually so
as to maintain a good and long-term relationship with
suppliers. Due to the nature of the business, only
shipbuilding business and intelligent car-parking and
electronic automotive device business are relevant to
the supply chain management.
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Shipbuilding Business

The Group's shipbuilding business are building and
mending of ships. The Group has strict management
policy on the suppliers. The Group adopts the directory
management and blacklist limit system and require
suppliers meet the China Classification Society (CCS)
standard. Besides, the Group requires suppliers to
be legally law-abiding and provide high-quality and
reasonable-price products, and the Group gave priority
to those complying with relevant environmental laws
and regulations of China.

When choosing the suppliers, the Group will first
contact those with qualification and discuss with
them about the requirements. Then it will compare
the quality and prize of the products among all the
potential suppliers. The chosen one will then be
included in the supplier list. To ensure sufficient
supply, the Group will out more than one supplier
of each raw material it needs in the supplier list and
cooperate with one of them when there is an order.
Besides, the Group will conduct annual evaluation of
the suppliers in top management turnover, production
capacity, changes in manufacturing techniques and
raw materials, and violations of the law and discipline
of the suppliers.

According to the evaluation of the Group, those with
serious problems existed in the regulatory compliance,
delivery, health and safety, and environment protection
were put in the black list immediately.

Intelligent Car-parking and Automotive
Electronics Business

The Group’s intelligent car-parking and automotive
electronics business includes two subsidiaries in
Shenzhen and Shandong respectively. The main
business in Shenzhen includes the development of
automotive intelligent transportation and multimedia
information system, production and sales of car
navigation, car audio and video equipment, traffic
recorder, traffic safety equipment. The main business
in Shandong is the production and sales of stereo
garage.
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In Shenzhen, raw materials purchased by the Group
are PCB, wiring harness, electronic components, and
structural plastic. The Group has stipulated inner
regulation entitled Supplier Field Assessment Report
((EEmEMTE®RSE) ) to select suppliers.
The Purchasing Department selects new suppliers
based on the needs of new product development and
optimization of the supplier system, combining with
the actual situation. The Purchasing Department will
first conduct surveys on the new supplier to collect
relevant information and completes the Supplier Basic
Information Form ( {ftEREXRBLRLEK) ). The
potential suppliers should at least have the 1ISO9000
certification and 1ISO14000 environmental management
standard. And agency should have proxy certificate
and brand agency authorization. Relevant departments
will then form a team to evaluate the pre-selected
suppliers and fill the results in the Supplier Assessment
Form ( (HEfEREE HFEER) ). If the sample products
provided by the pre-selected suppliers meet the quality
requirements of raw materials, auxiliary materials,
components (outsourcing), semi-finished products,
processed goods and the technical requirements of
the Group, and they pass other relevant assessments,
they will be marked as qualified suppliers. In the
meanwhile, the qualified suppliers should be able
to deliver 100% the ordered produces in time to the
Group and provide relevant plans to control the delivery
process. After the final review by the general manager,
those qualified suppliers will be put in the List of
Qualified Suppliers ( (&R HLEREE) ).
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In order to prevent price fluctuation, the Group will
contact suppliers on the qualified suppliers list and ask
for the price list of the raw material and components it
needs. The relevant departments will contact at least
two suppliers for the same item and compare the price
and make the final decision. To ensure the quality of
raw material and components, relevant departments
will conduct quality examination of the products
purchased and make a record. For those suppliers
who have been found unqualified products which are
rejected and returned for three times in a succession
will be informed to rectify and reform under the Control
Process of Unqualified Product ( (&1 fpis &5
30) ). The Group will review the results in a week.

The Group assesses the quality of purchased
products, delivery time, coordination and/or service
of the qualified suppliers once every six months and
records the results of the assessment in the Supplier
Assessment Form ( (HE£FERE HET4 %) ). For those
who fail the assessment, the Group will give them an
opportunity to rectify and reform, and then conduct
a second assessment. If they fail again, relevant
departments will report to the management and
disqualify them once approved by the management
and cancel the cooperation with them.
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In Shandong, raw materials purchased by the Group
are mainly H beams and galvanized sheet. The Group
has stipulated inner regulations including purchasing
and outsourcing procedure ( (HMNRINEE T 1ER
#2) ). According to the procedure, the technical
department should provide drawings, specifications
and quantities of the supplies required by the orders
and obtain the permission from the general manager.
Then the production department will make plans to
select suppliers. They will fill in the supplier evaluation
form and compare the quality and price of products
provided by different suppliers and their supply
cycle. After these basic evaluations, the production
department will determine a list of qualified suppliers,
who will then be asked to provide business license,
tax registration certificate, organization code and other
relevant certificates. The final selection of suppliers
must win the proof of the deputy general manager of
the production department. To avoid price fluctuation
and scarcity of supply, the Group will specify price,
quality requirements, delivery cycle, payment methods,
warranty period, transportation, after-sales service and
other relevant questions in the contract.

B.6.Product Responsibility

The philosophy about the products and service of the
Group is to provide products with good quality up to
the specification and keep in good relationship with
customers and pursue win-win to both parties at all
times.
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Shipbuilding Business

The Group believes that product quality is the essence
of an enterprise and strictly adheres to the policy of
“Quality First, Satisfy Customers” (“BE 5 — AR W
&") in this business segment. Relevant subsidiaries
have complied with the People’s Republic of China
Special Equipment Safety Law ( (/% A R MBS
R EK) ), the Interim Provisions on occupational
health supervision and management of workplaces
(EXSFRBREREEEEREEITHRE) ), the
People’s Republic of China pneumoconiosis prevention
and control regulations ( (/% A R £ 501 B EE i fm B
S8 1&%1) ) and Work Injury Insurance Ordinance ( T
SIREAEHI) ). The Quality Assurance Department
of the Group is in charge of the quality examination
in compliance with the 1SO2003 and GL\ABS testing.
Once there is a complaint, the Group will conduct
internal negotiation and report to the arbitration
tribunal.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations on protecting and maintaining IPR in the
PRC such as Patent law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (FPZEARFEFMBEIZEFE) ), Agreement on
Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights
((EEZEBOMBEREE) ) and Tort Liability
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {f#E A R #
MEREEEZE) ).

Intelligent Car-parking and Automotive
Electronics Business

In Shenzhen, the relevant subsidiaries stick to the
policy of “Customer first, Quality first, Full participation,
Continuous improvement” (‘BEEZE F MEFE —
2B 28 HEKE"). In relation to advertising and
labelling issues, the Group has complied with the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEAREMBESE) ), the Price Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( {FFZE A R MEEK
%) ) and the Consumer Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( {1 ZE AR LT E B & R IRME
ED ).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The products provided by the Group are in strict
accordance with the national standards, which own the
3C certification. Therefore, the relevant subsidiaries
have national high-tech enterprise certification. The
quality department is in charge of the quality inspection
process, which is composed of four detection groups
responsible for the inspection of the reliability of new
products, the quality of raw material, the production
process and finished products respectively.

Regard to the complaints about the products, the
Group adopts the policy of “Three Guarantees” (“=
8" ) . For those relating to product quality, the
quality department will follow the complaints and
improve the products accordingly. When received
recalled products, after — sales service department
will conduct inspection and send verified products to
after — sales maintenance department. After confirming
and final check, the Group will resend the products to
customers.

The Group has taken measures to protect its
intellectual property rights. In compliance with the
Patent law of the People’'s Republic of China ( (/%
AR HEMBEEFE) ), the Intellectual Property Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( {F1%E A R A0
Bl &1z E#5%) ), the Tort Liability Law of the People’
s Republic of China( (R EAREFBEREE T
7&) ) and the Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects
of Intellectual Property Rights( 2% 5 & f8 &9 A%
EMEWE) ), the Group has hired a legal consultant
to provide legal advice on the protection of intellectual
property rights and arranged internal legal staff to
inspect and prevent intellectual property infringement.
In the past few years, the Group has won several
patents including but not limiting to the followings:

o Kuge Car VOD System Software (January 14,
2014)

° Safe Driving Early Warning DSA2013 Software
(June 8, 2013)
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Moreover, the Group adheres to the Consumer
Protection Law ( CHEE#mRi&E)%A) ) and values
the protection of customers’ privacy. It has established
a secure, comprehensive customer data storage
system which only allows people with the relevant
authority to check. It has also trained employees to
have legal awareness of the risk of leakage of customer
information.

In Shandong, the relevant subsidiaries adopt the
policy of “Quality comes from responsibility” (“fa&
JRRE ") and spare no efforts to insert the pursuit
of quality throughout the various aspects of the
enterprise. They has complied with the Regulations
on the Safety of Special Equipment ( (iFE®REL 2
E222 (% {5]) ), Opinions on Several Issues Concerning
the Implementation of the Regulations on the Safety
Supervision of Special Equipment ( R E i (g
RELE2EREN) ETHEXNER) ), Rules on
the installation and maintenance of electromechanical
special equipment ( (HEIERE R B LR BUEHE
ZFAT#8 81 ) and Procedures of installation supervision
and periodic inspection of the mechanical parking
equipment ( (EHIFERBLREEEET HRRE
RIE) ).

The production of mechanical parking garage are all
up to the national standards, industry standards and
relevant technical, which include but not limit to the
followings: Manufacturing rules for mechanical and
electrical special equipment ( (B AR IE R HRLIE
FFA4R 81 ), Special Equipment Safety Supervision
Ordinance ( (@K E % 2B 524EMI) ) and General
safety requirements for mechanical parking equipment
(M IFERBEBALZ 2 EK)) (GB17907-
2010).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To ensure the safe of health of the products, the Group
has experts to develop specific garage maintenance
program and professional maintenance staff to conduct
routine maintenance inspection. The Group will also
provide free training to the customers for independent
operation and general troubleshooting. The products
have a warranty period of 2 years, during which period
all the maintenance parts and components are free.
And they are charged by cost after the warranty period.
The customers enjoy the life-long supporting parts for
maintenance. Meanwhile, the Group promises a 24-
hour free service hotline to receive calls. It has two
to three maintenance personnel on the field and can
reach the sites 30 minutes after the call. The repair
time for general failure is less than 1 hour, and less
than 24 hours for complicated failure.

When received complaints, the relevant departments
will analyse the reasons for complaints. The after-sales
service department will research and determine the
responsibility of the complaints. If the responsibility is
not in the company, relevant staff will explain to the
customers patiently and obtain their recognition. If it
is, they will determine the complaint processing time
based on the nature of the complaint and inform the
customers about the solutions and deadlines timely.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE MTERELGHRS

The Group adhere strictly to the Intellectual Property
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {fhZE A R
MBI EREL) ) and has taken measures to protect
its intellectual properties. It has formulated relevant
implementation rules and internal system to manage
the file system. Specific personnel are in charge of the
management of information and working norms. In
recent times, the relevant subsidiaries in Shandong has
won eight utility model patent certificate as below:

o Mechanical three-dimensional parking
equipment with electric control cabinet sliding
installation device

o Mechanical three-dimensional parking
equipment lifting dynamic anti-fall protection
device

° A lift-off three-dimensional parking device

° Mechanical three-dimensional parking
equipment with limit and limit switch switch
holder

° Combined car plate car stop device

° Mechanical three-dimensional parking
equipment with the lifting of the dynamic anti-fall
device

° Mechanical three-dimensional parking
equipment switch man-machine interface
operation device

° Stereo parking device with fingerprint

identification Human-machine interface
operation device
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group values the privacy of its customers. In
compliance with the Consumer Protection Law ( CH
BEMEFIRHEE) ), the Group has a separate
customer information management department, which
will store each customer’s information separately. The
Group's computers have encryption software to prevent
information loss. Furthermore, the relevant employees
should sign a confidential agreement to ensure not to
leak the customer information.

Financial Leasing Business

In this segment, the Group is committed to building
a capital exchange platform at home and abroad to
support the Group’s other business segments such
as heavy equipment and intelligent parking device
financially. The Group complies with relevant financial
regulations, tax laws and local government security
regulations.

To ensure service security, the Group only signs
contracts to receive interest on rent in condition of
security funds, while relevant departments will do the
net value investigation and risk control.

The Group has strict regulations to protect the clients’
privacy besides the Consumer Protection Law ( (B %
EREZERTEIL) ). It has specific personnel to keep
the clients’ information which can only be accessed
through application.
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RE MTERELGHRS

B.7.Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, integrity and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to
the laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption
and bribery as set out by the government of the
PRC and Hong Kong, such as Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Anti-money Laundering ( (&
B[z #E#25%) ), Article 274th of the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China (on extortion and
fraud) ( (PBEIFIESE2741& (BBRBGESIR) ) ),
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance.

Besides, it has formulated and strictly enforced the
internal anti-corruption regulation All employees are
expected to discharge their duties with integrity and
self-disciplined, and they are required to abstain from
engaging in any activities related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering which might affect
their business decision or independent judgment in
the course of business operation which exploit their
positions against the Group's interests.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible business, the Group extends active
presence in community activities to support public welfare in
addition to its efforts in delivering business growth. It listens
to community needs and contributes to local economy,
livelihood and a harmonious environment for mutual benefit.
Both management and employees of the Group have been
eager to take their own initiatives in helping and supporting
the local communities and neighbours.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 86 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
on page 90 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
(2015: Nil).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium accounts if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 288 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Li Ming — Chairman

Mr. Zhang Shi Hong — Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wang San Long

Mr. Liu Jin
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Non-executive director

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen — Honorary Chairman

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hu Bai He
Ms. Xiang Siying
Ms. Xiang Ying

In accordance with Clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Wang San Long, Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Ms. Xiang Ying will
retire by rotation and are eligible for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

All of the remaining directors will continue in office.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of directors as at the date of this report
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ming, aged 54, was appointed as a Director in February
2009 and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Jiangxi Finance Institute (now known as Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics) majoring in planning statistics. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Li held senior positions in a number of
well-known companies in the People’s Republic of China and had
extensive experience in management and business planning. Mr. Li
had been an executive director of Shenzhen Microgate Technology
Co. Ltd. from May 2012 to October 2013, the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Li was appointed
as a non-executive director of DST ROBOT Co. Ltd (Stock Code:
A090710) in March 2015, a company listed on Korean Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did not hold any
directorship in other public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the
last three years.
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Mr. Zhang Shi Hong, aged 48, was appointed as a Director in
December 2007 and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Mr. Zhang has over 16 years of experience in finance, credit
management and investment management. He has worked for
the head office of the Bank of China for around nine years, mainly
responsible for credit management. He also pursued investment
management in various institutions in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Zhang holds a Master’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Wang San Long, aged 66, was appointed as a Director in May
2008. Mr. Wang has more than thirty years of experience in the
ship-building industry. He is a senior engineer and was graduated
from ship-building department of Huazhong Institute of Science
and Technology (now known as Huazhong University of Science
and Technology). Mr. Wang is a member of Changjiang Committee
in China Classification Society. He is also a member of Teaching
Guidance Committee of Ship Engineering Department in Jiujiang
Vocational and Technical College.

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 48, was appointed as a Director in September
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma in Business Administration
from Singapore Institute of Management and a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr.
Liu is also a Certified Dealmaker endorsed by the China Mergers &
Acquisition Association. Mr. Liu has nearly 20 years’ experience in
the investment industry. He held senior positions in brokerage firm,
investment companies and private equity management companies
and has extensive experience in corporate finance matters, such
as corporate management, risks management, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate advisory and initial public offering in the
People’s Republic of China.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 69, was appointed as a Director in
September 2007 and was re-designated as the non-executive
Director and Honorary Chairman of the Group in June 2015.
Mr. Chau graduated from Xiamen University majoring in Chinese
language and literature. Mr. Chau has been an executive director
of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive director of Good Resources Limited, Come Sure Group
(Holdings) Limited and Redco Properties Group Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
above, Mr. Chau did not hold any directorship in other public

Save as disclosed

companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas over the last three years. Mr.
Chau is currently a member of the Chinese People Political
Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China and
holds the office of its deputy officer of the Social and Legal Affairs
Committee. He is also the vice chairman of Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Associations. Mr. Chau was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Hong Kong Government of Special Administration
Region in 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bai He, aged 54, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2008. Mr. Hu was graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics. He is a senior accountant,
certified public accountant, certified public valuer and certified
tax agent in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
has extensive experience in finance and accounting field. Mr.
Hu is currently the general manager of Peking Certified Public
Accountants. Before he joined Peking Certified Public Accountants
in 1993, he has had over seven years working experience with
Ministry of Finance of the PRC. Mr. Hu has been an independent
non-executive director of City e-Solutions Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since August 2016.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hu did not hold any directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the last three
years.
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Ms. Xiang Siying, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2008. Ms. Xiang holds an MBA
degree from the London Business School. She has extensive
experience in all sectors of corporate finance, restructuring and
merge and acquisitions practice. From 2010 to April 2016, Ms.
Xiang was an executive director of CDH Investments, a leading
private equity firm in China. Prior to joining CDH. She had worked
for China International Capital Corporation Limited since returning
to China in early 2004. Before that Ms. Xiang had long career with
International Finance Corporation, the private investment arm of
the World Bank Group, in Washington, United States of America.
Ms. Xiang is currently an independent non-executive director of
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Xiang did not hold any directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

Ms. Xiang Ying, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2009. Ms. Xiang was graduated and
obtained her Bachelor's degree in economics from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Ms. Xiang is a qualified lawyer
and a certified public accountant in the People’s Republic of
China. She also holds qualifications to act as a senior lecturer in
Economic Law. Ms. Xiang has significant experience in the fields of
mergers and acquisitions, financial services and risk management.
During the period from 31 August 2011 to 25 November 2012,
she was appointed as an independent director of Anxin Trust &
Investment Co. Ltd., the shares of which are listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Ms. Xiang was an independent director of
Guangdong Sky Dragon Ink Group Co. Ltd from July 2010 to July
2013, the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xiang did not hold any directorship
in other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERROREBROTEEZ
UNDERLYING SHARES R

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors in the share R-ZE—RE+_A=+—H EEHELRFA
capital of the Company or its associated corporations, as defined s H A (FEREHFKEEGOIEXVED)
in Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required AR AN AR 2 #E 55 1 RO SR AL 75 35 K B E &I 5835215
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or MEARBBFEZERLMA  sikiE EHET
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange ANBBETESFR S 2ZESFA ([HZ%£5FA]])
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors SITHGRR B REERZPAAT

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in ordinary shares of the company (i) REQBIEERZER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares the issued

Name Long/Short position Capacity held shares held

BEz HBEERTRHAZ
®E He/%e £ EBERHE BHEAL

Li Ming (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 895,927,954 7.46%

8 (HI3EL) 55} EafEA

Long position Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 310,940,000 2.59%

A REEEER (H32)

Long position Beneficial owner and Interest of 1,206,867,954 10.05%
controlled corporation

j58) BB ARZEH ZEER

Zhang Shi Hong (Note 3) Long position Beneficial owner 31,140,000 0.26%

wT& (HF3) 55 EafEA

Note 1: Mr. Li Ming is an executive director of the Company. MIEEl . FRREAEABARRG ZHRITES-

Note 2: These shares are held by Lead Dragon Limited, a company MsE2 © % E5 W15 HELead Dragon Limited# %5 @ 22 A A
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share REBELZBESEMA - 250 #ITRA
capital is solely and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Ming. AZHEELHERHER-

Note 3: Mr. Zhang Shi Hong is an executive director of the Company. M3 : REREEBEARRZHITES
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(ii) Rights to acquire shares in the Company (i) BEXAQTRKRGD ZER
RZE—RF+ZA=+—HB KRQFAE
EHECRECERE BEUREERR
AT

As at 31 December 2016, the directors of the Company
had interests in share options to subscribe for shares in the
Company granted as follows:

Number of
ordinary shares

Company/Name of

Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest Exercise price

g AQE/HELERE BERUE EEREAE TEE

Chau On Ta Yuen Company Personal interest (Note 1) 4,743,000 HK$5.693

A%ER v/ AR (FFL) 5.693% 1T

Company Personal interest (Note 3) 45,000,000 HK$0.211

YN B AR (PH3E3) 021187T

Zhang Shi Hong Company Personal interest (Note 1) 1,581,000 HK$5.693

RLR Vi N/NG] AR (FF) 5.693% T

Company Personal interest (Note 3) 16,000,000 HK$0.211

YN AR (HF3) 02115t

Company Personal interest (Note 4) 90,000,000 HK$0.28

/N {8 AR (FiaEd) 0.287% 7L

Wang San Long Company Personal interest (Note 2) 4,110,600 HK$4.523

I=H Vi /N) AR (HFE2) 45235 T

Company Personal interest (Note 3) 16,000,000 HK$0.211

Y /NG (B AR (F3E3) 021157t

Li Ming Company Personal interest (Note 4) 70,000,000 HK$0.28

FH y/N] AR (H3E4) 0.28% 7T

Liu Jin Company Personal interest (Note 4) 110,000,000 HK$0.28

B /N {8 AHER (F3E4) 0.28%7T

Hu Bai He Company Personal interest (Note 3) 1,000,000 HK$0.211

iliskil /N (B AR (f3E3) 021187t

Xiang Siying Company Personal interest (Note 3) 1,000,000 HK$0.211

BRR AR7 EAREz (H5E3) 02118t

Xiang Ying Company Personal interest (Note 3) 1,000,000 HK$0.211

mE VNG (B AR (F3E3) 02113 7T
Notes: B2

1. Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the options 1. ZERME B ARBEARRTR E—FHA

granted on 5 March 2008 under the share option scheme of the Z+E RN ERETER ENF=A

Company adopted on 27 May 2002.

Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the options
granted on 7 May 2008 under the 2002 Scheme.

Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the
options granted on 7 May 2014 under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 June 2012.

Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the options
granted on 4 November 2015 under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 June 2012.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
their associates had any personal, family, corporate or other
interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or

any of its associated corporations.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEEs ued g sl e

ZERGBEABRE-_ST_FTER -2
NERRLBRREZBRE Z BRI

ZEBRNEE ARBARTAR-E——FKA
ZtHEARMZBRES SR -_F-HFRA
T RR 2 B2 ERE R -

ZEBRNEEARBARTAR-E——F<A
ZtHEARMCBREA R T -HF+—
AR B2 BB 2 AE R -

BAREMBEEEN HEESHEBRE
AR R RS E AT EEOAE 2 AR
EFPHRAEAEA KK AR EAM

e

MRS



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
27 May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. The term of 2002 Scheme is ten
years from its date of adoption. It has expired on 26 May 2012. As
at 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for 46,449,780 shares
were granted but not yet exercised under the 2002 Scheme. These
options shall remain exercisable pursuant to the 2002 Scheme.
At the Company’ annual general meeting held on 27 June 2012,
an ordinary resolution was proposed to approve the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which has taken
effect after the resolution was passed and the Company obtained
the listing approval granted by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. As at 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for
876,000,000 shares were granted but not yet exercised under the
2012 Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the information disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had material interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensations.
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EFERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, save as disclosed below, no persons, not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register (the “Register”) maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. Other than as
disclosed below, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as at 31 December 2016.

FERR

RZE-—ARE+_A=1+—8B B TXHARESE
Sh EAL GERARRERHERTRAR)R
AR B KR ABRER D HE A RSN A R BRI
EFMERPIEIHREFEZELH (&
M) AZERIORE BT XAREEIN K
REVEEEBAN T —R"F+-_A=+—H
ARRERA RARRR G 2 AR ETORE -

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued

Long/Short underlying share shares held at

Name position Nature of Interests held 31 December 2015

ER=ZE-1F

+=A=+-8

#e/ BEZ FEERTROZ

£ KB BEHE HERGHE BRE L

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
(Note 1) ) REsEEER

hRESRERRETAA Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
(Br&xl) ) RS EEER

China Construction Bank Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
Corporation (Note 1) e R EE R

FEEZBRITRNERAF Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
(P&EL) ) R EEER

CCB International Group Holdings Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
Limited (Note 1) HE Rt AEER

BITRREEZERER A Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
(PaE1) KB REHEE R

CCB Financial Holdings Limited Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
(Note 1) e REHEE R

BTeRERERLH Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
(P&E1) KB R EE R

CCB International (Holdings) Limited Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
(Note 1) e REHEE R

RIRER (2R BRAAF Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
ira)) KB REHEEER

CCBI Investments Limited (Note 1) Long Interest of controlled corporation 806,126,561 6.72%
CCBI Investments Limited ( Fif5F1) e REFEEER

Short Interest of controlled corporation 1,491,334,138 12.42%
KB R EEER
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued

Long/Short underlying share shares held at

Name position Nature of Interests held 31 December 2015

ER-E-1F

tZA=t-H

#e/ BEZ BEERTRHZ

8 KE ERE HERGHE BHAES

Prosper Talent Limited (Note 1) Long Beneficial owner 806,126,561 6.72%
Prosper Talent Limited (P 3F1) e EafBA

Short Beneficial owner 1,491,334,138 12.42%
KE ExBAA

Macquarie Group Limited Long Beneficial owner 2,216,670,000 18.47%
Macquarie Group Limited e EalBA

Mr. Li Ming (Note 2) Long Beneficial owner 895,927,954 7.46%
FHEE (H:2) e ExBAA

Notes =3
(1): Prosper Talent Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by CCBI Investments (1) : Prosper Talent LimitedfACCBI Investments Limited® &

Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International
(Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which is
wholly and beneficially owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which
in turn is owned as to approximately 57.26% by Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. Therefore, the aforesaid companies were deemed to be interested in the
same 806,126,561 shares and 1,491,334,138 short position in shares of the
Company directly held by Prosper Talent Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Li Ming’s interest is also disclosed in the above section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employee of the Company is set up

by the executive directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications

and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by

the Board of Directors, having regard to their responsibility to the

Company, their qualifications, experiences and past remuneration,

the Company’s performance and current market conditions. The

Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in

Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

E25 B - MCCBI Investments Limited i 2 SR BIRR (32
B)BRARZER =R - RIRER (ER) BRAA
HETEREEERARARZEESHEA  METH
BREBIZERARATHPEZRRITROBRARZ
BEERMEA  MPEERIBITRNHER AR EF RES
REARE TR REANST.26% M - Al RIBEH
N ERE RIS XVER » it B4 4R A 52 B Prosper Talent
Limited B #2158 2 78 /A 71806,126,56 1 A& Ak 17 R #E A 42
75 1,491,334, 1388 IR I R B A B

(2): FHEEZEZTN EX [ESRED REMRD %
Bt —EhRE-

B B

ARBRBZHMBRIIAMTESTAERZS
B BERENMENRELERITE -

ARRIEZZHFHAEFTE2REFNARFZ
BE REZEE KRMBEzHME  ARAR
Al 2RI RIRITHIMIRTE AN A7) 2 BRI A
B8 ERUEERAERER 25 B - &RT
B FHBENE AW B RKRM 42 -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted
for 24% and 65%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchase for
the year.

The aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers taken together
accounted for 24% and 59%, respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has an interest in any of
the Group's largest supplier and customer.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Further
information on the Company’s corporate governance practice is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 33.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competed or was likely to compete either
directly or indirectly with business of the Group during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there was sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as ZHONGLEI
(HK) CPA Company Limited) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 17 January 2012. The financial statements had been
audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LI Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ENR S

/ HE(EB)EHAEEFAGRELE
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
FREIKERRATF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 86 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB EN R S

RESREE
(a) EMEBHWE HERKNREN

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

(a) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales

and amounts due to customers for contract
work of shipbuilding business

Included in the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016 was revenue of approximately
HK$154,220,000 from shipbuilding business mainly in
relation to building ten vessels for the Group’s customers.
Revenue had been recognised by the Group based on
the percentage of completion. As set out in Notes 2 and
31 to the consolidated financial statements, due to delays
in shipbuilding production schedules, three customers
relating to seven vessels (collectively referred to as the
“Three Customers”), in accordance with the relevant
shipbuilding contracts, have the rights to issue rescission
notices to the Group if the Three Customers cannot receive
the vessels on or before the agreed vessels delivery dates
(i.e. June 2016 to March 2017), in which approximately
HK$68,518,000 and HK$155,226,000 of revenue and cost
of sales respectively, related to these seven vessels, have
been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016. If
the Three Customers issue such a notice to the Group, the
Group is required to return all of the payments received so
far from the Three Customers, amounting to an aggregate
amount of approximately USD109,466,000 (equivalent to
HK$848,362,000) and to pay interests on such amount
calculated in accordance with the relevant shipbuilding
contracts (the “Interests”). The management of the Group
have been in negotiation with the Three Customers since
June 2016. Up to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the management of the
Group have not yet reached any formal agreements with the
Three Customers. Taking into account the specific facts and
circumstances, it was uncertain whether or not the Three
Customers will exercise their rights to issue the rescission
notice to the Group and to require the Group to repay all
the payments made to the Group. We were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence we consider necessary
in order to assess whether the related revenue and cost of
sales should be reversed.

EFENIEREBEZEHERE

EEBEHE_ZT—R"F+A=+—H
HFEEMNREEREEER THMME &
EERFPMIILEMERELEZRELD
154,220,000/ 7w BEERETIASD
L R ER o AR A B IS R M 2 &% 31
Fraf - B EMETEIMER B &M
M =28, (IBAI=Z&TF, MK
BRI ERMMZNBEH (BT —XF
NAZZZE—+F = A) sk Z AT E A
(BE2—Z—R"F+A=1+—HIFE
Btz MR s RS E R A S B
#768,518,0007% JT 12 155,226,000/ JT) *
Bl=25FEERBABAEMENR B
EEBLREBN -N=2FFH &%
ERHAERN BSEEBAREHLES
BIER=RF P WK FTA R HETH
109,466,000 7T (FHE 72 49848,362,0007%
o) WA ERIEZ N IRIEAERENE
HABEBNRE(TFE]) - BZT—RER
A BEBEEREEHHR-FEPE
TEE -BEGEUWBRREEERHZ
B BXENEBEMARE=-FZFFE
BAEMIER B - CEREAETERIER
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PBETEERRAT F{ 2016

81



82

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ENR S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales

and amounts due to customers for contract
work of shipbuilding business (Continued)

Similarly, if the abovementioned revenue and cost of
sales were reversed, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we consider necessary as to
what the net realisable value of the work in progress vessels
would be. Further, the Group had not recognised any
additional penalty to be incurred due to the late delivery
after 31 December 2016 nor recognised any Interests as
the management of the Group believes that these amounts
cannot be reliably measured taking into account the fact that
the management of the Group is still in negotiation with the
Three Customers.

There were no other alternative audit procedures that we
could carry out to determine whether the related revenue
and cost of sales should be reversed and the balance of
the amounts due to customers for contract work as at 31
December 2016 of approximately HK$17,177,000 were fairly
stated, which could have consequential effect on net current
liabilities and net liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2016 and the loss for the year then ended.

Any adjustment to revenue, cost of sales, amounts due to
customers for contract work and additional provision for
Interests and foreseeable loss found to be necessary would
affect the Group’s net liabilities as at 31 December 2016
and the Group's loss for the year then ended and related
disclosures to the consolidated financial statements.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RESREE (H)

(@) EMFEBHOWE HERERE

NEFENIRREZEERS
(%)

Rl Hh + fi) = dt LS e K 8 5 R AR M B - 3R
MEZESEMRAEVEZZDRIGESE
R - MFEELVMZTﬁﬁ%EO%
Gh. BEBEABRAERNRZ-Z— F+=
A=T—HBzBEBRXNMKETEEZE
MR R EREMFE - REAZ &%
EEBERAE ERHNTEH=-FEFE
B ZEREERUSFE

BPEEIRDEMEREZEF UEE
EEWZ § R AHER A RS E T AR R
T-RF+ZA=+— EIE@}*H%}E/\
#ﬁﬂ“*hlﬁm & 82 4917,177,000/8 7T =
RN FiITAR Al R g 4 a%lﬁ/\_
g—/\i—f— A=+—HMRBaREFE
MBEFRALRBEZRALFENERE
EHEERE-

Tk HEXRA BNEFPANTRE
%ﬂIELX&%'J5&7%%%%2%@\\%1&%
BERE HEaTrE BRER_T—RF
TZA=t—BHEEFHE E?K@
EZBILFENEBIALGS M BERERE
MR -



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB EN R S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION REEREXE (EF)

(CONTINUED)
FRGEREERCERELXTR

(b) Material fundamental uncertainties relating to  (b)

going concern basis

As set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the Group incurred a
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$353,156,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 and, as of that date, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$1,090,208,000 and the Group had net liabilities of
approximately HK$604,752,000. Also, as mentioned in
point (a) above, it was highly uncertain whether the Three

R E &

B BB LR EERERAE 85
—E-RE+ZA=+—HILLFEE B
SEELE ERREAABRGFABRLY
353,156,000/ T  BEIZEZ B &EXEE
mENBEBIBE RS EE#1,090,208,000
BT A 8% 15 B fE)F F 49604,752,000/8
TCe UbSh W EX ()BTl - =R E PR
BEITHEREN Zk ERFAEER &5H
ESNE2MFAETAE - ZFERBET

Customers will exercise their rights to require the Company to GHEERTHBPAZTRY BES5BEIFE
repay all the payments made to the Group. These conditions KERENEEERER At B%EX

indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial

BAIAEREEBBIETERELEENRE
BHAE-

HANER A W IS RaR M R 2P B - 47 6 B 7S

statements, the consolidated financial statements have been WK BERRES ([EFF))REFEL
prepared by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) BEERS HAERUEURR BHEEER
on a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent TBHRKRESZEEN - ERN BEXEHERRT

on the Group's ability to obtain sufficient future funding. Due
to the uncertainty of the Group’s ability to maintain adequate
future cash flows, we were unable to ascertain whether
the assumptions made by the Directors in preparing the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
are proper and appropriate.

RAKRREREZENFETNRARE
B REREEERRFELEEERE
HEMBHRRBETAFZBRRECBZ
=RRE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ENR S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Material fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern basis (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively, write-down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which may arise. The consolidated financial statements
have not incorporated any of these adjustments. However,
the uncertainty surrounding the Group’s future cash
flows raises significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation, but we are unable to
obtain adequate evidence concerning the Group’s ability
to meet any financial obligations as and when they fall due
and we consider that this material uncertainty relating to
going concern basis and their cumulative effect on the
consolidated financial statements is so extreme that we have
disclaimed our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act and Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: PO5256

Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

30 March 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

eI REMEBRIER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHBT FHETT
Revenue W zs 8 417,313 157,635
Cost of sales 5 A (447,796) (315,493)
Gross loss EE (30,483) (157,858)
Other income H A Ug A 9 15,429 4,643
Other gains and losses Hith Us %5 & fE5 18 10 (25,102) (15,564)
Change in fair value of contingent ER S AREZ
consideration payable NEEES 38 (1,888) 25,478
Change in fair value of investments held BIEEEREZ
for trading NEEES) 225 (1,684)
Change in fair value of convertible FERTAI MR ES 2
bonds payable NF{EE 35 55,989 (35,990)
Change in fair value of investment properties &% ~ A F{E & 18 211 -
Loss on settlement of loan by issuance BITRMVEBEERZ
of shares 18 34(d) - (10,755)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HAT (11,019) (3,163)
Administrative expenses THEX (299,920) (88,923)
Share-based payments expenses VARR D BEME 2 X 42 - (49,194)
Finance costs B E R A 11 (136,324) (201,847)
Share of profit of associates DALEE &R A Z S F 22 14,277 8,791
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures DMEAEREZRF
(E518) 23 52,206 (1,054)
Loss before tax BREi AT E5 1B (366,399) (527,120)
Income tax credit PRSI % 12 7,173 26,307
Loss for the year REEFEE 13 (359,226) (500,813)
Other comprehensive income (expenses): HMZEWKA (BIx%) :
ltems that may be reclassified HETHEEHRIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BREZHER:
Exchange differences arising on translating & GINEREEEL 2
foreign operations fENZR 77,471 46,961
Share of translation reserve of associates DIEEE N B 2 REFEE (734) (5,998)
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures Db & &2 7 B E (2,677) (30,291)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FAEMEEBA
net of income tax HBRFTSH 74,060 10,672
Total comprehensive expenses FAEHBAZHAE
for the year (285,166) (490,141)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mMeERREMEEWNEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to: FE(R S A E1E
— Owners of the Company . /NEIE Z=IN (353,156) (500,799)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (6,070) (14)
(359,226) (500,813)
Total comprehensive expenses FE(EEMEMA 85
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S WNEGIE PN (278,338) (490,111)
— Non-controlling interests — PR i (6,828) (30)
(285,166) (490,141)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted —HEARRE#E 16 (HK$0.03# T) | (HK$0.05% 7T)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

%?%EZ%%M?R%’&%

At 31 December 2016 R =&

—RNE+ZA=1+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment RN 17 195,022 315,611
Investment properties mEYE 18 15,745 -
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion B ERIE—FER D 19 283,724 301,610
Goodwill EES 20 123,574 188,057
Intangible assets wmILEE 21 205,840 245 680
Interests in associates TSN o 22 192,706 93,410
Interests in joint ventures REeEE Q%ZTE/\ 23 527,461 472,118
Trade receivables — non-current portion B o RWHIE—ERBED 25 683 622
Deposits — non-current portion GR—IERBE D 25 66,711 -
Amount due from an associate JE U — FET B R R) B
— non-current portion —IEREH S 22 2,775 -
Finance lease receivables FEUS b & M & 58
— non-current portion —3ERENEB D 27 - 13,028
Restricted cash SIRHIR S 35(d) 94,000 -
Pledged bank deposits — non-current portion = # 4R 1717 2X
—FERBEE S 28 - 6,962
Deferred tax asset RIETHIEE E 36 120 -
1,708,361 1,637,098
CURRENT ASSETS nEEE
Inventories FE 24 53,696 101,571
Trade receivables 2 5 EE 25 58,793 38,157
Other receivables H fth fE Y 5018 25 299,260 200,743
Prepayment SEENE ] 25 426,389 174,930
Amount due from an associate B Uk — e Bt i~ B3R IR 22 4,440 -
Prepaid lease payments TR ERE 19 6,873 7,231
Investments held for trading BEBEZRE 26 2,177 1,952
Finance lease receivables & Uk @ é{fﬂ‘%?ﬁ\ 27 17,833 15,390
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 28 - 74,571
Bank balances and cash IRITEMR MRS 28 101,785 70,181
971,246 684,726
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade, bills and other payables 25 EiE &E{ﬂzrﬁ 30 411,227 499,258
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEF A ’JI%‘“ KT 31 17,177 272,647
Amounts due to related parties & 1<t 75 A Bt /TAIE 46 425 4,163
Amounts due to directors fﬁ%%m 46 1,521 597
Borrowings g 32 1,049,146 953,153
Contingent consideration payable TS ARE 38 317,628 -
Amount due to an associate JEAS — a1 & A B FR08 22 877 -
Provision for warranty 1R B 33 3,357 -
Convertible bonds payables B~ AT $R % (E 35 256,032 248 609
Tax liabilities MIERE 4,064 112
2,061,454 1,978,539
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (1,090,208) (1,293,813)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES REERRBAMR 618,153 343,285
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
IR BN IR ER SR

At 31 December 2016 R —E—X<&FE+ =B =+—H

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital fi&% AR 34 600,138 597,899
Reserves B (1,244,602) (985,315)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 &1#EH AFERREZ (644,464) (387,416)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R E = 37 39,712 644
TOTAL DEFICITS #8154t (604,752) (386,772)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables — non-current portion EMEMFE-ERDHS 30 4,937 -
Borrowings — non-current portion BEE-EREI D 32 1,039,050 253,986
Convertible bonds payables JER TR ES
— non-current portion —3EREE D 35 92,847 45,123
Contingent consideration payables JERTSARE 38 - 315,740
Deferred tax liabilities FEEMIEEE 36 86,071 115,208
1,222,905 730,057
618,153 343,285

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 287 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Ming
Z 8
Director

EE

ZHANG Shi Hong
Rt &
Director

E=x

BEEgR Tt F=A=THBBEREET
EHNFELENB7TA 27 MBHK X h T
EERRBERE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IRGESBIHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAEEAER
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share  Contributed Statutory Other ~ Translation options bonds  Accumulated controlling
capial premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve |osses Total interests Total
BEDS
RE RGEE  AABR  ERHEE  ERSE AERE BRERE BHRE  ZHEE B FERER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i i T Tt Fitr Fitn Tt T Thn Thr T Fir
(Note 34) (Notea) — (Note ) (Note 35)
(Ht34) (Wita)  (Wifb) (H7335)
At 1 January 2015 ®=%-1%-f-A 376,536 875349 3368411 34,824 - 98138 85,8% 156,621 (5,774013)  (7782718) - (778278)
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - - - - (500799 (500799) (14)  (500813)
Other comprehensive income Ee2ENE (%)
(expenses):
ltems that may be reclassified ERugEis Bz
subsequently to proft or loss: B@lBE:
Exchange diferences arisingon ~~ EENEBRELZ
translating foreign operations ERZE - - - - - 46977 - - - 46977 (16) 4691
Share of translafion reserve of AE-BBERAL
associates hEGE - - - - - (5,99) - - - (599) - (599)
Share of translafion reserve of PERELECAERRE
Joint ventures - - - - - (30,291) - - - (30,291) - (30,291)
Other comprehensive income REEEM 2 NS
for the year, net of income tax (RRFEH) - - - - - 10688 - - - 10688 (16) 10672
Total comprehensive income rEE2ENE
(expenses) for the year (%)% - - - - - 10,688 - - (500799  (490,111) (30 (490141
Recogniton of equity component of BTk fEH 2
convertible bonds payable (Note 35) B85 (H:#35) - - - - - - - 20518 - 20518 - 20518
Issuance of shares upon RERTARESVE
conversion of CBVI Bk 166500 530,707 - - - - - (145278) - 5199 - 55199
Issuance of shares upon RERTHRERVIN
conversion of CBVII Bk 15,000 47124 - - - - - (20,518) - 41,606 - 41,606
Issuance of shares for the acquisition  E{TR (T MK B LA
of subsidiaries 12975 53,198 - - - - - - - 66,173 674 66,847
Issuance of share for setflement of ~ E{TRANEEER
loans 26888 123,685 - - - - - - - 150573 - 150573
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREE RN A
share-based payments (Note 42) #2835 (Hi42) - - - - - - 49,194 - - 49,194 - 19194
Share of other reserve of associates  AEBFE R A Kt - - - - 980 - - - - 90 - 90
Transfer 2% - - - % - - - - (%) - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=1-H 597899 1630063 3368411 34920 980 108826 135,050 11343 (6274908)  (387416) 644 (386,772)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO ERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & —

Z-RF+ZRA=+—-RIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARERAER
Share ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Statutory Other ~ Translation options bonds  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TR
Bx  RGEE AABR  iRRE  RUEE RERE BRERE G5  HEE @i FBRER Eh
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T TER TER TR T T T T T T
(Note 34) (Note ) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note 35)
(K#t34) (Wda)  (WdEs)  (Hie) (##35)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7E-F-H 597,899 1,630,063 3,368,411 34,920 980 108826 135,050 11,343 (6,274,908)  (387,416) 644 (386,772)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (353,156) (353,156)  (6,070) (359,226)
Other comprehensive income Eh2EhE
(expenses): (F%):
Items that may be reclassified £ ff HEHSEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B&lER:
Exchange differences arsngon BB EBBEL Y
translating foreign operations ERZE - - - - - 78229 - - - 7829 (758) 77471
Share of translation reserve HMEBEREZ
of associates BERE - - - - - (734) - - - (734) - (734)
Share of translation reserve HERELEL
of joint ventures BERE - - - - - (2,677) - - - (2,677) - (2,677)
Other comprehensive income TEEAM2ENE
for the year, net of income tax (MBEEH) - - - - - 74818 - - - 74818 (758) 74,060
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE
(expenses) for the year (Fx)es - - - - - 74,818 - - (353,156) (278,338) (6,828)  (285,166)
Deemed disposal of n partial interest B e ER-BHBATZ
in a subsidiary without losing BORBETAEEGE
of control (Note 50) - - - - 5,163 - - - - 5,163 44,786 49,949
Issuance of shares upon exercise  EREETERETRG
of share options (Note 42) (Hrzt40) 2,000 11,580 - - - - (5,140) - - 8,440 - 8,440
Issuance of shares upon conversion  INE R A AR EHIX
of CBIX BRIRMA 239 347 - - - - - - - 586 - 586
Capial contribution from a FERBER -
non-controling shareholderinte ~~ FEBATLE
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 1,110 1,110
Share of other resenve of associates  HMEEFE R A ke - - - - 1,598 - - - - 1,598 - 1,598
Share of other resenve AERERAZERER
of joint ventures - - - - 5,503 - - - - 5,503 - 5,503
Transfer By - - - 7,443 - - - - (7,443) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"FT-A=1+-R 600,138 1,641,990 3368411 42,363 13244 183644 129910 11,343 (6,635,507)  (644,464) 39712 (604,752)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IRGESBIHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

There were a group reorganisation in 2001 and share consolidation in 2005
and 2006, the aggregate amount of approximately HK$3,368,411,000 was
recorded in contributed surplus.

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the companies established in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their net
profit before taxation, as determined under the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations, to statutory reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The transfer to this statutory reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to equity owners. Statutory reserve can be used to
offset previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation. The companies established in PRC are also required to maintain a
staff welfare and incentive bonus fund, while the amount and allocation basis
are decided by the enterprise.

Other reserve represent the difference between the cash consideration
received and the carrying value of net assets being deemed disposed of to
non-controlling interests resulted from the change in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control over that
subsidiary.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

moREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before tax B 4 Al &5 18 (366,399) (527,120)
Adjustments for: AT 2
Share of profit of associates bax ik kNl il (14,277) (8,791)
Share of (profit) loss of joint ventures nhaErFEs (al)EiE (52,206) 1,054
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- BENEEZITE 52,933 58,209
Change in fair value of investments BHIEEBEREZ N FEES)
held for trading (225) 1,684
Change in fair value of contingent ERSRAREB 2 AFEE
consideration payables 1,888 (25,478)
Change in fair value of investment properties WEWMEZ N EE (211) -
Loss on settlement of loan by issuance BITRMVEEERZEE
of shares - 10,755
Share-based payments expenses VAR ) A 5 HE 2 AT R 2 - 49,194
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BB REE 2 W
plant and equipment (463) (1,743)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds JER IR EE A T EE
payable (55,989) 35,990
Loss on written-off of property, WEEME B LEE BB
plant and equipment 36 9
Interest income B A (1,099) (2,007)
Finance costs B E R A 136,324 201,847
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE R E BB 7,332 7,231
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 39,840 3,320
Impairment loss recognised in respect of YD - R K 3% i AR
property, plant and equipment BB E 66,828 -
Impairment loss recognised TR MER ZREEBE
in respect of goodwill 64,483 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LB T & FRIE T R
prepaid lease payments EEE 18,766 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in 0] L S F S R W E
respect of finance lease receivables MiER 2 RIEEE - (70)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BB Z FEWGRIA M fER
trade receivables BIEBE 844 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Tt EL b B YR 5K TR 1M RE AR
other receivables B E 18 9,177 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IREREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Operating cash flows before movements in R EEESEBA 2
working capital KEBEERE (92,418) (195,916)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERL (3Ehm) 41,850 (45,588)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B 5 WA (38 ) 7 (40,228) 41,796
(Increase) decrease in deposits and other o K E b FEUEIE
receivables (18 hn) w4 (186,313) 73,681
Increase in prepayment TR FRIELE AN (261,836) (91,951)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FE UL Bh & M & FRIE R D 8,899 6,960
Decrease in amounts due to related parties B 5 BB A £ 3R R D (3,491) (20,652)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to directors = 2 IEE 40 (L) 959 (2,003)
Decrease in trade, bills and other payables B 5 FB R HEAMENRIER D (58,414) (96,059)
Increase (decrease) in provision for warranty REBEIZM CRD) 3,539 (134)
Decrease in amounts due to customers JERT = P& #) T2 IR R
for contract work (239,296) (50,089)
Increase in amounts due from an associate B 2 N ) JE A FRIE A8 0 (4,440) -
Increase in amount due to an associate FET B & A B SRIB I N 877 -
Cash used in operations KEMARS (830,312) (379,955)
Tax paid B FIA (6,248) (283)
Interest received B U F B 1,099 2,007
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RK&EKMARSFHE (835,461) (378,231)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WEREH (42,356) (5,998)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMNHEENE (11,987) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEFRITFIORD 76,696 33,565
Net cash outflow on capital injection/ EE BB E AR
acquisition of associates R F58 (84,155) (31,016)
Net cash outflow on capital injection/ FEWBAEEY
acquisition of joint ventures REMLFRE (311) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERSEZ
plant and equipment FriS #0IE 1,197 1,921
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR 2 REMAFRE - 17,343
NET CASH (USED IN) REX®K (FTA) MG
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFHE (60,916) 15,815
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Mo IREMEIR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILtFE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RE X
Increase in amount due from an associate 2 N B FEAS FRIE LS N (2,775) -
Increase in restricted cash 2R IR 38N (94,000) -
Borrowings raised igEs 1,292,426 921,078
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (376,527) (609,057)
Interest paid BEATFIE (81,834) (162,987)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BT R EITIRMD
exercise of share options Z TS EIE 8,440 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BITRRRE S 2 FTSF0E 94,000 260,000
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest HEMRB AR D ERE
in a subsidiary without losing control 2 AT FUBET K AR 49,949 -
Capital injection from a non-controlling FEFERR IR R A —
shareholder into a subsidiary WEARNEE 1,110 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXLKAMEHESFEHE 890,789 409,034
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN REeERBELEEY CAD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S EE (5,588) 46,618
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HZEE2RERE
AT 1 JANUARY ZEY 70,181 13,934
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRFH g & 37,192 9,629
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=ZA=+—-8B=2
AT 31 DECEMBER ReRESZEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BIER1T4E R IR & 101,785 70,181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

GENERAL

China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively known as the “Group”) was
Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the
convenience of the shareholders as the Company’s shares
are listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have given
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group.

The Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$353,156,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and, as of that date,
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$1,090,208,000 and HK$604,752,000
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE =%

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In order to improve the Group’s operating and financial

position, the Directors have been implementing various

operating and financing measures as follows:

(a)

the Group has been actively diversifying into new cash
generating business, i.e. intelligent car parking and
automotive device business to reduce its business risk
and improve its quality of seeking new bank facilities.
At the same time, the Group has been improving its
production efficiency and tightening cost control in
shipbuilding business so as to reduce unnecessary
expenditure;

the Group is in negotiation with banks to allow revolving
of loans upon their due dates when the same renewal
conditions entitling the past renewal are met;

the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions
such to obtain new borrowings or issue of new
convertible securities;

the Group is seeking assistance from local government;
and

the Group is in negotiation with its creditors to extend
payment due date.

R IS HRMIEE

—REFTZA=Z+—BIEFE

REMBHRREREE (F)

B EAREE Y HE

HiE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

MBI  EE—
TATREEENGEE:

AEB-BERGBBERREMNRSELR
B (BBEBEFEERTEETER) - A
B ZE T R B I AR H B SR IRTT AR
B2 ER-HEUL R AKE IR
MRBLER B IR A ERCE R INEE

HIRCAS AR A NI B 7 FISE

AEE I ERITHEITHER  RERE
HER FEIETEEEN 2K
HHRRZENEEZBERT  BRHE

IR

AR IS B EE T TRER A EEL
MEESBRITHABRBES

AEBEIEMM A BFZ KB &
AEBFTEHEERABNERER
Eﬁo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =%

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2016,
the delay in production schedules (the “Delay”) has
impacted the Group’s shipbuilding business. Penalties
due to delay in delivery of vessels in accordance with the
related shipbuilding contracts amounting to HK$49,719,000
were recognised and included in cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Also, due to the Delay, there
were seven vessels (the “Seven Vessels”) which owned
by three customers (collectively referred to as the “Three
Customers”), in accordance with the relevant shipbuilding
contracts, the Three Customers have the rights to issue
rescission notices to the Group if the Three Customers
cannot receive the vessels on or before the agreed
vessels delivery dates (i.e. June 2016 to March 2017),
in accordance with the relevant shipbuilding contracts.
As a result, the Group may be required to return all of
the payments received so far from the Three Customers,
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
USD109,466,000 (equivalent to HK$848,362,000) and to
pay interests on such amounts calculated in accordance
with the relevant shipbuilding contracts to the customers (the
“Interests”).

The management of the Group have not reached any formal
agreement with the Three Customers as at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.
However, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group
could reach the agreement with the Three Customers and
they would not exercise their rights to issue the rescission
notices to the Group. Therefore, the Directors believe that it
is not necessary to provide any Interests nor to reverse the
related revenue and cost of sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

If the Three Customers exercise their rights to issue the
rescission notices to the Group, the Group might engage
legal counsels to defend the Group through arbitration
proceedings concerning about the validity of the rescission
notices issued by the Three Customers. If the result of the
arbitrations is unfavorable to the Group, the Group will be
required to return the abovementioned payments together
with the Interests to the Three Customers.

Also, the Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the measures as above, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due in the next twelve months from this consolidated
financial statements were authorised to issue. Accordingly,
the Directors believe that the consolidated financial
statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.
However, the eventual outcome is uncertain, should the
going concern assumption be inappropriate, and/or the
Group fails to reach agreement with the abovementioned
Three Customers and the Group is required to repay all
the payments paid to the Group as well as the Interests,
adjustments may have to be made to reverse related revenue
and cost of sales, to recognise impairment on work in
progress vessels, to provide for further foreseeable loss that
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins
on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments have
been applied by the Group for the first time in the current
year unless otherwise specified. The impacts of these
amendments are described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standard

(“HKAS") 1
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and related
Amendments!

Leases?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

K Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a)
classification and measurement of financial assets; b)
impairment of financial assets; and c) general hedge
accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and
measurement of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of each of the subsequent accounting periods. Debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Further, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative fair
value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon
derecognition of the investment.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

3. HRAFEREBRI 2 BRBIMK

BEED ([FRMBHREE
1) (&)

E MM B0 R 4 Rz # T RAEE
ABEEBMBEREER (F)

ERUBHE R EIS L BT A
EBH 5 RBIFOR 3 AaB I EES
EREE DB AR o) —
L2 HEL-

LER M BEENBRFTEMS &L
MR EERFEIRBRBBYBREER
FORBENNME CHERIMEEERKIR
BHERAL AT EFE - BESKIREH
RenE8NEBRAPABARENRS
MEVERAINAS R REEREH
MEMBEBRE — RN RESFHRIZ
BEAAGFE-BRARBRRAGORS
MEHEMBEEZEBRATHEZE
BTE URANGRARRINARE R
HABERSMNENET LA —KHRK
BREMEEBARAFEN R AG
E-FMAEMEBRELRBARENER
SRR A AR E - MHN RIEFEY
B s R £ - BRI EL TR A @ E
BREMZ2EWAZIBRAERE (LK
EEENEAEEMEREEREIFYBE
TREBEHTERNHARE) 2EER
FEZS M- RENBRAERREK
A EBUHERRER R A TFHEZS

TEEHHIRERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
is presented in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity to
assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise the
expected credit loss depending on the degree of the change
in credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

3. AT REBI 2BERME

HEED ([FRMBHREE
a1 (&)

EEMENRERZHT RES
AERBMBEREER (&)

EBUBHEEREIREHBTA (&
ETERE /R AFEFARZNUBEE
EME BERBEREERFHRRE B
BaBEzEERREPUARZEELTE
EP o eENEMEHABARZHR  FRIFR
Hip2HMRATERZEBEZEERRE
BREEBERIMABEAZETRER
BRERI® - MBREZEERRSIZK
RFEEPHHRIEEN N BEBEA -
REBEFBGHERIEIN FHER/EAF
B ARG 2 BRECEEAFEE
SENEEANER-

MMBEEZREMNS  BELS ST ER
F39%RA MREEAEEEBRENEM
- BRMBREENFIRREREHE
EEEEAGE BT RUEEEBRERX
REBERNEREARFGEMBEES D
MERARNEERRES YREER
RpgeiEuRRREERER-

B REDPEEREME  BAMHREE
AIFEISRIRE B AR IR E B &5t ERIFE395
AR =EHREEE - REEEME
WELERES  HEH T EFERZIHH
BRDSIAEREE LHRERANEGY
HFTAERNTARURNTEHPEE
REVIEE BUE B R R D FEEL - SN - X
BOMABIEER W LA TEBERE ] JRAIER
o ERRR IR BRETEPS - LA
BNEREERREREHRENRE

PBETEERRAT F{ 2016

103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =%

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of HKFRS 9. The Directors believe that it is impractical
to disclose the impact in these consolidated financial
statements until the Group has completed the assessment.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the clarification to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS 15
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the clarification to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of HKFRS 15. The Directors believe that it is impractical
to disclose the impact in these consolidated financial
statements until the Group has completed the assessment.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of operating
leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS 17, has
been replaced by a model which requires a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability to be recognised for all
leases by lessees except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets. Specifically, the right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest
and lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash
flows will also be affected as operating lease payments under
HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas,
under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be
split into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16. The Directors believe that it is impractical
to disclose the impact in these consolidated financial
statements until the Group has completed the assessment.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
The amendments clarify the following:

° In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow the
same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

° Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee's tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which is
then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a “net settlement feature”,
such an arrangement should be classified as equity-
settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based
payment would have been classified as equity-settled
had it not included the net settlement feature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
(Continued)

° A modification of a share-based payment that changes
the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled
should be accounted for as follows: the original liability
is derecognised. The equity-settled share-based
payment is recognised at the modification date fair
value of the equity instrument granted to the extent that
services have been rendered up to the modification
date. Any difference between the carrying amount of
the liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements or any withholding tax arrangements
with tax authorities in relation to share-based payments and
hence the Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =%

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the re-measurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The Group did not enter into these transactions in the
current year. The Directors anticipate that the application
of these amendments may have an impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in future periods should
such transactions arise.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to make disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities. The Directors do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide a number of guidance to help
entities assess and estimate whether sufficient taxable profits
will be available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference. The Directors do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CQO”").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

3. AT REBI 2BERME

HEED ([FRMBHREE
a1 (&)

© BB A3 R £ Rz #a] RAEHE
AERMBREER (&)
EBEEREI2N 5T KK E
P18 1B SR AR B A
REETARE—RIES BB ERT
fif R {5t R R SO SR i R A A AR
MAMAESZE - EFBABAREZE
SRR AEBN G S B REAE
RNSBEREATE -

FTESREE

RAMBERRDBIEFT LGS HEM
ZEBMBREERNRE MO A M
BHRAHAB L AES EHRA ([ ETR
A1) REBRAMEG] (TRBHERI) HEZ
ERWEEE

SR BB TR LANATE
Sh- 5 2 B R B TR 2 P AR 2
EEY (R TR -

B st PR — SRIRIR 08 R B IR TR B ¢
Bz ATFEMER -

PBETEERRAT F{ 2016

109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follow:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities including
structured entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

4. TEEFEE (&)

EBRE0t ()

BB ARMEEOKE (TR HE R ERS
REWE TR iE SR EEBTIAERE
H IR R 77 B (A0 ) X SRR AR
P B ml 85 B BE M P AE R ER B A
HIHFENE D E - WBEHIME
FrUCEE mI 38Rl B E K P A E R BRI B
Hig S EB P8R A(E T IRERE
BRWKE T PAESBERKRE T AER
BB It (nE) A FEMLEM
AL EY ISR EEERSREWE
Yo s o

BEKMERERANEREEREASR
LB (H B R EE AR I
A ) AR X V(B 3 FEH2E AR &5 B A5 1 U BB
HARAEEFENCERSELLIIFE -
AEERERFEEIZMIEHEE - HAi
BRIM IR R IR E A E (13
) 5m—BE B MG RE LR E AL

E-°

HAREREBAHTPERAERREX
AREBELRBELZEEXAE LARE
REWBAHQATFEAELRAREBLE
HPAEEREZL Mo -HRKEBEZR
FEZSHNTAERIERTENAE ]
SEPHE  WAREBELRERAE -FE
HIAEEER [FHEH] REUS AR R
HEESERBRAZENENMELZH
E- A ENTSEAKRERRES —F-

PBETEEBRAT F{ 2016

113



14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains controls), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purpose are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint ventures exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or joint ventures is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for rebates and
other similar allowances. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:

- Installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined as
the proportion of the total time expected to install that
has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

- servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service for
the product sold; and

- revenue from time and material contracts is recognised
at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct
expenses are incurred.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
for construction contract below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating lease is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at costs less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised accumulated impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
the relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the
date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligation.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivables as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract for shipbuilding
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, as determined
by reference to the standard hours incurred up to the end
of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
standard hours for each contract. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position, as a liability, as advances received.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under trade receivables.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading, (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which HKFRS
3 applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “change in fair value
of investments held for trading” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
7(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits, amounts
due from associates, restricted cash and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy
on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period of 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting
policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade and other receivable and finance lease
receivables is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written-off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis other than those financial liabilities classified
as at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) it is designated as at FVTPL or (ii)
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability other than contingent consideration
that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities
and is included in the “change in fair value of convertible
bonds payables” and “change in fair value of contingent
consideration payable” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
7(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables, borrowings, amounts due to related parties,
amount due to an associate and amounts due to directors
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain equity component

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain equity component (Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated loss.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds designated by the Group as fair value
through profit or loss

Some of the convertible bonds issued by the Company
are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each reporting dates
subsequent to initial recognition, the entire convertible
bonds is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i)  the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expired, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognisition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised into profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

4.

TESTHEE (#)

PR (&)

HNMB AR LB E AR ZRENRRE
**/JE%ZEE* AR ZERNE R EZH S

RAELEHRARE BREANEE R AE
%‘J%’*Bv%EEZ%é@'H%’*Bv%%EfET
AERARKR T EBORIRRIN - HZFRE
Nt an A RE 2 AT HRLES B E BB P AR IR AT
MBEEE ENARERA RAERN G
MR ERER M BERRER
] 855 SR 3 (o] By B R o

EERIAE E 2 BREENS RS HRER
il WH KR BE B A -5 ERTOE A
Yoo 2 BP ek B 0 B R R A o

ELERAEERABEDRERSHREDR
HRBEERMAOBRE (RBOE) - RBHR
BEEEXEESRBREERRRE-

ELERARBREEZAERRAKER
HINBEHRREREEEERAERE
BzAAMELEZREZE -

B MR R B SR IBR P ER AR
BEAREMmEEB SR EEN ERPER
ZIEEB RIBVEANRIRER B E 5 BN E
MRS EERNERPER WA
BEM OB e A AMmE BB A K
BB FANBE RS AEBKE O
ZEETHER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial assets), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based transactions are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from

those involving estimations (see below), that the

Directors have made in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies and that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

(i)

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the financial position and
financial performance of the Group indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. The assessment of
the going concern assumptions involves making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that the Group has ability
to continue as a going concern and the major
conditions that may cast significant doubt about
the going concern assumptions are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(ii) Classification of Zhoushan China Ocean
Investment Fund (“Zhoushan Investment
Fund”) and its subsidiary (collectively
known as the “Zhoushan Investment Fund
Group”) as joint ventures
Zhoushan Investment Fund is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC whose
legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangements and the
parties themselves. There are no contractual
arrangements or any other facts and
circumstances that indicate that the parties to
the joint arrangements have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangements. Furthermore, under the joint
venture agreement, the significant investment of
Zhoushan Investment Fund requires the consent
and approval from all joint venturers. Accordingly,
Zhoushan Investment Fund Group are classified
as joint ventures of the Group. Details of
the interests in the Zhoushan Investment
Fund Group are disclosed in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(iii) A subsidiary controlled by the Group

through contractual arrangement

Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Shipbuilding”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the contractual arrangements with Jiujiang
Jinfu Equipment Manufacturing Company
Limited (“Jiujiang Jinfu”), which enable Jiangxi
Shipbuilding to:

- exercise effective financial and operational
control over Jiujiang Jinfu;

- irrevocably exercise equity holders’ voting
rights of Jiujiang Jinfu;

- receive substantially all of the economic
returns generated by Jiujiang Jinfu by
way of business support, technical and
consulting services provided by Jiangxi
Shipbuilding; and

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right
to purchase the entire equity interest in
Jivjiang Jinfu from the respective equity
holders.

Even though the Group does not have any
equity interest in Jiujiang Jinfu, however through
a series of the contractual arrangements, the
Group has rights to the variable returns from
its involvement in Jiujiang Jinfu and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over Jiujiang Jinfu, and is considered to control
Jiujiang Jinfu. Consequently, the Company
regards Jiujiang Jinfu as the indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
has included the statement of financial position,
results and cash flows of Jiujiang Jinfu in the
consolidated financial statements.
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IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

(i) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and
profit or loss on each shipbuilding contract
according to management’s estimation of
the outcome of the contract as well as the
percentage of completion of shipbuilding works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract
revenue and costs for the shipbuilding contracts
according to the contract progress, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than
the estimates and this will affect the revenue and
profit or loss recognised. The Group also revisits
the estimate of contract profit or loss according
to the contract progress based on the information
available in the market. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, due to unforeseen
circumstances in certain shipbuilding contracts,
the Group recognised the foreseeable losses in
respect of certain shipbuilding contracts in cost
of sales as follows:
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Construction contracts (Continued)
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Profit recognition for construction
contracts

The Group commences recognition of profit for
each shipbuilding construction contract when
the percentage of completion exceeds 10% for
that vessel, assuming that the outcome of the
contract can be reasonably ascertained, as the
management considers that after this stage, the
total contract costs attributable to the contracts
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERASI AHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFABAERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(iii) Allowance for inventories (i) FE#E

150

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. The Group reviews
its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving and obsolete items. When the Group
identifies items of inventories which have a net
realisable value lower than its carrying amount,
the Group estimates the amount of written-off of
inventories to net realisable value is recognised
as an expense in the period the written-off occur.
During the year ended 31 December 2016,
no impairment (2015: Nil) were considered
necessary by the management of the Group
and at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$53,696,000 (2015: HK$101,571,000).

If the net realisable value of inventories of the
Group become lower than its carrying amount
subsequently, an additional allowance may be
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. EESRHE R
EZEERR (&)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFFTFHABERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(iv) W% BERREZIGE

(iv) Estimated impairment of property, plant

and equipment

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed annually and adjusted
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets whenever certain events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
determine the recoverable amount of the assets
based on the estimations of future expected
cash flows from the usage of these assets
and a suitable discount rate. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$66,828,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of
property, plant and equipment. Details of the
calculation on the recoverable amount for
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERASI AHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFABAERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

) BNHEEFBEZIGRE

(v) Estimated impairment of prepaid lease
payments

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments
is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

BENHERBEREE £EE
AT EMFRIBEREL  BRER
BRI BRI DR  RIZFEES
a2 RIS 365 & 2 R (8 12 &
TTREBEZNAE - AKEER

HEOE (THRRZ M FEEmiL R
BRRREHE) R2RARE
TS LIRE 2 AL S HEE
BEET%EEEL NS
fiai AT 2 2 BR K AR EI (B > RIIA]

may not be recoverable. The Group determined
the recoverable amounts of the assets based
on the comparison approach assuming sale
with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales

evidences as available in the relevant market. REEELREEE -REE_ZT
Where the recoverable amount is less than the —NF+ZA=+—HIFE"
carrying value, an impairment loss may arise. AEBERENHAERBRER

B ET1E4718,766,000/8 7T ( —
T-RF:E) ANMEERRA
ZA M mEBEAEHFBERER
fRA WIS IRAM L9

The Group has recognised an impairment loss
of approximately HK$18,766,000 (2015: Nil)
in respect of prepaid lease payments for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Details of
the calculation on the recoverable amount for
prepaid lease payments are disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. EESRHE R
EZEERR (&)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFFTFHABERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(vi) Estimated impairment of trade receivables (i) EZEWKIEREMEK

and other receivables

When there is objective evidence indicate that
the trade receivables and other receivables
may not be recovered, the Group estimates the
future cash flows to determine the impairment
loss. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including creditworthiness,
the past collection history of each customer/
debtor and their operation as a going concern.
If the financial conditions of customers/debtors
of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may required. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$844,000 (2015: Nil) and approximately
HK$9,177,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of
trade receivables and other receivables,
respectively and at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of trade receivables and other
receivables is approximately HK$59,476,000
(2015: HK$38,779,000) and approximately
HK$72,805,000 (2015: HK$32,385,000),
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERASI AHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFABAERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(vii) Provision for warranty (vii) RIGHEE

154

The Group provides the cost of warranties
granted on shipbuilding products and
undertakings to repair or replace items that do
not perform satisfactorily at the time revenues
for the related items are recognised. The
shipbuilding products are covered by warranty
for one year from the date of delivery. While
the Group has put in place product quality
programs and processes, warranty obligations
are affected by actual product failure rates and
by material usage and service delivery costs
incurred in correcting a product failure. The
warranty provision is established based upon
the best estimates at the amounts necessary
to settle future and existing claims on products
sold as at the end of the reporting period. While
management believes that the Group’s warranty
provisions are adequate and that the judgements
applied are appropriate, the ultimate cost of
product warranty could differ materially from the
estimates. When the actual cost of quality of the
products is lower than management originally
anticipated, the Group releases an appropriate
proportion of the provision, and if the cost of
quality is higher than anticipated, the Group
increases the provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

5. EESRHE R
EZEERR (&)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFFTFHABERZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(viii) 22 FE:T B R 15 EBE

(viii) Fair value measurements and valuation

processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Directors determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of
the Company works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 7(c) to
the consolidated financial statements provides
detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(ix) Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$64,483,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of
goodwill. Details of the value in use calculation
are disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group'’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that sufficient
working capital and adequate committed lines of funding
are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements. Upon
the discovery of any default, the Group would negotiate
immediately with the relevant lenders for proper arrangement
in order to maintain sufficient working capital. Upon the
expectation of any cash insufficiency, the Company would
seek new source of funding so as to maintain sufficient
working capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include borrowings, convertible bonds payables,
contingent consideration payable, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

7. BT HA

Categories of financial instruments a. MBEIAER
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets BMREE
Fair value through profit or loss RATER ABRE
— Investments held for trading —BIEEERKE 2,177 1,952
Loans and receivables (including bank B & ERGIE (B IERT
balances and cash) EHMIEE) 430,066 257,887
432,243 259,839
Financial liabilities B aE
Fair value through profit or loss EAFERAERE
— Contingent consideration payable —ERSRARE 317,628 315,740
— Convertible bonds payables — AR E S 106,719 55,018
Other financial liabilities measured at HHEKAGTE S
amortised cost HEmBasi 2,498,668 1,711,157
Convertible bonds payables FE A AT R B 1 55 242,160 238,714
3,165,175 2,320,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, finance lease
receivables, investments held for trading, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amount
due from(to) associates, restricted cash, trade, bills
and other payables, amounts due to related parties,
amounts due to directors, borrowings, convertible
bonds payables and contingent consideration payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Company and its major operating
subsidiaries use RMB as its functional currency
and are mainly exposed to currency in respect of
United States dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and
HK$, arising from foreign currency denominated
bank balances and cash, restricted cash, trade
receivables, other receivables, trade, bills and
other payables, convertible bonds payables and
contingent consideration payable. The Group’s
other operating subsidiaries established in Hong
Kong whose functional currencies are HK$
and do not have significant foreign currency
exposure.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR BIMERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z = — R NF+_A=+—HIEFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT E (&)
(CONTINUED)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MEREKEEBERBE
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) TSRk ()

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

() EEmER(E)
TRIVRERE IR - AERE A
SNESIEZEBEERERA

monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period B IREE :
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L EE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
USD 27T 8,029 - 182,210 36,332
EUR = - - 142,268 3,013
HK$ BT 698,182 631,314 97,412 7,035
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign
currency risk of USD, EUR and HKS$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE =%

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
A 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translations at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss where RMB
strengthens 5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax

R B HMRMIEE

—REFTZA=Z+—BIEFE

7. BT A (&)

Bt 75 [ By

EEEREREXR

(£8)
TSRk ()

(1)

EEEm (&)
BRE D ()
TRFFNHEERER S BIEA
R¥& 58 BINEFHE RRES%
(ZZE—AF 5% ) Z2HEE -
5% (ZE—HF :5%) BN
MEZEREABRESINERR
FEANBBRERNE WIEE
BEHERA SRS 25
fly o BURE D ITIE B IEIAINE =
BEZzHARFEEKIEE - WK
HHIR AR E N R U R RSN
[ER25% (—ZZT—RF:5%)
ﬁ@o?ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁAE%ﬁﬁ
B E A ES% —HF:
%)%%ﬁ%%ﬁ&%@ﬁ
4WMAEMEE@f%ﬁﬁ
5% (ZE—FHF:5%) He&
ﬂﬁﬁ&%%Lﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ&
ZHE MUTZEHENER

'TV =

loss and the balances below would be negative. £o
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T

Decrease (increase) in loss B A (3E40)

— USD Impact — X2 (8,709) (1,817)
— EUR Impact —RRTEE (7,113) (151)
— HK$ Impact — BT E 30,038 31,214
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
and borrowings, and exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate finance
lease receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, fixed-rate borrowings,
the liability component of convertible bonds
payables.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 5 and
50 basis points (2015: 5 and 50 basis points)
increase or decrease in interest rate for bank
balances and borrowings is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE =%

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015:
50 basis points) higher/lower for borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 would increase/decrease by approximately

HK$3,577,000 (2015: HK$1,631,000).

If interest rate had been 5 basis points (2015:
5 basis points) higher/lower for bank balances,
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 would decrease/increase by approximately

HK$51,000 (2015: HK$35,000).

(iii)  Price risk
Price risk on investments held for trading

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments held for trading. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on listed
equity securities quoted in the stock exchange.
The management manages this exposure by
closely monitoring the price risk and maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks of investments held for trading at the

end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$109,000 (2015:
approximately HK$98,000) as a result of the
change in fair value of investments held for

trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk (Continued)

Price risk on contingent consideration payable
The Group is exposed to the Company’s share
price risk through contingent consideration

payable.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the
Company’s share price and risk free rate price
risks of contingent consideration payable at the

end of reporting period.

If the Company’s share prices of the respective
contingent consideration payable had been
5% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would be increase/
decrease by approximately HK$15,881,000 and
HK$15,881,000 respectively (2015: increase/
decrease by approximately HK$16,000,000 and
HK$16,000,000) as a result of the change in fair

value of contingent consideration payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk on receivables is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in finance
lease segment as the entire outstanding finance lease
receivable of approximately HK$17,833,000 (2015:
HK$28,418,000) was contributed from a single
customer as at 31 December 2016. The Directors
consider that the risks will be mitigated by exploring
new customers in future.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk in
trading segment as the entire outstanding trade
receivable of approximately HK$8,069,000 (2015:
Nil) was contributed from a single customer as at 31
December 2016. The Directors consider that the risks
will be mitigated by exploring new customers in future.

The credit risk of liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Operational risk

The Group had improved the operational risk as more
new customers were added to minimise the effects of
over reliance on one customer during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk at 31
December 2016 as the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$1,090,208,000
and HK$604,752,000, respectively. In order to improve
the Group’s liquidity position, the Directors have
been implementing various operating and financing
measures, details of which are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group relied on borrowings as significant sources
of liquidity, details of which are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

= —
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives BEEEEEEERBEE
- - - =
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELREE ()
Liquidity risk tables RE)E TR g X
The table includes both interest and principal cash TREEIMEREAEZHEERE -
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating WH BRI FEF R E - KBRS
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest HANERRER M ERAESBE -
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted Over Over Over Over
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carying
effective or less than but less than but less than but less than but less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2016
R
ZE-RE
il 237 REXY AR E 3EANL 18H0E 28 ABRRE TZAZT-B
| 7k SMER  BHI3ER Bhi1E BhieE BHH5E HELH ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER T Tén T T T#r
216 ZB-RE
Non-derivative financial liabilites 74 BB &E
Trade and other payables BAREREMNTE - 314,720 10,948 77,044 4,937 - 407,649 407,649
Amounts due to related parties EREEBALHE - 425 - - - - 425 425
Amounts due to directors ENEFE - 1,521 - - - - 1,521 1,521
Amount due o an associate el -HBENRE - 877 - - - - 877 877
Convertble bonds payables (Note) S TR 748 7,500 - 255,858 - - 263,358 242,160
Bortovings 8
- fixed rates -EE 111 424,382 12,328 418,599 409,867 159,542 1,424,718 1,372,855
- variable rates -i2E 5.16 65,031 101,191 55,378 54,945 444,000 720,545 715,341
814,456 124,467 806,879 469,749 603,542 2,819,093 2,740,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

7.

= —d
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MEREKEEBERBE
- - - A= —
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nEEzEE (&)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) TEBEZEBRE (&)
Weighted Over Qver Over QOver
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carmying
effective or less than but less than but less than but less than butless than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31122015
“T-nE
g EEE @AM E 3EANE 150 E 2EHE AYERE T-A=T-H
EiRHI= SRIER  EHR3EA BLRE {Bo52E BHR5E nELE ZEEE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T i T Fhn TR T
015 “E-nf
Non-derivative financia labifies HiTEHBARE
Trade and other payables BARAMERTE - 21898 21092 57638 - - 357658 357658
Bills payables EfZH - - - 141,600 - - 141,600 141,600
Amounts due to related parties EREEBALIE - 4163 - - - - 4163 4163
Amounts due to directors EHEENE - 597 - - - - 597 597
Convertiole bonds payables (Note) R AT EH ( 75 - - 197 491 47013 - 244 564 238,714
Borrowings g
- fixed rates -E8 872 363818 7710 371,29 149,760 21473 913990 880,944
- Variable rates -E8 6.13 105,003 820 153632 19,033 63,720 342,208 326,195
752,509 2622 921,590 215,866 85,193 2,004,780 1949871

Note: The undiscounted amount represents the coupon interest and
redemption amount on maturity on the assumption that there

was no conversion prior to maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
there was no principal amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings with unconditional repayment on demand
clause.

The amounts included as above for variable interest
rate instruments of non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if change in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rate
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial asses and
financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

= —d
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT H (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. MBEIBRZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (#8)
Fair value as at
A¥E
Financial assets/ 31 December 31 December  Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
financial liabilities 2016 2015  hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
ZE-XRE “Z-hF
BHEE/HEEE tZA=+—-8B | tZA=+—H ATEER FEBENREIEBAE EXTABEBAER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
Held-for-trading non-derivative Listed equity Listed equity  Level 1 Quoted prices in an active N/A
financial assets classified as securities- securities- market
investments held for trading in the approximately approximately
consolidated statement of 2,177 1,952
financial position
RERRBRARADER IoREERS- | LTHRAZES- F-ER  NERTHIRE TEA
RIEEEREHIEER #2,177 #71,952
FTEBBEE
Derivative financial liabilities Liability- Liability-  Level 3 Binomial Model — volatility, Volatility of 37.34%
classified as convertible bonds approximately approximately time to maturity, applicable taking into account
payable in the consolidated 13,872 55,018 stock price, risk free rate

statement of financial position

RERHBRREASER afE- BE- FZER ZEAER-KE JHE-
ggﬂ@%E%ZﬁEMﬁ #)13,872 #)55,018 EAKE EREFX
818

CBIX at FVTPL (defined in Note 35) Liability- N/A  Level 3 Monte Carlo Simulation
classified as convertible bonds approximately Method - volatility, time
payable in the consolidated 92,847 to maturity, applicable
statement of financial position stock price, risk free rate

RERRBRARADER afE- TER EZER  SEREEEFE-RE
ENTRRES 2 RATE #92,847 A ERRE-
SRR 2 AR ERIX R R
(& RM35)

Contingent consideration N/A Liability-  Level 3 Income approach - the
payable in a business approximately Company's share price,
combination 315,740 risk free rate

REBaHR 2 ER TER BE- FZBR WANE-KDARE-
AR 315,740 mARHE

Contingent consideration payable Liability- N/A  Levell Quoted prices in an active
in a busines combination approximately market

317,628

REBAGFRZER af- TER E-Ef REBTHIRE

HARE #317,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. MEITA(E&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. MBIAEZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy
AFEEBR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-EBR FEBR FZER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT THx
2016 ZE-RE
Financial assets BREE
Investments held RFIEEBEZIRE
for trading 2,177 - - 2,177
2,177 - - 2,177
Financial liabilities BBaE
Convertible bonds payables AR ES
— Derivative financial liabilities —TEHBEE
(Note 2) (KtzE2) - - 13,872 13,872
- CBIX at FVTPL (Note 3) —BAFEFABRZ
AR ESIX (FEE3) - - 92,847 92,847
Contingent consideration payable  JEfF sk AR (B
(Note 1) (FzEL) 317,628 - - 317,628
317,628 - 106,719 424,347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

ECT—AFT_A-+—AIFE

x= —=

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7. BB IA (&)

(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. BBRIAZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (4&)
Fair value hierarchy
ATEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER EER E=ER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TER TER
2015 —T-nfF
Financial asset NKEE
Investments held for trading BIEEEZIRE 1952 - = 1952
Financial liabilities MBAaE
Convertible bonds payables ERTRRES
— derivative financial liabilities ~-TEMBEE
(Note 2) (Hs2) - 55,018 55,018
Contingent consideration payable  FEfF sk AH (B
(Note 1) (BEEL) - 315,740 315,740
- 370,758 370,758
Note 1: The fair values of the contingent consideration payable were el ERAREBEZRATFESEANKEE
estimated by applying the income approach. The applied e FTERA 2 AR X 82.37% - i
discount rate is 2.37%. Should the estimated net profit Success Capture LimitedElZ =Z— A
after tax of Success Capture Limited for the year ended 31 F+-A=Z+—HIEEZHTBRHR
December 2015 increase/decrease by 5% and all other BIFHEFIE IR A% T AT HA
variables were held constant, the fair value of contingent FEHEFTE BHNIKAREBZAFE
consideration payable would be increased/decreased by #1800, 8, 4> 494,000,000/ It ©
approximately HK$4,000,000.
Note 2: An increase in effective interest rate used in isolation would Ms2: PIERZERMXEE FAEEwIT

result in an increase in fair value measurement of the
derivative financial liabilities, and vice versa. A 5% increase/
decrease in effective interest rate and holding all other
variables constant would increase/decrease the carrying
amount of the derivative financial liabilities by HK$188,000/
HK$189,000 respectively (2015: HK$270,000/HK$274,000
respectively).

An increase in volatility used in isolation would result in an
increase in fair value measurement of the derivative financial
liabilities, and vice versa. A 5% increase/decrease in volatility
and holding all other variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of the derivative financial
liabilities by HK$964,000/HK$818,000 respectively (2015:
HK$2,451,000/HK$2,466,000 respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Note 3: An increase in effective interest rate used in isolation would
result in a decrease in fair value measurement of the CBIX at
FVTPL, and vice versa. A 5% increase/decrease in effective
interest rate and holding all other variables constant would
decrease/increase the carrying amount of the CBIX at FVTPL
by HK$12,000/HK$10,000 respectively.

The contingent consideration payable represent the fair
value of the Second Tranche Consideration (as defined
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements).
The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
as at 31 December 2016 amounts to HK$317,628,000
(2015: HK$315,740,000). The fair value of the
contingent consideration payable as at 31 December
2015 was measured using a valuation technique
with significant unobservable inputs and hence was
classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. As at 31
December 2016, as the Guarantee Profit (as defined
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements)
has been achieved, the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable represented the market value
of the Second Tranche Consideration (as defined in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements) on
31 December 2016. Therefore the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable was determined
based on a published price quotation available on the
Stock Exchange and was classified as Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy.

Other than disclosed above, there was no transfer
between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

7. BT A (&)

MBIAZAFENE
(%)

Mim3: FIEAZERMERER EABBERIR
AFEEFFABZZ TBEESRIXZ AF
Bt RZIFAR - WERF X L
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B BB IR AT EF AR Z AT
EHIXZREED BIR L,/ 112,000
#7T,/10,00058 7T °

ENRAREAE-_MARE(EE
RARE W BMERMFIR) 2 AFE:
ENSARER=_ZE—<F+=A
=+—Hz2”Y¥ME /317,628,000
Bt (ZF — A F 315,740,000
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RO IBHEIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BB IA (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. MBITEZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

FEZERAFETEBZHE

measurements
Contingent CBIX Derivative
consideration at financial
payable FVTPL liabilities Total
BATE
FABHEZ TEBB
ERSARE THRRESX =L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THEL TET
At 1 January 2015 W_Z—H%—H—H - - -
Addition NE 341,218 - 19,028 360,246
Fair value change NEEZH (25,478) - 35,990 10,512
At 31 December 2015 R_ZT—1F
+-R=+—H 315,740 - 55,018 370,758
Transfer out of level 3 EHE-ER (315,740 - - (315,740)
Extension of CBVII] TR AR E VIR - - 14,736 14,736
Addition ﬁﬁ - 92,954 - 92,954
Fair value change NEEZH - (107) (55,882) (55,989)
At 31 December 2016 R-B—R%E
+ZA=+—8 - 92,847 13,872 106,719

Of the total gains or losses for the year included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of approximately HK$107,000
relates to CBIX at FVTPL held at the end of the current
reporting period.

Of the total gains or losses for the year included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$55,882,000 relates to derivative financial liabilities
held at the end of the current reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE =%

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their values.

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors, being

the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered

or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM

have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments

of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Shipbuilding business — provision of shipbuilding
services under shipbuilding construction contracts
and operated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

Trading business — provision of trading of electronic
appliance and operated in Hong Kong.

Finance leasing business — provision of direct finance
leasing, sale and leaseback, advisory services and
provision of factoring services in the PRC.

Intelligent car parking and automotive device business
— manufacturing and sales of car parking equipment,
investment, operation and management of car parks
and electronic automotive devices in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

—RETZA=+—-HILFE

8. WEkoHER (&)
DEB UL S K A
AEERT2HRAEH BB D 2R

EEHFMT -

BE_ZF-A"F+-A=1+T—-HLFE

Intelligent car

parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Elimination Total
BEEE
MM EE BEHE RAEET
% B5EH % ES B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR i TE7R TER TR
Segment revenue A
- External sales e 154,220 51,124 1,420 210,549 - 417,313
- Inter-segment sales -HHREEE 2,640 14,885 7,850 54,373 (79,748) -
Total segment revenue PBREAE 156,860 66,009 9270 264,922 (79,748) 417,313
Segment result ABER (321,284)  (15359)  (14,548)  (49,960) (401,151)
Unallocated other income KAREMBA 1,099
Unallocated other gains and losses &2 T E s R E18 (25,066)
Change in fair value of contingent BN S AR B2 ATF(E
consideration payable g (1,888)
Change in fair value of investments ~ #{EEERE 2 ATE
held for trading # 225
Change in fair value of convertible B AT R ER 2 AT E
bonds payables # 55,989
Finance costs BEM K (37,156)
Share of profit of associates DEBENT 2 EF 14,277
Share of profit of joint ventures MEEELE RN 52,206
Unallocated corporate expenses FARZRAARR (24,934)
Loss before tax KR AER (366,399)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WakroHEHR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DR RESE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZE-—NFT+_A=+T—RBLFE
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Elimination Total
REEH
ffgE BEME RAEET
2% BH%E £% £% B Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TAEL TEL TiEx TEL
Segment revenue D Elas
- External sales —SNBHE 143,187 - 3,442 11,006 - 157,635
- Inter-segment sales -DEHHEEE - - 9315 - (9,315) -
Total segment revenue PENESE 143,187 - 12,757 11,006 (9,315) 157,635
Segment result NEEE (350,647) - 3112 (4.936) (352,471)
Unallocated other income FOEEMYBA 2,007
Unallocated other gains and losses AP B At Uiz B (14,968)
Change in fair value of contingent R S AR B2 AT EE
consideration payable 25478
Change in fair value of investments ~ BFEERE 2 ATEES
held for trading (1,684)
Change in fair value of convertible B AR RER 2 D TFEE
bonds payables (35,990)
Loss on settlement of loan BOBRONEEERZER
by issuance of shares (10,755)
Share-based payments expenses MR AR 2 R REX (49,194)
Finance costs BEMK (71,171)
Share of profit of associates PEBERR &R 8,791
Share of loss of joint ventures NMEReLEZER (1,054)
Unallocated corporate expenses FARZ DAY (26,109)
Loss before tax BRaEE (527,120)
PBETEBBRAT F3k 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment result
represents the profit earned by (loss from) each segment
without allocation of certain other income, certain other gains
or losses, change in fair value of contingent consideration
payable, change in fair value of investments held for trading,
change in fair value of convertible bonds payables, loss
on settlement of loan by issuance of shares, share-based
payments expenses, certain finance costs, share of profit of
associates, share of profit (loss) of joint ventures and certain
corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WamkAHMEFR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and REBZAEHREEEDHBE D 2 EER
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BEITWT:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE
— Shipbuilding business — AR B E TS 813,180 1,065,649
— Trading business —B5¥E% 8,069 -
— Finance leasing business —REHEER 221,667 58,090
— Intelligent car parking and automotive —EEEEEK
device business HEETFER 709,396 477,145
Total segment assets DEEEBTE 1,752,312 1,600,884
Pledged bank deposits, bank balances and BIKIRIRITIF 0 SRITAE 8R
cash and restricted cash NBES U RZRGRE 195,785 151,714
Interests in associates i RN - 192,706 93,410
Interests in joint ventures REEDCEZHER 527,461 472,118
Amount due from an associate JE U — FET I & R R R 7,215 -
Unallocated corporate assets KoBLzRE|EE 4,128 3,698
Consolidated assets HEBE 2,679,607 2,321,824
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities nEAEE
— Shipbuilding business — RS T 1,773,558 1,791,072
— Trading business — B 5% 8,029 -
— Finance leasing business —MEEEEK 523,207 57,547
— Intelligent car parking and —EE8EHE
automotive device business REETER 194,430 101,426
Total segment liabilities DEPBEEEE 2,499,224 1,950,045
Convertible bonds payables JE - AT $R % (B 348,879 293,732
Contingent consideration payable RS ARE 317,628 315,740
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEAFE 86,071 115,208
Amount due to an associate FEA —FE s & R R A 877 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities APz ARIBE 31,680 33,871
Consolidated liabilities LEaffE 3,284,359 2,708,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, interests in joint ventures,
certain other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, restricted cash, investments held
for trading, amount due from an associate and certain
corporate property, plant and equipment; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than convertible bonds payables, contingent
consideration payable, deferred tax liabilities, amount
due to an associate and certain other payables and
accruals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

~. N = —
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WaEKkDHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information Hittp ZER
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment result or ATENHEENDIBEERITAZEEN
segment assets: N
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Unallocated Total
BEEE
MRS BEHE RAEET
% BESER £% £% KOE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FER FET FAT
Additions to property, REME BFER&E
plant and equipment 6,066 - 23 40,500 704 47,293
Addition 1o investment properties REMELM - - - 16,386 - 16,386
Addition to prepaid lease payments BRAEFEEN - - - 11,987 - 11,987
Depreciation of property, nE BEREEINE
plant and equipment 50,548 - 102 1,895 388 52,933
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments Y& 178 & (B & 7,090 - - 242 - 7,332
Amortisation of intangible assets apEESH - - - 39,840 - 39,840
Loss on written-off of property, WEnE BERREER
plant and equipment 18 - - 18 - 36
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE K& E M
plant and equipment (463) - - - - (463)
Foreseeable losses (included penalties  BEEEAMsHA AR (5T AZEM
due to the Delay) recognised in respect AKX AR BERAHE
of additional estimated costs (included A ) IR 2 A8 &
in shipbuilding contract cost and ERE GIHRELR2E3)
recognised as cost of sales) (Hi50)i))
(Note 5(b)(i) 52,061 - - - - 52,061
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BL¥1% - E R EmER
property, plant and equipment WAEBE 66,828 - - - - 66,828
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 3t Z 5 &M FE T 2
trade receivables HEEE - - - 844 - 844
Impairment loss recognised in respect of £ fth & FRIE T #E 2
other receivables WEBE 9,177 - - - - 9,177
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 3B E B M R
prepaid lease payments HEEBR 18,766 - - - - 18,766
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FtEZMER 2 BEEE
goodwill - - - 64,483 - 64,483
Change in fair value of investment RENEZATEEE
properties - - - (211) - (211)
Finance costs RERA 89,593 - 8,023 1,552 37,156 136,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measure of segment result:

8. Wz

ko

BHEFR ()

Hft 2 HE#R (8)

FHRIFIEEERTEEESED S
HEERTYETAZEENOT

Intelligent car

parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Unallocated Total
BEFE
MmE MEHE RAZET
% EZEH %% %% AOE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FHER FHR FHEx
Interest income FIEMA (534) - (27 (535) 3) (1,099)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) BB (WE) 6,693 1,585 - (604) 17,474 25,148
Share of profit of associates DEBHE AT EF - - - - (14,277) (14,277)
Share of profit of joint ventures SEE “ﬁ%Zmﬂ - - - - (52,206) (52,206)
Change in fair value of ENT#BRES A TESE
convertible bonds payables - - - - (55,989) (55,989)
Additions to interests in associates ﬁ?%‘@ A2 EmIE - - - - 84,155 84,155
Additions to interests in joint ventures AL RE 2 ERIE N - - - - 311 311
Change in fair value of investments M’FE‘I’E&ﬁZ TE®
held for trading - - - - (225) (225)
Change in fair value of contingent ENSARECATES
consideration payable - - - - (1,888) (1,888)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WEkroHER (&)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Hipn BER (F)

Other segment information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE_Z—AF+A=1T—HIEFE
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding leasing device
business business business  Unallocated Total
BEfEE
fMEsE  REEE RAEBT
%7 %7 #7% oyl mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Additions to property, NEME BFELEE
plant and equipment 3,616 12 1,663 707 5,998
Goodwill arising through FREBHBRARELZEE
acquisition of subsidiaries - - 188,057 - 188,057
Intangible assets arising through FRRENBARMEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries BREE - - 249,000 - 249,000
Depreciation of property, ME- -BELEEZITE
plant and equipment 57,770 115 10 314 58,209
Amortisation of prepaid lease BNAEREEE
payments 7,231 - - - 7,231
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESE - - 3,320 - 3,320
Loss on written-off of property, WY BEREBEEE
plant and equipment 9 - - - 9
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME  BE RS E 2B
plant and equipment (1,743) - - - (1,743)
Foreseeable losses (included penalties BLEEIMAETAA (FFAEMA 4
due to the Delay) recognised in KARERRBHEKAE)
respect of additional estimated costs ~ #2278 B &8
(included in shipbuilding contract G EHE VAR
cost and recognised as cost of sales)  (AfzE(5)(b)(i))
(Note (5)(b)(i)) 25,373 - - - 25,373
Finance costs BERA 130,137 - 539 71,171 201,847
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WaEkDHMER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued) HippHER (8)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision FHRZITEZEERREEESED
maker but not included in the measure of segment result: HEERTYETAZEENOT
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding leasing device
business business business  Unallocated Total
BEEH
fiEsE REMEE RREET
%75 %75 E Aot et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FREL FEL FEL
Additions to interests in associates iR NG s - 31,016 31,016
Interest income FEWA (1,846) (137) (10) (14) (2,007)
Foreign exchange loss & B8 1,224 - 197 13,547 14,968
Change in fair value of contingent ERSARELATEZS
consideration payable - - - (25,478) (25,478)
Change in fair value of BEEERAZATEES
investments held for trading - - - 1,684 1,684
Change in fair value of ERAHRRESR ATFER
convertible bonds payables - - - 35,990 35,990
Loss on settlement of loan BIIRHIVEEERZEE
by issuance of shares - - - 10,755 10,755
Share-based payments expenses AR BER 2 AT - - - 49,194 49,194
Share of loss of joint ventures DMEEECEZEE - - - 1,054 1,054
Share of profit of associates DR E AR 2R T - - - (8,791) (8,791)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WakroHEHR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information i & & K

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Hong Kong REBE 2 EBFANPE - B RER -

and Germany.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external EHAREE 2N EPREER AT T
customers is presented based on the location of customers. EHAEEZY -BREALEEERBEE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets (M T ERRIN) BERABEFEHR AE
(excluded financial instruments) is presented based on the A2

geographical locations of the assets.

Revenue from
external customers
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+=-A=+-—H
LEEEZIHIBEF KRS

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

Non-current assets
at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—-8%2
FRBEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TBT

Germany = 151,429 143,137
The PRC H 214,760 14,498
Hong Kong &5 51,124 -

1,543,212 1,615,929
980 557

417,313 157,635

1,544,192 1,616,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

ko EHER (F)

EBEEEFZEHN

REERFERAEAEEAWZREI0% .

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are BERZR&EINT:
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Customer Al ZEA N/AR & 3 41,469
Customer B! =B N/AT 38 A3 55,471
Customer C! =RFEC! 101,982 46,197
Customer D? BFED? 51,124 -
1 Revenue from shipbuilding business ! AR RS SR

2 Revenue from trading business
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% if the total
revenue of the Group

2 B 5EBWE

N AR YR 3 R G AR B AR E 9 10% A £

OTHER INCOME 9. Hflg A
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T
Government grant B R 9,313 -
Sales of scrap materials tHE R 1,632 -
Interests on bank deposits IRITIFEHF B 1,099 2,007

Gain on disposal of property, HEWE- BER

plant and equipment Rz W 463 1,743
Others Hith 2,922 893
15,429 4,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hitt = R HE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loss on written-off of property, MEEME  WE &
plant and equipment B (36) 9)
Foreign exchange loss IE 5 518 (25,148) (14,968)
Others Et 82 (587)
(25,102) (15,564)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B R
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interests on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFANBHEEZ
within five years: BRAE -
Convertible bonds payable at effective BERRE 2 ERT#H]
interest rates (Note 35) W& f& % (ff7£35) 37,081 71,171
Interests on bank borrowings and bill payables $E1TEE K& fER ZHEF B 35,598 38,072
Interests on other borrowings HEaERE 52,206 73,950
Guarantee fee and fund management EREBEZEREBR
fee incurred in connection with borrowings B ERE 11,364 18,400
Others Hitb 75 254
136,324 201,847
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FifSHIE R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax BN ERAFR 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBENER - -
— PRC tax — B 18 10,207 395
Deferred tax (Note 36) IEIEREIA (M 7E36) (17,380) (26,702)
(7,173) (26,307)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since the Group has
no assessable profits for both years.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group has obtained the
qualification of High and New Technology Enterprise from
the relevant PRC government authorities and subject to a
preferential tax rate from 2016 to 2018. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC enjoy the tax holiday and the profits
are fully exempted from EIT for three years starting from its
first year of profitable operations, followed by 50% reduction
in EIT in next three years.

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% PRC Withholding Tax. If
a foreign investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the
conditions and requirements under the double taxation treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE =%

—REFTZA=Z+—BIEFE

12. FREBiE % (&)

AFEEMEHEREESEER
WamRAY 2B AISE 2 HERNT

s M H A2 E

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
Loss before tax RRBi AT BT 1B (366,399) (527,120)
Tax at applicable domestic income A M iE R PSR A R 25%
tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (ZZE—RF:25%)
FTE 2B (91,600) (131,780)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBEBME TN
for tax purpose Mg E 51,900 67,112
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  FLFRIE M & B E R 2
WAz B & (30,967) (8,572)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised *ﬁEa?Z%RIEJ%T@ZﬁF%@‘ 58,659 69,908
Tax effect of PRC withholding tax PEBEHIM R E 14,850
Tax effect of relief of PRC withholding tax BePEBENH B2 - (25,350)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries b’/\\ﬁ fth FLERE R 45 & Z B /28
operating in other jurisdiction NCIRNCIE R s -2 1,567 2,375
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised B 5L B AR fE 7R 2 B B BT 18 (185) -
Reduction of income tax under preferential tax — [E 5 #4518 22 1 7 BT 15 55 51 36
treatment (11,397) -
Income tax credit for the year AEEFREHIER (7,173) (26,307)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FREBIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loss for the year has been arrived FARBBERTE (GFA)
at after charging (crediting): THIEE BEB:
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERFETHAEZHE
(Note 14) (Kfat14) 5,799 33,670
Other staff costs: HAth 8 T :
Salaries and other benefits B e E A A 42,041 34,569
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RKBFFTEIER 7,538 6,444
Share-based payments expenses — employees LARR D B 2R 2 (3R
x> —1EE - 21,247
Total staff costs BEITRABEE 55,378 95,930
Auditor’s remuneration ZYRB
— Audit service —BZR% 3,035 1,555
— Non-audit service —EBEERG 539 923
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BREBRT 2 FEKRA 174,847 9,979
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE- - BELRETE 52,933 58,209
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E A% 7,332 7,231
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 39,840 3,320
Minimum lease payments paid under operating HEMERBKEMN 2
leases in respect of rented premises SEHEEFK 7,847 5,437
Shipbuilding contract costs recognised R AEERA &M
as cost of sales AR 268,260 305,432
Foreseeable losses (included penalties due to FREIMEET AR (Bt A
the Delay) recognised in respect of additional BRRARFERBHERA)
estimated costs (included in shipbuilding MR A EREE
contract cost and recognised as cost of sales) (FFRAERZ &)
(Note (5)(b)(i)) (BTaEB5)b)I)) 52,061 25,373
Impairment loss recognised in respect 58 5 M GRIE M R
of trade receivables 2B E 844 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect FhE A U R IE T RER
of other receivables ZREEE 9,177 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HYE BE REENER
property, plant and equipment ZREEsE 66,828 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect RIEMNHEEFTIEER
of prepaid lease payments REEBE 18,766 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill HHEMERZREBE 64,483 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised EHEMERERKHIE
in respect of finance lease receivables R REEE &R - (70)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the years,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is

4 EERETETHRAENE

RATFERRBBER ETRAEA R
PIRBEsEERTETRABMESMT

as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2016 Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-E-RETZAZT-BLEE BZ-3-Rf+-A=t-AI5E
Contributions Contributions
to retirement Salaries to retirement  Share-based
benefits and other benefits payments
Fees Salaries scheme Total Fees benefits scheme expenses Total
BAR 1A
BUER ek RIERR RERZ
e He  HEHER E we  EBN  HEER  AREX 3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEn TET iR AL TEL TAL TAL TARL
(Note a) (Note a)
(Hita) (Bizta)
Executive directors: hEs:
Mr. Li Ming (Chairman) (Note ¢}~ Z% 4 (£) (Hétc) - 1,504 18 1,522 - 1527 18 7245 8790
M. Zhang Shi Hong FInhE (ThEY)
(Chief Executive Officer) (Note o) (Hfatd) - 1,200 18 1,218 - 1,107 18 9316 10441
Mr. Wang San Long IoEAE - 360 - 360 - 621 1 - 622
Dr. Tse Kwing Chuen (Note e) #AM2EL (Hite) - - - - - 215 5 - 20
Mr. Chen Hong (Note ) BRLE (HiH) - - - - - 199 5 - 204
Mr. Liu Jin (Note g) B kE (Hitg) - 951 18 969 - 260 4 11,386 11650
Non-executive director: FarEs:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BZERRE (REER)
(Honorary Chairman) (Note b) (Hizb) - 1,430 - 1,430 - 1,443 - - 1,443
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Hu Bai He HRfLE 100 - - 100 100 - - - 100
Ms. Xiang Siying FRELL 100 - - 100 100 - - - 100
Ms. Xiang Ying MLt 100 - - 100 100 - - - 100
300 5,445 54 5,799 300 5372 51 21947 33670
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Salaries paid to executive directors of the Company are in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

(b) Ceased to be the Chairman and executive director, and re-designated
as non-executive director and appointed as the Honorary Chairman
with effect from 23 June 2015.

(c) Appointed as Chairman with effect from 23 June 2015 and resigned as
the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 22 September 2015.

(d) Appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 22 September
2015.

(e) Resigned as executive director with effect from 23 March 2015.
(f) Resigned as executive director with effect from 17 March 2015.

(g) Appointed as executive director with effect from 22 September 2015.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. Apart from the
Directors, the Group has not classified any other person as
chief executives during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in Note 42 to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The amount of
the benefit in relation to share options has been determined
in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.
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M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

4 EEREFETBRAENE

(%)

it

(@) XNTARRANTEFZH2HAARFAFEHL
HWBRARIEBZEEER -

(b) HEXERHTEFRY UHAERHNTEE
REZFERKELE B-F—RF A-+=
HAEER -

(c) RZFE—AFANAZT=ZHAEZERFEER
ZE-RFNA T ZHEHETHARE -

(d) R-FE-AFAAZT-AEZERTREH -

(&) R-E-—RAF=ZA-+=ZHFEIHTEF-
(f) R-FE-—RF=FA++tHBENTEE-

(8 R-FE—AFANAZF_AEZIAHTES-

BHE-E-—R"E+-A=+—HEKZ=Z
—RFE+-A=1+—BLLFE BESEW
ZERRERETAMSHZHE -BHEZ
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A=+—HLLFE BRESI AEELE
BEMEMALTDEAEEITHRAR
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ETESFEREARAZBREFSRER
RERERM 2 ARG X IE A - R Rt 8l
ZHBENARE GRS M mR M E42 o
ERBRBIXacB I HEZTS2EE
5o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR IS IRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15. 2 EaFMES
RAEE NEBZALZGa 5 HER S
B (ZE—RF: =8)E 5 =EFH
HEEN EXHF4 - FREB R (ZF

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included four directors (2015: three), detail of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details of the

remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2015: two) —HE MBS MES 2 S m
highest paid individuals were as follows: T:

2016 2015

—E-NE —EFRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMER 1,260 1,571

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RRERET B - 58

Share-based payments expenses VARR D BEME 2 X - 12,141

1,260 13,770

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
Directors whose remuneration fell within the following bands
is as follows:

WIEFBEMES N F T 5 HE 2 &= B
BREHENMT:

Number of employee

BEEAH
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—HF
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0003# 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,000 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,0007% 7T £6,000,0007 7T - 1
HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,0007% 7T £8,000,0007 7T - 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the five highest paid employees waived any emoluments in
both years.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
were granted share options, in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in Note 42 to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The amount of
the benefit in relation to share options has been determined
in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.

AEEY EEER D E &5 EE
B - E R I A SR B S h A AN 5= [ B
ME R RERBERME -KMEFER
MELLR= T MNES RETAME -

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—HLFE"
ETHEZERITBTRABRSHE
BREBART ZBREFTIRRERAE
B (2 R HE IR RE A - RE AT &I 2 7%
BENARE G E P IERERM T42 - BRE
BERIXaeR I HEZTS2EETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. 3 RE1R
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share EARRRGE ARG ERERN N EEES
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BT ER B -
following data:
2016 2015
—E—XEF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHETT
Loss [Fi=]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AU ESRAERR
the Company for the purposes of basic BEEIB 2 A RE
and diluted loss per share BB AEIEFAEE (353,156) (500,799)
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—RF
000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGTESRERR
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss #EEiE 2 Timik
per share INHEF 192 11,996,663 9,912,342
The computation of diluted loss per share for the years AREEZT - AFRZF-RFTA
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 does not assume i) =T ALFEZEREFERRE AR
the exercise of the Company's share options; and ii) the 17150 S B5 HA 8 AR % 1 R L SR AT R AR 55
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds HEHFNTREERD LERBAR
since their assumed exercise or conversion would result in a BERE SUERI)ARAZBERED
decrease in loss per share for the year which is regarded as BT i) A AR 1 R AT AR B 55
anti-dilutive. BER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR IS IRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BERRKRE

Furniture and Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings fixtures vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BF BEAREE AE BEREE ERIR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TAT TAT TET

COST RA
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HE—F—H 1,151,496 5,220 27,292 213,096 - 1,397,104
Exchange adjustments ERAE (93,685) (306) (1,415) (12,050) - (107,456)
Additions NE 902 438 1,295 689 2,674 5,998
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBEHT B A 15 165 - 253 - 433
Transfer B 744 - 40 1,890 (2,674) -
Disposal HE (29) - (613) - - (642)
Written-off | - - (173) - - (173)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB-RE+=RA=+—-0 1,059,443 5,517 26,426 203,878 - 1,295,264
Exchange adjustments EH AR (96,570) (664) (1,341) (12,722) - (111,297)
Additions NE 5,376 6,753 850 13,666 20,648 47,293
Transfer R 1,042 - 15 77 (1,134) -
Disposal HE - - (1,766) (1,538) - (3,304)
Written-off HisH - (18) (60) (3) - (81)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-xE+=ZA=1+-A 969,291 11,588 24,124 203,358 19,514 1,227,875
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZFTERRE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RF—A—H 850,314 3,183 21,749 104,358 - 979,604
Exchange adjustments [ERAE (49,499) (186) (1,204) (6,643) - (57,532)
Provided for the year FREE 36,172 565 2,788 18,684 - 58,209
Eliminated on disposal T B 8 11 - (453) - - (464)
Written-off ki - - (164) - - (164)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-RF+-A=+—H 836,976 3,562 22,716 116,399 - 979,653
Exchange adjustments EH A% (54,676) (286) (1,230) (7,754) - (63,946)
Provided for the year FEREE 32,099 1611 1,819 17,404 - 52,933
Eliminated on disposal B - - (1,678) (892) - (2,570)
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE 66,828 - - - - 66,828
Written-off | - () (42) (1 - (45)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-x"E+=ZA=1+-H 881,227 4,885 21,585 125,156 - 1,032,853
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 R-E-x"E+=A=1+-H 88,064 6,703 2,539 78,202 19,514 195,022
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=+—H 222,467 1,955 3,710 87,479 - 315,611
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the lease, or 5%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 12.5%

Plant and machinery 6.67% — 25%

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Directors after taking into account the economic condition
and industrial development prospect, had considered that
the gross operating loss incurred during both years indicated
impairment issue for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments in the shipbuilding
segment and therefore conducted an impairment review on
the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments.

The Directors appointed an independent professional
valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI Appraisals”), an
independent professional valuer not connected to the Group
to perform a valuation on the property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$66,828,000 (2015: Nil) on property, plant
and equipment, was considered necessary as the carrying
amount of the assets as at 31 December 2016 exceeded the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report issued by
BMI Appraisals. The value-in-use calculation is based on a
pre-tax discount rate of 16.92% (2015: 18.41%) and cash
flow projections prepared from financial forecasts approved
by the management of the Group, taking into account the
current economic condition and operation of shipbuilding
industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales, gross margin and relevant
facts and circumstances related to the Group’s current
situation. Such estimation is based on the management’s
expectations about the Group’s shipbuilding business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

17. % - BER&E (&)

B BE k& (ERIZRIN IR
BREREEUTIIERFERE:

’BF BRALFEIS
(B EHEAE)

REREE 20%

B 12.5%

JBR 55 % i 2% 6.67%—25%

BHE-ZT-—~"FR-FE—-—HF+=A
:+*E¢¢E'§$%é%féi‘“@%/ﬁ&
TRBERAIR® RBRANMEFEAREM
DHMELENREBREEBRTAEEZY
¥ BB MR A KA TE & RIE IR R
ERfRE B  BRE KRR EHA KRR
HERIE 2 BREEEL R ER

EXREBEUEXRMAEMPMABRTEE
RATF ([FRMAE] - REAREE EEE
BN BEMLEM)EHNR T RNFR_Z
—hFE+ZR=+—HA2YH¥ BERREE
ETHE - RBPNHBEHOMGERSE
BER-_Z—R"ET_A=+—BzZKHA
BEEBAKCSRE REEFELERYE
TR 5 N 5% 4 =t R R (B /&5 18 4966,828,00078
T(ZE—RF 8 EFREERERK
ATBRIE £16.92% (— T — A :18.41%)
MASEERESE 2 MBRAMGRZ
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁViﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
FMEMEZEE-FTE ﬁ%fﬁzﬁmi
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, plant and machinery with
carrying values of approximately HK$65,694,000
(2015: HK$86,631,000) and buildings of approximately
HK$83,141,000 (2015: HK$222,421,000) have been
pledged to various banks and a financial institution in the
PRC to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 41).

17. % - BER&HE (&)

R-B-—RF+_A=1t—8 KHEHELD
65,694,000/ 7T ( —F — f %F : 86,631,000
BIT) Z W B #Es A K 83,141,000/ 7T
(ZE—R%F:222421,000%70) 2 EFE
ERTHEZHRRTE—REBERE U
ERAEEEE (FF41) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEYE
2016 2015
—E-AF —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Fair value AEE
At 1 January n—HA—H - -
Additions NE 16,386 -
Exchange adjustments PE 5 58 & (852) -
Net change in fair value recognised RIEEER
in profit or loss NEESE)FER 211 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 15,745 -

The Group'’s properties interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

During the year, the Group has acquired the beneficial
interests of certain properties with aggregated carrying
values of approximately HK$15,745,000 (2015: Nil), which
were located in Shandong Province and Shanxi Province
through the contractual arrangements with certain property
developers (Note 49).

AEERELLHEERAARDESRE
RENEBER/ENZYERDRARFE
BAGHE  WARIRIREYE -

RAFEER AEED B BEETYERN
BEZANTHRBOAILES RILE
AZETYENERSER LEEENA
15,745,0008 7T (— T — A4 : &) (M5
49) -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil) has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out by BMI Appraisals, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 are

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

18. REW= (&)

AEBRENEZATVEN B

REER-ZE—RETA=+T—H2z%
BEYWEATFE(ZE—RF &) DK H
AEBYEBENBLAEREEGEM
RRBEFEHNEERSETE -

RIS MEDTES WEZ RS RBE
M AHE AR

AEER-_Z—R"F+_-_A=+—H2Z%K
BEWMEHBLAFEEREHSNT

as follows:
Level 3 Fair value
F=EBR A¥HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
2016 —E-RE
Investment properties KEYE 15,745 15,745

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

18.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of

investment properties:

Valuation technique

fhE R

Key input
TERAHE

Significant unobserva
EXFUBERBAE

R IS HRMIEE

06HE—FT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

REWE (R)

fg&ﬁ%%t&?ﬁﬁi

BRRENEZE=EBRATHEFEZER:
ble inputs Sensitivity
BRE

Direct comparison

BERLEBE

Recent sale price of comparable
properties, time factor and discount
or premium on quality of properties
AhBNE THEER BRAR
UERMEEE 2 LR E

Average rate of discou
of properties at 6%
NEEE 2 TME

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements of investment properties:

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
direct comparison approach assuming sale in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence or asking prices of comparable
properties as available in the relevant market.

ntonqualty  The higher the discount, the lower the
fair value of properties

& 56% fEdE WE 2L HELE

REMEE=ZERR
B K A B

FEEMERZM

BEWEZ ANTFENEREZLBABR
MEANEBRRZIETHE W2 EAEHEK
HERBHIEAM S ES A ELRY
HXAEMEE -

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of WEYMEF=BHANFEFERTERLE
investment properties on recurring basis: 7 HER

Investment

properties

classified as

Level 3

PEARE=ZEBR

ZREYHE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-RF—H—H -

Addition NE 16,386

Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R 1EzE P ER 2 A FEE INEEE 211

Exchange adjustments bE W78 & (852)

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—ARE+=ZHA=+—H 15,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IREMBMRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18.1R &Y% (&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s AEERESYES ATESE
investment properties (Continued) ()
The above net increase in fair value recognised in profit or Ft R R Y AT IS A
loss are included in the consolidated statement of profit or AR T H A EINSE T BERBE
loss and other comprehensive income and is attributable to HASKIG A% > NGRS -

the change in fair values of investment properties at the end
of the reporting period.

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19, EAT R E % E
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEZBENHERBERE:
2016 2015
—E-RE —RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Leasehold land in the PRC RPBEZEE L
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RBAZEAEE 308,841 320,529
Additions NE 11,987
Amortised during the year FNEEE (7,332) (7,231)
Impairment recognised BERERRE (18,766)
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 & (4,133) (4,457)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-A=+—B2EkHAE 290,597 308,841
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEWMEMATOT :
Non-current asset ERBEE 283,724 301,610
Current asset MEEE 6,873 7,231
290,597 308,841
At 31 December 2016, the Group's certain prepaid RZZE—AR"F+ZA=+—H XAEEHE
lease payments with carrying value of approximately M1E49129,870,000 T (—ZF — A F :
HK$129,870,000 (2015: HK$151,570,000) have been 151,570,000/ ) 2 FEN H EF B E K
pledged to various banks to secure the Group's borrowings BFaETRT NEREAEEEE (M
(Note 41). 41) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Application for land use right certificate of the lake located
in Xiaochao Lake Ruichang City Jiangxi Province (the
“Lake”) with aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$148,740,000 (2015: HK$157,271,000) was still in
progress and the land use right certificate had not been
issued to the Group by the relevant government authorities at
31 December 2016. The Lake is amortised over its estimated
useful life of 50 years (2015: 50 years) on a straight-line
basis.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial interest of the Lake at the end of the reporting
period, and the land use right certificate can be obtained
upon the settlement of the purchase consideration.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Directors, after taking into account the economic condition
and industrial development prospect, had considered
that the gross operating loss incurred by the shipbuilding
segment during both years indicated impairment issue for
the Group’s prepaid lease payments and therefore conducted
an impairment review on the carrying amounts of prepaid
lease payments for the shipbuilding segment.

The Directors appointed an independent professional valuer,
BMI Appraisals, to perform a valuation on the prepaid
lease payments at 31 December 2016. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$18,766,000 (2015: Nil) was considered
necessary as the aggregated carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments as at 31 December 2016 exceeded the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report issue
by BMI Appraisals. The recoverable amount is calculated
by comparison approach assuming sale with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidences as available in the relevant market. Other
key assumptions for the prepaid lease payments valuation
relate to (i) the property is sold in the market without the
benefit of deferred terms contract, leaseback, joint venture,
management agreement or any other similar arrangement;
(i) no account has been taken of any option or right of pre-
emption concerning or effecting the sale of the property
and no forced sale situation in any manner; and (iii) the
proper legal title of the property is in possession and the
property could be transferred freely in the market at no extra
land premium or other onerous payment payable to the
government.

19. BN HEER

XIE (%)

MRIEEmE™ NEM ([ZB8]) R
T 42{E #7148,740,000/ T (- T —FH 4 :
157,271,000 7T ) Z #8582 £ b {5 F3 %

BNEREP R TR F+_-A
=+— B ANEE RGBT R
B RREE - AN AR ARE S
AT AT {E A A HAS0F ( —Z — R 4F - 509F ) &

RBEMRAEBE S EREZNA
Ez%é%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁféﬂ

HE-_ZT—R"NEKR-_ZE—HF+ A
=t— Etif EELEREEER LT
X¥RRAIER REAMEFERNEND

%FimméﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁKKEIZEH
8 TR IR R A E lﬂﬂL%ﬁﬁ
ZEMNEERRZ REEFLRER

EELIE VT EEGEMPMBBEER =
T—RF+_A=Z+—BZBENHEERE
EITEE - RIEFR AP N EERE
ENHEFRER -_E—A"F+_A=1+—
Hr REEMEBAITREDSE WERES
MBI REEIE 418,766,000/ T (=&
—RF ) Al BB AL BAFE
ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁxmﬁﬁlﬂ%m%m%
AR ERE - TERNEERE Y
Hib FZ /i QMTREE% (ObZES 2
mHELE  WEELEKRAL S&HEE -
AELE TEMEIEMNEMEUTHE
ZHE: (DB R EEEZ Y ER B
HEZENE M ELE S
B ETEER ZEEER  RGHERE
?%izmamﬁiﬁﬁﬁmiﬁﬁm%
BAERBEIMEREN BN EMEE
/T‘ IEQ E'Elfﬁ_jliruﬁ"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

20. GOODWILL 20. &
HK$'000
FET
coST R
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RHF—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) EUEEM B A e mEE (MF39) 188,057
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 R-ZB—EHEFE+-A=+—-HE
—E-R"Et+=ZA=+—H 188,057
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT Rt E
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—RF—HA—BX
—E-hHE+=ZA=+—8 -
Impairment recognised BERRE 64,483
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—ARE+=ZHA=+—H 64,483
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-XRE+=ZA=+—H 123,574
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-_A=+—H 188,057
Particular regarding impairment testing on goodwill are EAEERENR B RN o

disclosed in Note 29.
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS HRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

21. BV EE

Contracted and

uncontracted
customer
Licenses relationships
(Note (b)) (Note (a)) Total
[EHEP
KT Z
A EFEBR&%
(K1eEm)) (Htat(a)) wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET FET
COST R
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RHF—AF—H - 1,827,982 1,827,982
Exchange adjustments P& 5 5E - (102,367) (102,367)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEME 2~ | (HFE39)
(Note 39) 249,000 - 249,000
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 249,000 1,725,615 1,974,615
Exchange adjustments PE & % - (100,466) (100,466)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XREF
+=—HA=+—H 249,000 1,625,149 1,874,149
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 2 &t # 85 & Bl &
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R-—Z—HF—H—H - 1,827,982 1,827,982
Exchange adjustments PE & % - (102,367) (102,367)
Amortisation for the year F 3,320 - 3,320
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+—-—A=+—H 3,320 1,725,615 1,728,935
Exchange adjustments PE 5 5E - (100,466) (100,466)
Amortisation for the year FREH 39,840 - 39,840
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRF
+=-—HA=+—H 43,160 1,625,149 1,668,309
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—X
+=—HA=+—H 205,840 - 205,840
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RHF
+=-—A=+—H 245,680 - 245,680
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) EBEEE (&)
Notes: Bt -
(a) Contracted and uncontracted customer relationships was arising from (a) BETHAIRARGTHEFPAGAREZ =TT NF
the acquisition of INPAX Group during the year ended 31 December + = A=+ —HILFEYWFEINPAXEE i1 E £
2008 and are amortised over its estimated useful life of 10 years on a AE (GG Al E A FEBI0F L EAVL S - 5580
straight-line basis. The balance had been fully impaired during the year REZ-E—ZFF+-F=+—HILFELHK
ended 31 December 2010. JL1E
(b)  Intelligent car parking manufacturing licenses was arising from the (b) BB ELEEFIARBEEZ -—E—HF+=H
acquisition of Success Capture Limited during the year ended 31 =+—H I FE Y FESuccess Capture Limited B
December 2015 (Note 39). 7% (K17239) °
Licenses are amortised over its estimated useful life of 6.25 years on a ZEFT R LA R A& F A (& FF F B6.25F 1R B 4R %
straight-line basis. -3k
BE N\ = >
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. RFE DRz @
Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows: REBRBERRZEAABTOT
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted cost of investment in associates REEE RN RIRE 2 IE LKA 172,219 88,064
Share of post-acquisition profit DA U g 18 5 F 24,654 10,377
Share of translation reserve of associates DlEE A B 2 BB R (6,745) (6,011)
Share of other reserve of associates DIEEE R E) 2 B fE G 2,578 980
192,706 93,410
Amount due from an associate i3 il /NI B E]

— non-current portion (Note) —JERNERES > (M aE) 2,775 -
Amount due from an associate within a year —F AR — [ E A R RIE 4,440 -
Amount due to an associate within a year —F RN — &R RRE (877) -
As at 31 December 2016, amount due from (to) an associate RZZE—XRNF+-A=+—8 EWK ()
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. —MBE AR RESERER 2ERERK

Note: The balance represented secured deposit for borrowings from an Wiat: rEBIEIEN— Rl & ARl e BRIFEELZS (K
associate (Note 32(iv)). ##32(v)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR IS IRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REE N TR 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)

AEBETEBERRNBERRZFEN

Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the

reporting period are as follow: L
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of Proportion of voting
Principal place ownership interests rights held
Name of entity Form of entity  of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
Bl R:E Y AEEfEHRE AEEfE
ERERE BEERA TEEERY BERLA RERLA TEEHR
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-AE |ZE2-1% |Z8-~¥ | Z2-1%

Zhejiang Ocean Leasing Company Limited ~ Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20%  Finance leasing business
(“Zhejiang Ocean”) Baiiava W/ R REHEEE

MLEHHERRBRA

(ITEHl)

Zhoushan Ocean Leasing Company Limited  Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 20% N/A 20% N/A Finance leasing business
(“Zhoushan Ocean”)? (Note a) Baii7av e/ TER THER BEREEH

RLEFEEEREEBRAA
([RWEH]) " (Hizta)

Zhoushan Fishing Development Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 7% 7% 7% 7% Ocean fishery industry and
Services Company Limited AL HE/d providing shipyard finance
(“Zhoushan Fishing")* leasing

RLEFREERERBEERAA BERHAERREMER
(IAg]) EHE

Zhejiang Ocean Lihe Capital Management ~ Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 9% N/A 9% N/A Asset management business
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Lihe”)* BaLAA HE/ TEH TER BEEREH
(Note a)

MIEENEERERAERAR
(DmInal) (Kita)

Beijing ZhongShou Intelligent Parking Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 25.24% N/A 25.24% N/A " Investment and
Management Company Limited (Notea) ~ sEfAK L HE/ AEA @A management of car parks

IRPEREEEERERAA (M) REREREES

Qiandao Financial Leasing Company Limited  Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 25% N/A 20% N/A Finance leasing business
(“Qiandao Financial Leasing”) (Notes a & b)sE M1 e/ T#ER | (Note b) TER REHEEHK

HITEREREFRAR ([TERE]) (Hith)

(Wtakn)

Nantong Xiangyu Ocean Equipment Incorporated ~ PRC/PRC 24% N/A 27% N/A " Shipbuilding, shipping
Company Limited (“Nantong Xiangyu") — #EfAKaz HE TEA (Note c) NEM  logistics, leasing of ports,
(Notes a & c) (Hizte) shipbuilding financial

BREREEFREAREEAR leasing

(MEBRAI) (HWitakc) Ef B BEE

A EMEERS
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

*

Zhoushan Fishing and Zhejiang Lihe are associates of Zhejiang Ocean
# Zhoushan Ocean is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhejiang Ocean
Note:

a) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2016.

b) Merge Limited, a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has
appointed one out of five directors of Qiandao Financial Leasing.

c) According to the shareholder agreement of Nantong Xiangyu,
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has 27% voting rights of
Nantong Xiangyu.

Summarised consolidated financial
information of associates

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect
of the Group’s material associates are set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

Set out below is the summarised consolidated financial
information for Zhejiang Ocean which is accounted for using
the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

22. NErE N B 2w ()

© RURERINI DS BT BERH
Y BUSEBIDEEZ 2 ENBAT
BT

a) ZRARBE_F—NF+_A=+—HILF
JEFAEMAIL

b) AREZEZETEMBRRAIZREFERAFEZE
ETERERREETH %

c) WRIZF BRI RE 3% - A2 m] 2 EEE AN
BRAIFGET (FY) BRAA]ZH AR
27% R E W o

BERNRAZGENBERBE

AEBMEEMERRZEAMBERRE
HR T TXEIN M BERBRERR
BEABYMBRE L RE L QB
e E NG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR IS IRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REBENT 2R (8)
(CONTINUED)
Zhejiang Ocean WOLEF
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets MBEE 1,533,470 1,371,844
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,249,206 873,111
Current liabilities mEAEE (1,241,432) (886,785)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (843,665) (816,887)
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue g 178,878 155,954
Profit for the year F N 68,760 43,956
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FAHMEERE (2,960) -
Total comprehensive income for the year FREMBEEEE 65,800 48,856
Dividends received from associates during FREWEE QB 2B
the year - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

InEMBEMIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REE Tz Es (&
(CONTINUED)
WOLEFE (&)

Zhejiang Ocean (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated
financial information to the carrying amount of the interests
in Zhejiang Ocean recognised in the consolidated financial

AR A M AR E BN 6 @K
EEE 2 IAATT A 2 e 2 AR EME $ B

statements:

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Net assets of Zhejiang Ocean TS EZ EEFE 697,579 541,283
Unpaid registered capital in Zhejiang Ocean AT FE 2 REGE AR AR 232,500 77,500
930,079 618,783

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBRMIEF 2
in Zhejiang Ocean PTG RERE 2R L D 20% 20%

Unpaid registered capital in Zhejiang Ocean REBRALEF 2
by the Group REFEMER (46,500) (31,000)
Exchange realignment bE 5 13 13
Goodwill e 640 640

Carrying amount of the Group's interest REERIIEFZ
in Zhejiang Ocean W7 BEEE 140,169 93,410

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Merge Limited, a
direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, had unpaid
registered capital of USD6 million (2015: USD4 million) to
Zhejiang Ocean, which should be made by 31 March 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REtE N T 2R (F)
(CONTINUED)
Aggregate information of associates that are EREFEHENAT2ELER
not individually material
Set out below is the aggregate financial information of TXXEHFMERIIEE Z B &N 7] 2 [E 8%
associates that are not individually material: ERt
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
The Group’s share of profit REB 5 EHEF 525 N/A 73 A
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEEShEMEEMAS
expenses (142) N/A A3
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income 7N & % 15 2 M U 25 4258 383 N/A A~ A
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBREE QR 2
interests in these associates Hm s REBE 52,537 N/A >3 A
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

REsLE¥Es iR

Details of each of the Group’s interests in joint ventures are AEEREELX s STEERFBTNOT
as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-AF —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Unlisted cost of investments in joint ventures RELRERE ZIELTA 502,578 502,267
Share of post-acquisition profits ﬁfﬂﬂl EERE-Jiawil 52,358 152
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures DB ECEZBREHKE (32,978) (30,301)
Share of other reserve of joint ventures DihEELEZEMFEE 5,503 -
527,461 472,118

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
two joint venture partners on 6 August 2014 in relation to
the establishment of a joint venture company, Zhoushan
Investment Fund, the Group contributed RMB400 million to
Zhoushan Investment Fund, which represented 78.74% of
the equity interests in Zhoushan Investment Fund. Under
the joint venture agreement, all acquisitions and disposals of
significant investments of Zhoushan Investment Fund require
the consent and approval from all joint venture parties. The
Directors are of the opinion that Zhoushan Investment Fund
is therefore classified as joint venture of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REEDEIES (&)
(CONTINUED)
Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the REEZSEEEENMERRZFBOT

reporting period are as follow:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity Form of entity ~ of operation held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
EMRLLE/ REBFEFEEES rEEfiR
ERER ERpA TEEEHY rREERERLA SRLA TEER
2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-XE | 2E-1%F | 2B-RxE | ZT-1&

Zhoushan Investment Fund Incorporated PRC/PRC 78.74% 78.74% 33.33% 33.33%  Equity investment using its own
FURERE EaL E/ capital fund and provision
of management consultancy
services and consultancy
services for setting up

enterprises
MRAEBRERESESN
TRiER & RiR
ERFARBUR
AR 2 R R A R A
Zhoushan China Ocean Technology Incorporated PRC/PRC - 56.50% - 26.66%  Development and application of
(“Zhoushan China Ocean B3l E/ energy saving technologies,
Technology")* research and development and
R ERE production of clean energy
([ REREERR]) * facilities and equipment

development and consultancy
Services on ocean engineering
related equipment technology
HERIHERER
BRER SRR B
MEREE FFIR
RERERNEER

HARS
Jiangxi Yan Jiang Industrial Development  Incorporated PRC/PRC 20.79% N/A 40% N/A - Equity investment using its own
Venture Investment Enterprise B HE/ TER (Note) @R capital fund and provision
(“Jiangxi Yan Jiang") (B of management consultancy
IREIEXBRREIZRERE services and consultancy
(DI&ERI) services for setting up
enterprises
MRABBERERES
TRiER & RiRf
ERHARBIUR

AR RREFARS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Note:

Zhoushan China Ocean Technology is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of Zhoushan Investment Fund. On 15 December 2016, Zhoushan
Investment Fund has disposed of its entire equity interests of
Zhoushan China Ocean Technology to an independent third party with
consideration of RMB593,000,000.

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between two
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and one joint
venture partner on 18 March 2016 in relation to the formation of a
joint venture company, Jiangxi Yan Jiang, the acquisition and disposal
of significant investments of Jiangxi Yan Jiang require the consent
of at least 80% of the members of the management committee. The
Directors are of the opinion that Jiangxi Yan Jiang is therefore classified
as joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial information of joint
venture

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Set out below is the summarised financial information

for joint ventures which is accounted for using the equity

method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2. REBLEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of joint SELECUBERNME (&)
venture (Continued)
Jiangxi
Zhoushan Investment Fund Yan Jiang
RLBELE SIAHT
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-xE 0% —E-RE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT TET
Current assets MEEE 110,980 837,684 222 N/A N3 £
Non-current assets FRBEE 584,909 - 47,730 N/A 38
Current liabilities MEAE (26,384) (2,086) - N/A 7R F
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - - - N/A NER
The above amounts of assets and liabilities il EERBESE
include the following: BETIEE:
Cash and cash equivalents BeRR2EEY 2,074 4,604 222 N/A N33 £
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade FREIH B AE
and other payables and provisions) (TEREESHR
Hi e 5UE REE) (23,752) (488) - N/A i £
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding JEREH B A E
trade and other payables and (MREESR
provisions) HioEAFEREE) - - - N/A /i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB RRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint

venture (Continued)

PAN
=

Zhoushan Investment Fund

EhEIUBERBE ()

Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RURELE piicha Pl
14 April 2016
to
31 December
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE+-A=+-HLEE ZE-RE
A+TMEZE
—E-RE
2016 2015 t=A 2015
—g-Af| -—F-Ef| =T-E| -z-5f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL THT TEx
Revenue e - - - N/A i A
Profit (loss) for the year/period FR/BRET (B]) 66,327 (1,338) 94| NATER
Other comprehensive expenses FREMZERY
for the year (3,400) - - N/A 73 F
Total comprehensive income (expenses) 11,/ #iR 2 E Uz
for the year/period (B @5 62,927 (1,338) (94) N/A 7N F
Dividends received from the joint ER/BAD AL
ventures during the year/period TEIRE - - - N/A 7N F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR FE MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. RE-DEIES (&)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of joint BELRCMBENSE ()
venture (Continued)
The above profit (loss) for the year/period include the rER S EHREMN (BB EEUTS
following: g
Zhoushan Investment Fund Jiangxi Yan Jiang
RUBRELE PNy Pl
14 April 2016
to
31 December
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE+-A=+-HLEFE —E-RE
MA+MEZE
—E-RE
2016 2015 t=A 2015
g~ | —F-mF| =T7H| -—z-mf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TER FTET
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH - - - N/A 7R F
Interest income FIS WA 13 262 - N/A 7R F
Interest expense FBAx% - - - N/A 7N F
Income tax expense FTERES 24,557 - - N/A 38 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB RRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint
venture (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures
recognised in the financial statements:

REghEoES (R)

BRIV BEMBE (&)

A FHFEREE RN B RERER 2N
EhERaMRMEYR:

o b
S

T

Zhoushan Investment Fund Jiangxi Yan Jiang Total
RlkErE TAEMT @i
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE| Z2-0F | ZB-RE| ZZ-nFE| ZB-Rf| —T-0%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL THET THEL T FET
Net assets BEFE 669,505 835,598 47,952 N/A NE A 717,457 835,598
Unpaid registered capital AEAEMER - - 512,510 | NATEHR 512,510 -
Non-controlling interests FirRES - (236,007) - | NATER - (236,007)
Net assets attributable to BEAEEZEE
owners FE 669,505 599,591 560,462 N/A N 1,229,967 599,591
Proportion of the Group's ~ RNEE 2 FrE 1
ownership interest TR LB 78.74% 78.74% 20.79% | N/ATEA
Unpaid registered capital AEAEMER - - (116,239) | N/A TiEF (116,239) -
Carrying amount of the AEERE EAE
Group's interest 527,168 472,118 293 N/A N A 527,461 472,118

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
unpaid registered capital of RMB104,720,000 to Jiangxi Yan
Jiang.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR FE MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. 7 &
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Raw materials R R 21,586 92,074
Work in progress &M 11,770 4,015
Finished goods BURK o 20,340 5,482
53,696 101,571
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS/ 25. & 5 R IE/ &ﬁ/ HtufE
OTHER RECEIVABLES/PREPAYMENT &8 /ﬁ TRIE
2016 2015
—RE —hRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables — non-current portion B RWEIE-IERBE D 683 622
Trade receivables — current portion B RWGIE-REEH D 59,594 38,157
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (801) -
Trade receivables — current portion, net H 5 FEWGRIA
—mENE D - HEE 58,793 38,157
Total trade receivables, net of allowance B o EWRIBEE
for doubtful debts (Note a) (WO REREE) (Mita) 59,476 38,779
Deposits — non-current portion (Note b) e —IERBE D (MFFb) 66,711 -
Other receivables (Note c) H fib e s IE (M atc) 88,427 39,301
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE (15,622) (6,916)
Other receivables, net H b WK IE R 5 72,805 32,385
Value-added tax recoverable A UG Bl #EE 7 IE 149,453 161,767
Deposits placed to agents and a stakeholder FEHARIER —EF=MAEE
(Note d) 2%e (WaEd) 77,002 6,591
Total other receivables, net H fib e W IB F 4B K8 299,260 200,743
Prepayment (Note e) FETRIA (M ite) 426,389 174,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS/
OTHER RECEIVABLES/PREPAYMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade
receivables include (1) trade receivables from factoring services with
one year credit period; (2) trade receivables from intelligent car parking
and automotive related products with average 90 days credit period;
and (3) retention receivables for intelligent car parking with range from
one to two years under the respective terms of contract.

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables are non-interest bearing,
except for trade receivables from factoring services with aggregated
amount of HK$2,331,000 (2015: HK$28,556,000) which bear interest
rate of 12% (2015: 12%) per annum.

The amount mainly represent the non-refundable deposit paid to a
property developer for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$66,600,000 (RMB60,000,000) which located in the
PRC with the total consideration of approximately HK$145,577,000
(RMB13,150,000).

Included in the other receivables, amount of approximately
HK$26,640,000 (RMB24,000,000) represented the earnest money
deposits paid in relation to the establishment of a joint venture in the
PRC under a cooperation framework agreement dated 28 December
2016 (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”). The details of
the Cooperation Framework Agreement has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain vessel buyers have
made progress payments for shipbuilding contracts to four agents
and one stakeholder (2015: three agents and one stakeholder) rather
than directly to the Group. The Group has the entitlement to these
progress payments in accordance with the contracts but the balances
are custody by the agents/stakeholder to ensure the progress payments
are used to pay for the costs to relevant shipbuilding contracts. The
progress payments held in custody will be paid over to the Group
based on the shipbuilding progress.

Prepayment represents amount paid for purchase of raw materials,
steel plates and vessel components for shipbuilding during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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25. EZEWRIERE HibRE

R IE, TR ROE ()

Fitat -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

REZE—NF+ZA=F+—HER=F—AF+=
A=+—H FTEBEEZERNIECIERE
Rz ESENE (EEHR—F) QBE
BB(EERTEEBER ESEWRE (F
HEBERIABI0K) : & (3)E AL EEERFEIIR
B2 (IREMEBEE IR BB —FIWF)

RIZB-—XNF+ZA=+—H E5ELHN
BRR L WRERKEZEZENFIERE
2,331,000/ 7T ( = Z — A 4 : 28,556,000/% L)
REFRI2% (ZF—HEF 12% )18 ¢

R E B AR B 49145,577,0007% 7T
(ARM13,150,0005T ) Y i D2 ) 2 - iR
BRRBEEN —EWERARE S T REES
#766,600,000/% 7T ( A R #60,000,0007T) °

Hb WA ECIERRRIEA AT —NF
+ZAZ+NAZEEELZ ([E1EIELE R
FRFPER I EERFIE M HESKEH
26,640,000/& 7T (A & #24,000,0007T) ° 5 £
AEER G FBER A AR AR =T —~
FH+ZAZF+NHZRAE-

HBE-F—ANF+-A=1+—HIFE EFH
MEXREMNERER —EFZEEE (=F
—RF ZERER-AFEERE) MIFEE
AR E B X AT B & 40 2 R - AR E
BRREE W IRE S MR d
B R iR E T E - UEREEHBARZ
TEBEEM & LAV o AL E R KRR
WRIBEMEE X T AEE -

ANHEEREE—E—NF+=-A=+—H
Ek-FE-—RF+-_A=+—HILFEEEEM
Z I SR RARARES AT ST 2 AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR FE MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS/ 25. BHEWRIE 1Re HibfE
OTHER RECEIVABLES/PREPAYMENT R IE RN RE (F)
(CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of THABEEHNBEH XNBHEIES

allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on contract FEN IR (FOBR RERIE M) M BAR 2 BR

date/delivery date at the end of the reporting periods: BT

2016 2015

—E-AEF i S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FAET

0-90 days 0£90H 56,643 38,225

More than 90 days but not exceeding one year  90H A _E{E —F K 1,320 554

In more than one year A —F 1,513 -

59,476 38,779

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the aging RZE—RF+_A=+—AK=ZZT—1H

analysis of trade receivables that was past due but not F+ZA=+—H EaBRERREZE
impaired are as follows: SREWEIE 2 BRER DTS

Past due but not impaired

BRBERRE
Neither
past due nor More than
Total impaired 1-30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
BRBH

@t FRBE 1E30H 31Z60H 61E90H 90HM L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE 59,476 58,984 471 21 - -
+=A=+-H

At 31 December 2015 RZT—A1F 38,779 38,779 - - - -
t-R=t-A

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired EREERBECEHRKFIEERNEE

relate to customers that have a good track record with the FEEERTCERPER - RIEBTLER

Group. Based on past experience, management believes AR EEEETESKEBEBEBERD

that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of WAR BRI E  WERER BB AR

these balances as there has not been a significant change ZEERELRERE ~EEYEEZ

in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully SEBBEEAEER-

recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS/ 25. B EWNEIE, e HitrE
OTHER RECEIVABLES/PREPAYMENT WkE,FERIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade I RUGIAEZ RIREHEE)

receivables:

2016 2015
—F-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 January n—A—H - 92 344
Amounts written-off as uncollectible i $E AR B~ 508 - (92,344)
Impairment recognised BERRZBE 844 -
Exchange realignment B 5, FE =L (43) _
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 801 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR FE MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS/ 25. 5 EWRIE R HibE
OTHER RECEIVABLES/PREPAYMENT W FRIE S FE AT FRIE ()
(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade REEBRR ANEEZE 5 ENGRIBER
receivables were individually determined to be impaired. Bl E BIRE
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for other Efh WA RERE B E)
receivables:
2016 2015
— —F-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January n—HA—H 6,916 6,916
Impairment loss recognised BRERZBEESE 9,177 -
Exchange realignment b H & (471) -
At 31 December W+=-A=+—H 15,622 6,916
Included in trade receivables, other receivables and 2 5 FEWGRIE - B e W SR IE R IE A B
prepayment are the following amounts denominated in a BIETIAAREE N EELINEBEEHE
currency other than the functional currency of the Group: ZFIA
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—AF
'000 '000
Fi T
usD ETT 23,450 11,678
EUR B 17,434 8,478
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 26. FEEE 2 RE
2016 2015
—EB-AF —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Listed securities: EWES:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT 2 RAFES 2,177 1,952
27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. EmEHENRE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed as: DT
Current R 17,833 15,390
Non-current ERE - 13,028
17,833 28,418
Amounts receivable under finance leases MEMREE T EWFIE
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH T
Finance lease receivables U g & EFKIA 20,348 32,033
Less: Unearned finance income R AR B EL R E A (2,245) (3,328)
Present value of minimum lease payment SERERHEEFIARE
receivables 18,103 28,705
Less: Accumulated impairment loss B REDRESE (270) (287)
17,833 28,418
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. B mEHEERE (8)
(CONTINUED)
Amounts receivable under finance leases MEHEE T ERFE (5)

(Continued)

The maturity profile of these finance lease receivables from
customers at the end of the reporting period, analysed by the

RIBEHR

ZERKEFPBREMETA
REBEAQIHAZRSKBE DN 22 H

remaining periods to their contracted maturity, is as follows: (CR U
2016 2015
—E-REF —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Repayable (including interests) ARLA T HIfSEE
(BHEME)
Within one year —FR 20,348 17,915
One to two years —EMF - 14,118
20,348 32,033
Repayable (net of interests) ARATHEEE
(HBRFIE)
Within one year —F R 17,833 15,390
One to two years —EWF - 13,028
17,833 28,418
Accumulated impairment loss RETRERE
At the beginning of year F4 287 378
Exchange realignments bE 5 R (17) (21
Reversal for the year F D - (70)
At the end of year FR 270 287
There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection BMEERAAEERERELT sk AREE

with finance lease arrangements or contingent lease
arrangements of the Group that need to be recorded as at

the end of the reporting period.

The finance lease receivables bear interest rate at 7.6%

(2015: 7.6%) per annum.

LHRARERFGEEERREHRAT -

B M e A T ROR R 4RI KT.6% (ZF

—HhF:76%)FHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 28.

BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2015: from 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.35%
to 2.75% per annum and were pledged for secured bills
payables and bank borrowings as required by the relevant
banks (Note 32).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Group:

SR ITFERBITHEBRRK

B

RITHERIR ™5 M E W EF0.01%=E
0.35% (ZZ—H% :0.01%%0.35% ) Z #

B o
/Th

HE-_Z—FRA+-_A=+—HIEFE B
WIRIRITF U EE E B R FF0.35% %
2.75%2 F) B Wik HFARITE KA EE R
ERNEERIETEE (M:E32) -

EERARTEALRTEHRLRSBET
FIAREE T e ¥ LASNE B FTHE 2 A -

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E-RF

'000 ‘000

F T

usD ETT 60 3,781
EUR BT 1 358

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash are the following amounts which are subject
to foreign exchange control regulations or not freely
transferable:

ERRARTEFALBTERLIRECES
TFIESNEE BIAR BIAR PR KA EE B B ik

ZHRIE

2016 2015
i —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Amounts denominated in: SIAATIER :
— pledged bank deposits —BEBIRITER - 81,533
— bank balances and cash —RITEB IR ® 100,167 33,396
100,167 114,929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

29. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

Impairment test on goodwill and intangible
assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and license
with definite useful lives set out in Notes 20 and 21 have
been allocated to one cash generating unit (“CGU").

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$64,483,000 (2015: Nil) in relation to goodwill arising on
acquisition of Success Capture Limited and its subsidiaries
which engaged in the intelligent car parking and automotive
device business segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and
their major underlying assumption is summarised below:

Intelligent car parking and automotive device
business segment

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 20.55% (2015: 24.72%). The cash flows
beyond the b-year period are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%). This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of intelligent car parking and automotive device business to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of intelligent car
parking and automotive device business.

29. AAERVEAFH HER

ERERAUERAEH2ETE
B2 RERR

BERETLEERENR

SURE RIS - 20 R21ME AR B
RAEAFHR B LFAICOEEZ @
ReESEM (ReEELEM]) -

BHE-ZT—R"E+_A=+—81LFE
7K £= B 5 Y % Success Capture Limited 2
HNE AR (RERNEEFERAEET
¥BoE)MEA B ERRRBERBELY
64,483,000 (ZE—HF &) °

NEREELBEMA YO SENREERR
FZE BRI T :

ERFERTEEFREELH

BT E B REBEEREEZ G
BEMETE - -ZtEERANBRSRERR TS
ERNEREHEREDFHNTHEEER
20.55% (=T — & :24.72% ) BBR B Al
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ"@”iﬁ‘ TEHNREREGIUR
EHB% (ZTE—RF:3%)ERIXHEER
SE g R R TR B BT EIE R T &I &
BEHABITENFARIPBER R - H A
RABEREENTIEZERRINBREHEE
?E;%t&%ﬂE)‘]fﬁi/)lu]\///luﬂjfﬁﬁ FAR
EJrB%)E’:\%{ﬁH’\Ji@&%ﬁ&EIEF;Tm%
ERAOPHL - EEEIAREMAZFMREKN
ER &R EE S, Hﬁ?\@&fiﬁl*”*ﬂ =
MAEEFEBNAKRAERBE KD
H) 42 4 %A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

30, B RBERHEHMEMNFIA

Notes:

(i) The balances represented guarantee fee payable to several guarantors
in relation to their guarantee on the banking facilities and borrowings
obtained by the Group at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

(ii) Material balances included in other payables and accruals are as
follow:

(a) The Group has accrued the land use tax of approximately
HK$38,404,000 (equivalent to RMB34,598,000) at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$33,807,000 (equivalent to
RMB28,650,000)).

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Fitat -

(i)

(ii)

2016 2015
—E-AE S S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Consideration payable for acquisition of property, WEEWE - HE L&RE 2
plant and equipment — non-current portion JERRE—FEREE 4,937 -
Trade payables =) ANE e 70,860 54,192
Bills payables NS - 141,600
Consideration payable for acquisition of IWEETRENHEERIAZ
prepaid lease payments FERRE 41,865 44,505
Payable to guarantors (Note i) T HEIR AFIE (Mati) 1,652 5,888
Contribution payables to labour union ERITERHBEESHK
and education funds 12,668 12,491
Accrual of contractor fees fEET & 7,135 17,707
Accrual of government funds EETBNES 28,860 30,680
Other payables and accruals (Note ii) HMENRIERETER
(Htatii) 248,187 192,195
411,227 499,258

BBER T —ANF+-_A=+—ARkR=-F—A
FHZA=+—HptE TERARKEETE
RITEE RIEEIRHZ ERTE 1552 R
B -

STARMENHIER Gt B2 BARERIT

(@ R-FE—XNF+-A=+—H Fr&£H
JE &t + (& A B £938,404,000% 7T (1A
FERA R#34,598000) (—E—#
4F : 33,807,000 7T (1HE R AR
28,650,0007T) ) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(b)

(c)

The Group has accrued salaries of approximately
HK$31,573,000 (equivalent to RMB28,444,000) at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$25,282,000 (equivalent to
RMB21,426,000).

The Group has accrued the social security fund for its
employees of approximately HK$40,206,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,221,000) at 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$39,681,000 (equivalent to RMB33,628,000). Pursuant to
a repayment agreement signed between Jiangxi Shipbuilding,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the relevant
government authority on 26 January 2015, the amounts
of accrued social security fund should be repaid before
December 2019.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables

presented based on invoice date or issue date, respectively,

30.E5 RREREMENKE
(%)

Wit :

b)) RZZFE—XNF+ZA=+—H K%
[ JE &t 37 2 #931,573,000/ ¢ (10 &
KA R#28,444,000T) (ZF—7#
F :25,282,000/8 ¢ (1HER AR
21,426,0005T) ) °

0 RZFE—XNF+ZHA=+—H"
AEBERIEEH NN ETHRE S
& BB #940,206,0008 T (HHERA
R #36,221,000t) (=ZF— A F:
#139,681,0008 T (IHERARK
33,628,0007T) ) - IRIEA 1 5] 2 & W&
R AL &M BB TS PIR = F
—AFE—AZ+NAFFTZEN
JEHRES EHARZTE—NF+=
FRiE#E -

T RORREBEEZAHRE L B2
5 RNFERENRENREHR R

at the end of the reporting periods: RO -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
0 - 30 days 0—30H 9,315 56,526
31 - 60 days 31—60H 7,439 25,156
61 — 90 days 61—90H 3,730 72,634
Over 90 days H#E90H 50,376 41,476
70,860 195,792

Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

B RN SERT 28 MBRENR

\

i

g
A

o

il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

—RETZA=+—-HILFE

30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.E 5 -EE K HthERE
(CONTINUED) (&)
Included in trade payables is the following amounts E S EMNFIE ?EMTI[?FJ«A$EIUJ
denominated in a currency other than the functional EBIHEZ A
currency of the Group:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FRF
'000 '000
F T
usD E7T 1,036 -
AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS FOR B1. ERIZEFAEHNIRFIE

31.

CONTRACT WORK

2016 2015
—E-NEF —HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Contracts in progress at the end of RERARCEREEL:

the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to date S FTEE Z B KA 1,305,511 1,227,596
Recognised profits less recognised losses B R m FB B R E 18 (433,789) (381,766)
871,722 845,830
Less: progress billings S SR (888,899) (1,118,477)
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREFAHNIEREA (17,177) (272,647)

As mentioned in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Delay has impacted the Group’s shipbuilding business.

Up to the date of this report, the Group have not reached any
formal agreement with the Three Customers. The Directors
are of the opinion that the Group could reach the agreement
with the Three Customers and they would not exercise their
rights to issue the rescission notices to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

32. BORROWINGS 32. 8 &
2016 2015
—EB-AF —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T T
Bank borrowings RITEE 992,857 363,452
Other borrowings HiEE 1,095,339 843,687
2,088,196 1,207,139
Secured BE 554,862 356,173
Unsecured 3K 1 1,533,334 850,966
2,088,196 1,207,139

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable

as follow (Note):

i)

PR EEZREERR T HAEIEER (Y

2016 2015
ZE-RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year R—FR 1,049,146 953,153
Within a period of more than one year —F A B HEAMF R
but not exceeding two years 562,242 168,793
Within a period of more than two years M DA_E{B A R F ERRE
but not exceeding five years 476,808 85,193
2,088,196 1,207,139
Less: Amounts due within one year B EARHBYIERB A
shown under current liabilities Exra (1,049,146) (953,153)
Amounts show under non-current liabilities FIESERENBEE R 1,039,050 253,986

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.

Pt - BIBISRIR TS LA Bk s e Tl at B8 5k A 5 228 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the

contractual maturity dates were as follows:

32. 58 (&)

%N

S

BEREENREREADEIHEMT

2016 2015
—E-AE S S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Fixed-rate borrowings repayable: EEEBERNTHHRES:
Within one year R—FR 803,446 709,711
Within a period of more than one year —FP L ETEBR
but not exceeding two years P AF B F 409,867 149,760
Within a period of more than two years M LA LB R
but not exceeding five years HFHIR 159,542 21,473
1,372,855 880,944

The exposure of the Group’s variable-rate borrowings and the AEEZEEENRRERALIAENT
contractual maturity dates were as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Variable-rate borrowings repayable: HEBEZIZEMEE:
Within one year —F N 245,700 243,442
Within a period of more than one year —FLAEETEE
but not exceeding two years GES:IE 152,375 19,033
Within a period of more than two years M LA_EB B
but not exceeding five years FF H R 317,266 63,720
715,341 326,195
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R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as

follows:

32. & (%)

AEEEEZEREANE (FASEREFTH

ME)ZBEMT

2016 2015
—B-AF —ThHF

Effective interest rates:

Fixed-rate borrowings (bank and BEE

other borrowings) (SRITREME
Variable-rate borrowings (bank and FEEE

other borrowings) (SRITREME

The details of other borrowings are as follows:

(i)

(if)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has loan advances
from employees of approximately HK$2,268,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,043,000)
(2015: approximately HK$3,292,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,790,000)) which bears interest
rate of 15% (2015: 15%) per annum and will be
repayable within one year. The proceeds were used to
finance the daily operation of the Group.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has loan
advances from several independent third parties
of approximately HK$701,882,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB632,326,000) (2015:
approximately HK$534,447,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB452,921,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.
The borrowings carry variable interest of a range from
0.35% t0 43.80% (2015: 0.35% to 30%) per annum.

0.35% - 43.80% 0.35% - 30%

4.75% - 8.03% 4.75% — 7.56%

HitpfEE ZFBWT

(i)

(ii)

R-ZE—XRE+-_F=+—H XK
SEHEE B ERE 2,268,000
BT (FBER# A R2,043,0007T)

— T — R F 493,292,000 7T (18
B R # AR 2,790,000t ) ) 1% F F
E15% (ZE—ARF :156% )5t B NAE
—FRNEE-FIBREBEDRERNEER
ZEBRREES-

RZE—RNFE+ZA=+—H &&
EREAEREBYE=FREZEX
FFA9701,882,000/8 7T (FAERLIA
FR#632,326,0007T) (ZZE—H%F:
#)534,447,000/8 7T (HERHARE
452,921,0007T) ) - ZF G HIELE
ARBNAEEZBEEE -ZFE
ERNTEF0.35%%43.80% (—F
—HF :0.35%F30% ) ZFEAIEGT
8o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iv)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has loan advances
from one of the shareholders of the Group’s associate,
Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately HK$326,779,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB294,396,000)
(2015: approximately HK$251,668,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB213,278,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.
The borrowing carries interest of 8.5% (2015: 8.5%)
per annum. Mr. Li Ming, the executive director of
the Company and an independent third party have
provided a guarantee to secure the payment obligations
of the borrowing.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has loan advances
from an associate, Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately
HK$64,410,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB58,027,000) (2015: HK$54,280,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB46,000,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.
The borrowing bears interest rate ranging from 5.0% to
7.6% (2015: 7.6%) per annum and secured by deposit
as details in Note 22. The repayment terms are ranging
from 2 to 3 years.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, there was no repayment
on demand clause on the Group’s bank borrowings and other
borrowings.

At 31 December 2016, borrowings of approximately
HK$554,862,000 (2015: HK$356,173,000) were secured by
collaterals as details in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2016,

a bank borrowing of

HK$119,897,000 (equivalent to RMB108,015,000) (2015:
HK$126,260,000 (equivalent to RMB107,000,000)), which
bears interest at 5.75% (2015: 6.46%) per annum, will be
repayable on 7 March 2019 and was secured by the entire
equity interests of Jiangxi Shipbuilding.

All the borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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RSB IMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

33. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 33. RERE
HK$'000
FETT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H 142
Additional provision for the year FAFEINEE -
Exchange adjustments ME W EE (2)
Reversal of provision BB (140)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H -
Additional provision for the year FRNEBINE 3,539
Exchange adjustments ME X R (182)
Reversal of provision B RO -
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—ARF+=ZBA=+—H 3,357

The Group provides a one-year warranty on shipbuilding
and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. The provision is estimated based on historical
data of the level of repairs and replacement.

AEEREMRER - FOREN  WEEHE
ERBHRREEEBREANER BHET
RIBE REBKF B EBIRMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, A
Number of ordinary shares Amount
EERYA K
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE ~“E-nF —E-RF —T-Rf
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BREE0.05%8 L2 EBMK
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRk
+ZRA=+-A 20,000,000,000 | 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January n—H—H 11,957,983,840 7,530,722,155 597,899 376,536
Issue of shares upon conversion of B IR ATARESV (F &
CBVI (as defined in Note 35) R M3E35) K BT
(Note a) (Hista) - 3,330,000,000 - 166,500
Issue of share upon conversion of R iR AT IR EHVII
CBVII (as defined in Note 35) (B % RI1E30) B ETT
(Note b) Bf3 (Bfatn) - 300,000,000 - 15,000
Issue of shares for the acquisition of ~ Z TR 1A AUREEHT B A 7]
subsidiaries (Note c) (Katc) - 259,500,000 - 12,975
Issue of shares for settlement BIRMABEER
of loans (Note d) (Hiitd) - 537,761,685 - 26,888
Issue of shares upon exercise R ERERETRG
of share options (Note e) (Hizte) 40,000,000 - 2,000 -
Issue of shares upon conversion R IRATAREHIX (F &
of CBIX (as defined in Note 35) R M3E35) K BT
(Note ) (Hitn) 4,775,000 - 239 -
At 31 December RT=A=1+-8 12,002,758,840 11,957,983,840 600,138 597,899
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R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain holders of CBVI
(as defined in Note 35) converted of HK$666,000,000 of CBVI for
3,330,000,000 new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.20
per conversion share (Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the holders of CBVII
(as defined in Note 35) converted of HK$60,000,000 of CBVII for
300,000,000 new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.20
per conversion share (Note 35).

On 4 December 2015, the Company has issued 259,500,000 new
ordinary shares to the vendor in relation to the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Success Capture Limited (Note 39).

On 25 September 2015, the Company, Jiangxi Shipbuilding, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and certain
creditors of Jiangxi Shipbuilding (the “Creditors”) entered into a
subscription agreement, in which the Creditors could subscribe for
537,761,685 new ordinary shares of the Company at the subscription
price of HK$0.26 per subscription share, for the settlement of the
loans in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB114,944,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$139,818,000) due to the Creditors
with all rights and benefits attaching thereto and thereon. The
subscription was completed on 13 November 2015 at a closing price
of HK$0.28 per share. As a result, loss on settlement of loan by
issuance of shares of approximately HK$10,755,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Details of the subscription have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 September 2015.

On 15 January 2016, the Company issued and allotted 40,000,000
new ordinary shares to the executive director of the Company, Mr. Li
Ming (“Mr. Li"), upon exercise of the share options by Mr. Li at the
exercise price of HK$0.211 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the holder of CBIX (as
defined in Note 35) converted HK$1,000,000 of CBIX for 4,775,000
new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.2095 per
conversion share (Note 35).

All new shares issued during the years ended 31 December

2016 and 2015 ranked pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects.

34. |7 (48)

i

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

REE-_F—hE+-_A=1+—HIFE T
A[ AR EHVI (E&ERM:H35) 2 B AR H R
(& &I 5 12 1R 170.20/% JT #666,000,000/% 7T 2
] #2 I8 & 2 VI i, #2 £43,330,000,000% 37 & i A%
(KtaE35) »

REE-E—AF+-_A=+—HIFE 7
HRES VI (FERNH35) 2 F AL L IEE
B H # % 170.20 7T #560,000,00078 7T 2 AT #4
SR 1E 25 VI #2 300,000,000 37 2 78 1% ( ff 3
35) ¢

R-ZFE—AF+-ANH XRAAIEHIKE
Success Capture Limited#) % & 2 B 7T IR A6 &
5 #77259,5600,0004% 37 & @ i (K17#39) -

RZEFE—AFAA=+EH FAAE ARER
B2 AN BT M KT FaEm & FERA
([EREAL)ET LRI % - & EREA TR0
(B 7 IR 58 fE AR 170.26)% 7T 58 537, 761,6850% 7K
RAJFT GBI AEEETERERAZ B
HIA R #114,944,0005T (8% K #9139,818,000
BT B ERIER AR ER 2 BT R
Rz REFBEER -_E—AF+—A+=H
SER T B AR ER0.28E T - At - B BFE B
BITR (71838 B30 2 B8 4710,755,0007% 7T B2
i & 18 REM P E W e KR - R EF I
HIERARGAH A -—E—HFAA-—F+NA
ZRAHAREE -

RIB-NF—A+THA KRFRARA]H
TTEEFHELE ([FEE]D RITEEERR N
021 TTATIEFEIRER M F SE BT R %
40,000,0008% #7 & %

REZE-ZF—ANF+_A=+—HILFE 7
HERREFIX (EERMTE35) 2B AIZLILE
&R H 12 R 170.2095:% JT #51,000,000% 7T 2 A]
Fa (& 25 IXH ¥4 /34,775,00088 57 &8 AL (Ff et
35) ¢

REE-ZZE—X"FER-_E—RAF+=A
ST RALFERTZHMBETRGESH
HEREROHZEERZEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES

(@)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVI

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,000,000,000 (the “CBVI"). The CBVI is
denominated in HK$. The CBVI carries interest
at 7.5% per annum and is payable annually. The
holder(s) of the CBVI may convert the whole or part of
the principal amount of the CBVI into ordinary shares
of the Company from the issue date to the date before
the maturity date (on the third anniversary of the issue
date, i.e. 26 June 2017), at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.20 per share, subject to certain customary
anti-dilutive adjustments. If the CBVI have not been
converted before the maturity date (the conversion is
at the option of the holder of the CBVI), they will be
redeemed on maturity date at principal amount plus
the accrued interest. Both the principal and interest will
be settled in RMB based on a fixed exchange rate as
set out in the agreement.

The CBVI on initial recognition was considered as a
compound financial instrument that includes a debt
element and a conversion option classified as an equity
element. Also at the initial recognition, the liability
component was measured at the present value of the
redemption amount. The equity element is presented
in equity heading “convertible bonds reserve”. The
effective interest rate of the liability component
is 18.27% per annum determined at the initial
recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, certain
holders of the CBVI had converted the CBVI held
by them with outstanding principal amount of
HK$282,000,000 in consideration for conversion of
1,410,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.20 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
holders of the CBVI had converted the CBVI held
by them with outstanding principal amount of
HK$666,000,000 in consideration for conversion of
3,330,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.20 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no holders
of the CBVI had exercised the conversion options to
convert the CBVI into ordinary shares of the Company.
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R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVII

On 6 March 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 (the “CBVII"). The CBVII is
denominated in HK$. The CBVII carries interest at
7.5% per annum and is payable annually in arrear.
The holder(s) of the CBVII may convert the CBVII
into ordinary shares of the Company from the issue
date to the date before the maturity date (on the third
anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 5 March 2018), at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.20 per share, subject
to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments. If the
CBVII have not been converted before the maturity
date, they will be redeemed on maturity date at the
principal amount plus the accrued interest. Both the
principal and interest will be settled in RMB based on a
fixed exchange rate as set out in the agreement.

The CBVII on initial recognition was considered as a
compound financial instrument that includes a debt
element and a conversion option that was classified
as an equity element. Also, at the initial recognition,
the liability component was measured at the present
value of the redemption amount. The equity element
is presented in equity heading “convertible bonds
reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 24.60% per annum determined at the
initial recognition.

35. BT aRES (&)

(b)

BITARBRESF-—TBRRE
VI

MRZZT—RAF=FRNHE KNAFET
7R #8 %8 /60,000,000 7T #) AT 2%
B ([T ERVI]) - 3R E
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EERHE (FTRR=BF 28"
—ZE—-N\F=AAB)H—RRY
FHBEFRR70.20/8 7T (AT
ETERREERE) ST RERES
VI I BN R R E B AR © fis TR AR (R
VIR B HA B A1 i R 5L 3 - A 70 I H
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RS FEERIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z = — R NF+_A=+—HIEFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. B ES (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVII
(Continued)

The valuation of the CBVII was performed by Greater
China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”). The
inputs used in the model in determining the value of
the liability component on initial recognition were as
follows:

(b) BATARRES-ATRKRE

AV (&)

ABBEFVIZEERZEEFER
[RA®E (MRE])ET - ETRERD
RN MR 2 (BEMRIUE A&
ABEIMT

CBVII at

6 March 2015
R-E—RE
=AXBZ
AR AR E VI

Share price A= 8

Exercise price 1188

Contractual life A 4 HY

Risk-free rate 12 2 B ) =
Expected dividend yield FTEHRRE B &
Volatility )

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all holders
of the CBVII had converted the CBVII held by them
with outstanding principal amount of HK$60,000,000
in consideration for conversion of 300,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.20 per conversion share.
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0%

71.76%
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R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVIII

On 8 July 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the principal amount of HK$200,000,000
(the “CBVIII"). The CBVIII is denominated in HK$.
The CBVIII carries interest at 7.5% per annum and is
payable semi-annually in advance. The holder(s) of
the CBVIII may convert the CBVIII into ordinary shares
of the Company from 8 July 2015 to 8 July 2016, at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.2481 per share,
subject to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments.
Unless previously converted or cancelled or unless
the holder has previously issued an event of default
notice of repayment, the Company shall redeem on the
maturity date all the outstanding principal amount of
the CBVIII at an amount equal to the aggregate of the
outstanding principal amount plus interest accrued.
The CBVIII on initial recognition was considered as a
compound financial instrument that include a debt
element and a conversion option derivative and other
derivative. Also, at the initial recognition, the liability
component was measured at the present value of
the redemption amount. The conversion option
derivative and other derivative was classified as a
derivative liability and was measured at FVTPL at initial
recognition and each reporting date. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 14.9128% per
annum determined at the initial recognition.

35. BT aRES (&)

() RITARRES-TRERE

VI

R-_ZE—RAFEANB RAABET
7K 4 %8200,000,00078 JT 2 Al # i3 (&
FH ([ RBEHVIIN]) - TR E S
VIIFZ B TTHE - AT IR E H VIR F
MER75%:TE AEBYFEES
e BB EHVIIEEATR-Z
—ARAFtEtANBEZZE—R"FNAL
Bz F IR E TR AR5 0.248 17 T
(FIERE TIEEFRESHE)EBR
AR EFVIIARNR T LR - KIE
SRR A AL %
PERENEHBA TRIAQF G
REIER B IR R IR AR S BB INEETF
BEONATBREREAFVIIZFAHRL
BRAETE  TREF VIV PR B
HEEBT S KA BREETET A
MEMITAETAZEATHE I A1
SRV SRR BB IEER
FEMREE - RRPRTETA
MEMTET ESEAITERBTR
M HERES RN SR E B EIR A FE
FABHRFE - BEBD ZERFE
PR ¥ 25 T SR I 12 4F F1) % 14.9128% 51
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVIII
(Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant bond instrument, if agreed in
writing by the Company and the holder(s) of CBVIII at
least ten business days prior to 8 July 2016 (“Initial
Maturity Date”), the maturity date of the CBVIII can be
extended to a date falling on the twelve months after
the Initial Maturity Date (“Extended Maturity Date”,
i.e. 8 July 2017). On 7 July 2016, the Company and
the CBVIII holders entered into an acknowledgement
and confirmation (the “Acknowledgement and
Confirmation”) confirming that the maturity date of
the CBVIII shall be extended to 8 July 2017 and all
other terms and conditions of the CBVIII remained
unchanged. The modification is not accounted for
as an extinguishment under HKAS 39 as the terms
are not substantially different taking into account
that the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is less than 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial liability using the
original effective interest rate. Accordingly, any costs
or fees incurred will adjust the carrying amount of the
liability and are amortised over the remaining term of
the modified liability. The change in fair value of the
conversion option up to the date of the modification of
approximately HK$55,882,000 was recognised in profit
or loss
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 3. B ARRES (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Issuance of convertible bonds — CBVIII (c) RITABRES —TBRRE
(Continued) VI (#8)
The CBVIII after modification contains a debt A]mRERVIIEIEE] & B IEEE S
component and a conversion option derivative. The DR EAESTE T AT T AR
derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or RNEEFAERZE MATEZS
loss with changes in fair value being recognised in fair BAFEFABREITER

value through profit or loss.

The valuation of the CBVIII was performed by Greater AR ESFVIIZ [ ET REEETT -

China. The inputs used in the model in determining the ETEABREESVINTETAEZAF
fair value of derivatives of CBVIII were as follows: ENERFERANEASIRNT

CBVIII at CBVIII at CBVIII at CBVIII at

8July 31 December 7July 31 December

2015 2015 2016 2016

R-ZZE—1F RZE—RE

RZZ-1F TR RIE-RF +=A

+ANBZ s = 4 +tAtBZ =t+—-H2
MAKRERVIL MREEREVIL TREESVI ATREESVI

Share price BB HK$0.13 HK$0.235 HK$0.161 HK$0.216
0.13%7T 0.235%8 7T 0.161% T 02167 T

Exercise price T8 HK$0.2481 HK$0.2481 HK$0.2481 HK$0.2481
0.24817%5 7T 0.24815 T 024818 7T 0.2481% 7T

Contractual life ARNEY 1 year 0.52 year 1 year 0.52 year
14 0.52%F 15 0.52F

Risk-free rate 2 [ e 1 2 0.4997% 0.5601% 0.7286% 1.1291%
Expected dividend yield AR S % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Volatility W iE 81.55% 98.46% 53.02% 37.34%

PBETEEBRAT F{ 2016 241



242

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBIX

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered a
subscription agreement with Macquarie Bank Limited
(the “Subscriber”) in respect of the issuance of
convertible bonds with the aggregate principal amount
of not more than HK$400,000,000 (the “CBIX"). The
CBIX is denominated in HK$. The CBIX comprise of
four tranches with each tranche with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$100,000,000. Each tranche
of the CBIX will be subscribed at a price equal to
94 per cent of the principal amount of the relevant
tranche of the CBIX. The aggregate principal amount
for each tranche will be deposited into a non-interest
bearing bank account of the Company opened with the
Subscriber which will be subject to a charge for the
benefit of the Subscriber as a restricted bank balance
(“Restricted Cash Account”) without interest.

The Company shall not make any withdrawal from
the Restricted Cash Account except with the prior
consent of the Subscriber. If the Subscriber is satisfied
that all amounts which may be or become payable by
the Company under or in connection with the CBIX
have been irrevocably paid in full, the Subscriber will
release, reassign or discharge the security asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBIX
(Continued)

On 15 December 2016, the CBIX with principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 (i.e. the first tranche) were
issued by the Company to the Subscriber. Proceeds
of HK$94,000,000 were received by the Company
on 15 December 2016 and deposited into the above
mentioned Restricted Cash Account. Due to the
restriction as explained above, the bank balance had
been classified as “restricted cash” and separately
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. The CBIX carries interest at 2 per
cent per annum and is payable quarterly in arrears on
31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December
each year. The conversion right in respect of the CBIX
may be exercised, at the option of the holder thereof,
at any time on or after the issue date up to the close
of business on the date falling one day prior to the
maturity date (i.e. on the second anniversary of the
closing date i.e. 14 December 2018, which is no
later than five business days after all the conditions
precedent are satisfied), at a conversion price which
is 100% of the volume weighted average price of the
shares traded on the Stock Exchange on the day on
which the Stock Exchange is open for trading and
the shares are freely available for trading immediately
preceding the date on which such holder submits
an irrevocable notice of conversion to the Company,
provided that no conversion right may be exercised at
a conversion price which is lower than the floor price
(i.e. minimum conversion price of HK$0.18 per share
(subject to adjustment)). Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the Company
will redeem the CBIX at 94 per cent of its principal
amount on the maturity date.

35. BT aRES (&)

(d) B|ITARRES-ATRERE

HIX (&)

R-ZZE-—XR"E+-_A+tHA"
ARAEARBABRBTASER
100,000,000/ 7T = FI# AR & %5 X ( Bl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBIX
(Continued)

The Company may declare a committed conversion
period (the “Committed Conversion Period”) by
delivering to the Subscriber a one prior trading day
notice. The Committed Conversion Period is a period
of twenty qualified trading days during which the
Subscriber shall convert all outstanding convertible
bonds currently held by the subscriber with the date of
issuing the first tranche CBIX.

The Company may declare up to three non-conversion
periods by delivering to the Subscriber a three prior
trading days’ notice. Each non-conversion period
may last for up to 10 trading days, during which the
Subscriber may not issue a conversion notice.

The CBIX contains a debt component and conversion
option derivative and other derivatives.

The derivatives are measured at fair value through
profit or loss with changes in fair value being
recognised in fair value through profit or loss.

The CBIX had been designated by the management
of the Company at FVTPL at initial recognition and at
each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Issuance of convertible bonds — CBIX
(Continued)

The valuation of the CBIX was performed by Greater
China. The inputs used in the model in determining the
fair value of the CBIX were as follows:

35. BT aRES (&)

(d) B|ITARRES-ATRERE

HIX (8)

A MRAR B X2 (18 Y R 2 i 7T o
75 7 T 4R R 1 5 IX A T 0 R U (58
M A BRI -

CBIX at CBIX at

15 December 31 December

2016 2016

RZZB—RE RZIZE-—XKF

+=A +=A

+tEHZ =t+t-—-H2

ARBRERIX  ABRERESRIX

Share price f& (& HK$0.22 HK$0.216
0.228 7T 0.216/8 7T

Exercise price T1E(E Note 1 Note 1
(oEza! =l

Contractual life ABHFEH 2 years 1.96 years
2 1.96%F

Risk-free rate #27 [3 B 1) 1.5830% 1.7166%
Expected dividend yield TEHRRR B % 0.00% 0.00%
Volatility R R 50.51% 50.07%

Note 1:Conversion price is 100% of the volume weighted average price
of the company’s share immediately preceding the conversion
date; but could not lower than the floor price at HK$0.18 per
share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Subscriber of the CBIX had exercised the
conversion option to convert the principal amount
of HK$1,000,000 in consideration for conversion
of 4,775,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2095 per conversion share.

Ffetl - HRIRERA L AR E B E 1% H BT
K3 E NP8 2100% - 18 TFER
EEEZRBR7H0.ISET

RBE-_ZT—R"F+T-A=+—H
IEFE - JRREFIXZRBBASTT
150 mJ #2 5 H3 4 95 38 2K & %8 1,000,000
BT ERERBERESERIBREND
0.2095# 7T ¥ # 7N /X §14,775,0008%
BakzRE-
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(e) The movements of the liability, derivative and equity

component of CBVI, CBVII, CBVIII and CBIX were as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &; ANFE+ZA=+—HLFE

35. B RES (&)

(e) AIBARMEHVI ATRREH VI AT
FREHVIIE AR ESIXZ B E 1T

follows: ETARERED ZEEHMT
Liability Derivative CBIX at Equity
component  components FVTPL  component Total
BAVE
fTETRE  sFABHRZ
aEHs B WHRRESIX ExBs @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—-RF—H—H 572,935 - - 156,621 729,556
Issuance of CBVII and CBVIII  Z1T A[HRE A VIIE
AHARESVII 220,454 19,028 - 20,518 260,000
Change in fair value AFEZE - 35,990 - - 35,990
Conversion of CBVI and CBVII X2 AT EHVI -
AHARESVI (593,535) - - (165,796) (759,331)
Interest charged (Note 11)  BEUFIE (Kfi11) 71,171 - - - 71,171
Interest paid BERFE (32,311) - - - (32,311)
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—1%F
+=ZA=+—H 238714 55,018 - 11,343 305,075
Issuance of CBIX BT BRESIX - - 94,000 - 94,000
Conversion of CBIX RBAHRRESIX - - (586) - (586)
Extension of CBVIII TR AR EFVIIER (14,736) 14,736 - - -
Interest charged (Note 11)  BEUFIS (MsF11) 37,081 - - - 37,081
Interest paid EAFE (18,899) - (460) - (19,359)
Change in fair value NEE - (55,882) (107) - (55,989)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RF
+=ZA=+-H 242,160 13,872 92,847 11,343 360,222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES

(CONTINUED)

(e) (Continued)

35. BT aRES (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Convertible bonds — liability and AR E S
derivative components: —BEMMTEIAES
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MERBEBNDTA:
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 92,847 45,123
Current liabilities BB E 256,032 248,609
348,879 293,732
36. DEFERRED TAX 36. EEIEFIE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets FEIEF IR A B 120 -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEAE (86,071) (115,208)
(85,951) (115,208)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

36. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

36. IEER IR (&)

TIBRAFERBEFECHERZIER
EXETRIBREREERE

Withholding Fair value
tax on adjustments on
undistributed  prepaid lease
earnings of  payments and
the PRC intangible
Provision subsidiaries assets Total
RAE AEE
HEAR HERER
ADKEF EEZ
B ZEME  ALERER wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET BT BT
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-AF—H—H - 30,980 60,212 91,192
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)  WEBERT B A 7] (f15£39) - - 62,250 62,250
Exchange adjustments ERTICES - - (11,532) (11,532)
Credit to profit and loss (Note 12) SFABE (H12) - (24,533) (2,169) (26,702)
At 31 December 2015 WZ_ZE-hET-A=1T—H - 6,447 108,761 115,208
Exchange adjustments B 5 B - - (11,877) (11,877)
(Credit) charge to profit and loss B (GTA) Mk
(Note 12) (Kta12) (120) 14,850 (32,110) (17,380)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=+-8H (120) 21,297 64,774 85,951

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against its
future taxable profits.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$194,419,000 (2015:
approximately HK$175,848,000) and approximately of
HK$984,632,000 (2015: approximately HK$762,252,000)
available for offset against future profits in Hong Kong
and the PRC respectively. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profits streams.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

36. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The tax losses arising from the PRC operations expire five
years after the relevant accounting year end.

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows the details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

Proportion of
Place of incorporation
and principal place

ownership interests and
voting rights held by

36. FEAERLIE (4]H)

B EE Y BUAR B R
FEEREAFER -

FERER
B A R O 2 R
B2 A HE

TREINAEEHEEERNIE R DA
2EMBRBFIG:

37.

Total comprehensive

income allocated to Accumulated

Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
LR BE 3L i B R FEREGEFEHIERERR FEREZEIBRN
HEARER TEEE MY REELH 2HREEE R FERER
31 December | 31 December |31 December | 31 December |31 December | 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XE | IR | ZB-RE | ZT-hF | ZB-RE | ZT-0F
+=A +=A +=A +=A TZA= +=A
=t+-H =+—H =t+-H =+—H +-A =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
China Ocean Materials Trading PRC 45% - (6,521) - 39,953 -
(Shenzhen) Company Limited H
(“China Ocean Materials Trading”)
and its subsidiaries (“China Ocean
Materials Trading Group”)
FEME (RN ERAR
(THE8mEl) R
HiEAR ([PenE%E])
Others Hit (241) 644
39,712 644

At 31 December 2015, China Ocean Materials Trading was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group has disposed of 45% equity
interest in China Ocean Materials Trading to an independent
third party. Details of the disposal has been disclosed in Note
50 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-—RF+A=+—H 1EVER
AEBZ2EMBLRAR -RBE_T—RF
T-A=T—HLFE AEEERABEL
£ HERTBYE Z45% I - BRAH
EZABERBENGA MWK ES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. FERER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of ERABEE R ERNTR EYEEE
the China Ocean Materials Trading Group that has material ZIRAMBERBMESEIWNT o TXATH
non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised WBEREREEBARFERZZEHER
financial information below represents amounts before intra- EojeakEK

group eliminations.

2016

—E-RF

HK$’000

FTET

Current assets MBEE 153,875
Non-current assets FMBEE 116,814
Current liabilities mENEE (188,740)
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE (21,275)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAFHAE NEG#ER 20,721
Non-controlling interests AR = 39,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

37. R ER (F)

(CONTINUED)
2016
—E-XKEF
HK$’000
FERT
Total revenue U 4
Total expenses Rz (12,075)
Loss for the year FNEE (12,071)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KRBVHER AEHEE (6,128)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEVE AR 25 E AL B 1B (5,943)
Loss for the year FREIE (12,071)
Other comprehensive income attributable to ZAN/NSIE ¥ = DN ]
owners of the Company Emaemikas (164)
Other comprehensive income attributable to FE 12 AR 2 B4
non-controlling interests H b 2w (578)
Other comprehensive income for the year FARHMEEKEE (742)
Total comprehensive income attributable to IN/NETE PN )
owners of the Company 2HEWEEEE (6,292)
Total comprehensive income attributable to FEE AR o B 4G
non-controlling interests THEWEERE (6,521)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE WG B (12,813)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

[F) SF 122 RSO 2 S A5 RO A B
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38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE

During the year ended 31 December 2015

On 15 October 2015, Brilliant Plus Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”),
entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) with Pacific Greatest Limited (the
“Vendor”) and Mr. Tang WuQiang, Mr. Ning JiZhong and
Ms. Su RuLing (collectively referred to as the “Guarantors”),
in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Success Capture Limited (the “Acquisition”) at
an initial consideration of HK$67,470,000, which shall
be adjusted upward to a maximum of HK$450,000,000
if the net profit of Success Capture Limited (the “Target
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Target Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Relevant Period”) shall not be less than RMB60,000,000
(the “Guarantee Profit”). The maximum consideration for the
acquisition is HK$450,000,000 (subject to the adjustment
of the Guarantee Profit), which shall be satisfied by the
Purchaser by procuring the Company to allot and issue the
consideration shares to the Vendor in the following manner:
i) as to HK$67,470,000 by the allotment and issuance of
259,500,000 consideration shares on completion of the
Acquisition; and ii) as to a maximum of HK$382,530,000 by
the allotment and issuance of 1,470,500,000 consideration
shares (the “Second Tranche Consideration”), if the net profit
of RMB60,000,000 for the Relevant Period is attained.

In the event that the Target Group’s net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is less than the Guarantee Profit,
the Second Tranche Consideration shall be adjusted in
accordance with the formula as set out in the Company's
circular dated 12 November 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

Bx_F-AF+=-A=1+—H
EFE

R-ZE—RF+A+HB ARrz2EHK
J& A B Brilliant Plus Holdings Limited ([ &
77 1) B2 Pacific Greatest Limited ([ & J71)
RERBLE ZEREBLERKUMNRL
T (HBATERADIIEEH= ([E
Eipeal) WA B RUEESuccess Capture
Limited®) 2 F0E B1TRAS ([WEEEIE]) -
1 # K18 567,470,000/ 7T * f¥Success
Capture Limited ([ E122R])) REMEA
A(HEAEREE] ) RBE-T—RF
TZA=T—HIFE ([1BEHRE]) /48
) #5  L# A R #60,000,0007T ([RE &
F1) BF 5 £ #8 = 5 %450,000,00078 7T © U
88 EIH M & = K & A450,000,0005 7t (7]
KRFHENAE)  BEBBREFRRAR
ARATARMEFEEERBEITRERS
#5144 : ) EF67,470,00078 T i B U =
T8 52 Ak R i 35 K2 2517259,500,000% 1 (8 i%
MEA Rinfis ERABBAREAFNARE
60,000,0007T * & 382,530,000/ 7T & 1B
fid 2% ) 35 171,470,500,0008% KB R 19 ([ 28
THRED) T

MEEREERBE_T - F+-A
=+ HIEFEZANDRRE RN £
HREAREARFDNEHR-_T—RF+—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2015

On 4 December 2015, the Acquisition was completed. The
total fair value of the contingent consideration is valued by
Roma Appraisals Limited, the independent professional
valuer. The valuation of the contingent consideration is
mainly based on the trading price of the Company’s shares,
the latest financial information of the Target Group, the Target
Group’s financial performance forecast and other relevant
indicators.

At 4 December 2015, the fair value of the contingent
consideration is estimated to be approximately
HK$341,218,000. Due to the facts that the final settlement
value of the contingent consideration (consideration shares)
is indexed to the achievement of the Guarantee Profit,
therefore, the fair value of the contingent consideration
is remeasured at 31 December 2015 on the same basis
as above and the Group recognised a fair value gain on
contingent consideration of approximately HK$25,478,000
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as a result of the decrease in share
price of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016

As the Target Group has achieved the Guarantee Profit for
the Relevant Period, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Second Tranche Consideration shall be allotted and issued
in full to the Vendor. As at 31 December 2016, the fair value
of the contingent consideration payable is approximately
HK$317,628,000 which represented the market value of the
Second Tranche Consideration on 31 December 2016.

38. BN HANKE (&)

Bx—_F-HAF+=-A=1+—H
IEFE
WEEER _T-—AF+ - AMBREK-

HRREZR ?Tﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁl%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂi
ESERFEBRABDETHE -LAR
EMEEDEEERAREBRMDKIRIE-
BIEEEZ OV HER BESEZR
BRI R L RS IESL

R-ZE—AF+_ANB HAREBEZA
FAEE 5T #)/4341,218,00078 7T ° AR Bk %4
RE-RERMDzZREZEEBERENR
BB Bt IAREBZATFERZ
T-—AF+_A=t+—BRLHERE%E
E%%%'&F$“ﬂ%FT%%$%E
RirEBEmEREMEE R TERIAR
8 2 N F{E Uz 4925,478,00078 JT °

BE-ZE—XR"E+=ZH=+—H
ILFE

FR 7 B 12 [ B i BUBRI AR 2 (R F -
EERAE HMABERERERERETT
EH-R-E—AF+-A=+—0 &R
HARE 2 AFEHI317,628,0008 T 55
“HRER-ET-AE+-A=+—A2
TS (E(E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —F

38.

39.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The movements of the contingent consideration payable are

—RETZA=+—-HILFE

38. BN HANKE (&)

RN RARBZEBINT

as follows:

HK$'000

FHET
Initial recognition on 4 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+-_AEBYLER 341,218
Fair value change NFEE (25,478)
At 31 December 2015 NZ_ZE—hF+HA=+—H 315,740
Fair value change N EEDH) 1,888
At 31 December 2016 R=2-7 —A=+—8H 317,628
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WEE KB 2 A
During the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZFE—HF+=-A=+—H
ILFEE

As disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial AN4R A B TSR R K sE38FT IR B R =

statements, the Acquisition was completed on 4 December
2015. The Acquisition has been accounted for using
the purchase method. The Directors considered that the
Target Company became one of its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group and the financial performance
of the Target Company would be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group after the
completion of the Acquisition.

The Board of Directors consider that the Acquisition could
diversify the existing business activities of the Group.

The Target Group are engaged in the intelligent car parking
and automotive devices business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. I B AT (&)
(CONTINUED)
Consideration transferred HENRE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration Shares (Note) RERD (M) 66,173
Contingent Consideration Payable (Note 38) JERT AR E (H17E38) 341,218
Total consideration BB 407,391
Note: As part of the consideration for the Acquisition, 259,500,000 ordinary fiat: (ERUEFTEZ 55 1E - 259,500,000/ & f%
shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.05 each were issued. [E180.05/8 7,2 K\ 6] HiBR B 7T - KX\ A]
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company, determined using LBk A TFEDRABKEEEAHATEE
the published price available at the date of the Acquisition, amounted F %58 466,173,000 T
to HK$66,173,000.
HK$'000
FAET
Acquisition — related costs (included in administrative 4 i #H 8 ok A<
expenses in the consolidated statement of profitor — (BIEREGEBERE L
loss and other comprehensive income) HEMEERERZITERAST) 1,001
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WIBFIE A 7 (&)

(CONTINUED)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REEBRBMKEcEERAERAZEBE
acquisition are as follows: R

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) VI BB MR (MaE17) 433
Intangible assets (Note 21) mpEE (MiE21) 249,000
Inventories FE 9,094
Trade receivables B 5 W ETE 8,778
Other receivables and prepayment H b WO IE M TE S 5OE 106,443
Tax recoverable AT EI IR 67
Pledged bank deposit B MIRI TR 8,281
Bank balance and cash RITHESB IR 17,343
Trade payables g S e A (4,014)
Other payables and accruals EmpERIE R ETE A (25,852)
Amount due to former shareholder FEAS B I BR 2 FRIE (13,725)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (72,600)
Other borrowings EmER (990)
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEAE (62,250)
Net assets acquired ki EEFE 220,008
Goodwill arising on acquisition: RUBEEEE2HE:
Consideration transferred Fregs o K& 407,391
Plus: non-controlling interests ho: IR AR R 674
Less: net assets acquired W T B E E R E (220,008)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 20) U TR E & 2 B (KFE20) 188,057
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Target Company
because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of the Target
Group. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Success
Capture Limited

39. WIEMEB AR (&)

WHREEARELHE ARG HRAE
E—EEHRREMSC N EFAaHRK
BERSRERBRHRMG  Kasg xR
KiERERBREEEZRE T 2NEAR
B2 &8 N %E MmN A Al R &
MEEMERERE SULZEMa I #E
EE D FHER -

I B8 Success Capture LimitedZ
RERANFE

HK$'000
TET

Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 is a loss of approximately HK$716,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by the Target Group.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 includes
approximately HK$11,006,000 generated from the Target
Group.

Had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January
2015, total group revenue for the year would have been
HK$184,917,000 and loss for the year would have been
HK$529,730,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

BERBREMRSSEMER

17,343

BWESEHAKREXEZTE

HE-Z-—HEFt+-_A=t—HIFEZ
1B 49716,000/8 7T TR B 2% B 2 ¥
BEE - BE-_E—HE+-_A=+—H
IHFE 7 W 411,006,000 7T Jh EE 4
BEEEEE-

WEBEER _T—AF—A—HEK"
AIREE 2 FRURE BT /184,917,000
B 7T 4 A & 1B 15 43529,730,00078 7T ©
BEEMERFARE RO HEES
BER-_ZE-—hF A HERTKAEHE
BERAER 2 WE REEEENER T
THHERARKEATAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

In determining the “pro-forma” loss of the Group had the
Target Company been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the Directors have calculated the depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and the amortisation of
the intangible asset acquired on the basis of the fair value

39. WIBM B 7 (&)

RN AFE YW B IR A 5] EE AN
SEREZBER EFCRENREBS
HINRARKELZN D FEFEMRED
X BELREBTEARBTLEESRE
M SEAR B UL A B 75 SRR W AR 2 BRI B AT

arising in the initial accounting for the business combination Ho
rather than carrying amount recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements.
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. ERELE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Contracted for but not provided in BRI AEH KRR
the consolidated financial statement: RE B SRR
Unpaid registered capital for the associates Bt N B 2 REGEE AR 128,787 77,500
Unpaid registered capital for the subsidiaries M A a2 REFEME AR 308,802 161,896
Unpaid registered capital for a joint venture —MaERAZ
REGEMER 116,239 -
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisiton & EWEY %  HE &
of property, plant and equipment BBz EARRAL 78,977 -
632,805 239,396
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41.

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEIEHF
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were R EBR RASEBRITRE  BHRIE
pledged for the Group’s banking facilities, bills payables and MEEmEBEZEENT
borrowings:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Bank deposits (Note 28) RITIFR (M 7E28) - 81,533
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) VI S MR (B a17) 148,835 309,052
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) AT EKIE (M5E19) 129,870 151,570
278,705 542,155

As at 31 December 2016, the Company were pledged the
entire equity interest of Jiangxi Shipbuilding to secure a
bank borrowing amounted to RMB108,015,000 (2015:
RMB107,000,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 27
May 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 June 2012, the Scheme 2002 was
expired and those options under the Scheme 2002 shall
remain exercisable pursuant to the rules of the Scheme
2002, and a new share option scheme (the “Scheme 2012")
was adopted.

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2012 is to
recognise and motivate the contribution of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client and supplier
and/or such other person who in the sole discretion of the
board of Directors, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group and to provide incentives and help the Company in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

42.

RZE—RFT+ZA=+—H XRAE
Tfﬁ?ﬁﬁilﬁéitﬁZ’fﬁB%Tié 1?7%%&%?1111)?
AR #108,015,000T (ZE—HF: AR
er“}55107,OOO,OOOTE)Zﬁﬁﬁ

BB T &

AARERZZEZE-_FRA-_ Tt HER®
—IAERERTE ([ ZEZ -F&t8l)) - R
BARRABIR_ZE——F AT+ EH&ET
ZIERBAFAG L@z —TAERRAESR
—ET_FEgeEn M -TT _F5
BT ZBREDARE _ST 58
Z AR W B RN — B R E
(I=Z=—=F&t81]) -

—TE_FFHEAR—T-—FFEAEER
Al RS ENMEAR B - B - R ED - R
EEE - Eﬁ&1ﬁﬁ&/&i$ ]
BIER R G EK A s A KB EL ERA
E@Ai%%ﬁ% PA B #F 7% B2 B 3 169 B)
ARRBBERBEERERHFET I
REFRHEREENLG LERARA]
RHEHBRZR-
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1 per person. Options may be exercised at
any time during the exercise period. The subscription price of
the option shall be determined by the board of Directors but
in any case shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

At 31 December 2016, the number of outstanding share
options under the Scheme 2012 and Scheme 2002 were
876,000,000 (2015: 916,000,000) and 46,449,780 (2015:
46,449,780) respectively, representing 7.69% (2015:
8.05%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

42. IR st & ()

SRMEM —FAREAEAC K LA 8
Bz BREME#HTRE TRITROEK
B EAREARRRBRSFTIER - TS
BEMKEARRR D EITRD 210% °
ERLBREARE L B BET218 N
A WET AN UETT - BB A R 1T (£
HAEAEETE - BREZRBEZRR
EEQET EREMBER T HEERIA
TERESE: (IMNELHER(BARRSH)
REE P B RERPTSR B W HIE
(NEERHAHAEARXZ B AEA
WERMHR B U HE i
ZHEfE-

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H ZF—=
FiAgI k=TT FHE TEARTEZE
R HES B o Bl A876,000,00010 (—ZE—H
4 :916,000,00017 ) }246,449,7801) (=&
— R F:46,449,78010) MEARAFEHLE
BTN 27.69% (—FE—HE:805%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The following table discloses details of the options held by
Directors, employees and other persons and movements in
such holdings during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015:

Scheme 2002

42. IR Es & ()

TEREBBRE_T-R"FR-_T-AF
TZA=+—HLEE EF EEKRHEM
ANLFBAEBEREZFE  UREBERK

PZ X

=

Number of

share options
outstanding at

31 December 2016

and
31 December 2015
Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1 January 2015
R-ZE—RE
+TZA=+—-BR
—E-HF
+tZBA=+—HRK
—Z-HAF¥—H—H
=g & A A[4T £ A BRITEE HMRTEBEREHE
(Note a)
(Ktata)
Directors 5 March 2008 5 March 2008 to HK$5.693 2,529,600
= ZETNF 4 March 2018 5.693/ 7T
—AAH —EE)N\F=HRABZE
—FE-N\F=HAMA
5 March 2009 to HK$5.693 1,897,200
4 March 2018 5.693/8 7T
—EENF=RAAHZE
—E-N\F=ZAMA
5 March 2010 to HK$5.693 1,897,200
4 March 2018 5.693/8 7T
—E-EF=-AAARZE
—E-NF=ZAWMA
6,324,000
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M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42. BB FETTE (])
(CONTINUED)
Scheme 2002 (Continued) “EEFE (EF)

Number of

share options
outstanding at

31 December 2016

and
31 December 2015
Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1 January 2015
R=ZB—REF
+=ZA=+—BEK
—E-EHF
+=A=+—-H8BK
—E-HF—-H—H
=B & AH A TR EAE BRTEE HRTEBREHAR
(Note a)
(KHtita)
Directors 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to HK$4.523 1,644,240
=2 —TENF 6 May 2018 4.523% 7T
AA+EH —EENFRAERZE
—E-NFRAXA
7 May 2009 to HK$4.523 1,233,180
6 May 2018 4523 7T
—EENFRALERZE
—E-N\FRARH
7 May 2010 to HK$4.523 1,233,180
6 May 2018 45237 7T
—E-FEFRAALAE
- NFHHAXH
4,110,600
10,434,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

Scheme 2002 (Continued)

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

42. IR Es & ()

[
AN
A;
'l
il
=114
(Bl
i

Number of

share options
outstanding at

31 December 2016

and
31 December 2015
Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1 January 2015
R=ZB—RF
+=ZHA=+—-HEK
—E-HF
+=ZA=+—-HE
—E-HF—-H—H
%8 REBH AT EA BRITEE HRTEBREHAR
(Note a)
(Mtita)
Employees 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to 6 May 2018
E& ZEZ)N\F —EZN\FRAELEZE HK$4.523
AAtEH —E—-N\FHAAXH 4.5237% 7T 935,952
7 May 2009 to 6 May 2018
—EENFRALHZRE HK$4.523
—E—-N\FHHAXH 4.523% 70 701,964
7 May 2010 to 6 May 2018
—ET-ZTFRALHZE HK$4.523
—ZE-N\FhHHAKH 45237 701,964
2,339,880
Consultants 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to 6 May 2018
(Note b) —EENF —EEN\FHRALRZE HK$4.523
&R (Kfathb) A A+EH —ZE-N\FRHAKRH 45237 33,675,300
46,449,780
Exercisable at
the end of the year
RERAITHE 46,449,780
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE —Z— ~F+_A=+—HILFE

- =
42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42. EERETTE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Scheme 2002 (Continued) —EET_F5E (&)

Notes: ez

a. The initial exercise prices of the share options granted on 5 March a. RZZFEZENF=ZARAR-_FTENFHAL
2008 and 7 May 2008 are HK$0.18 and HK$0.143 respectively. HIZH 2 ERRIEZ W1 7TEE 5 5 AO. 18}%7%
Upon the share consolidation became effective on 25 June 2009 and RO.143FB T - FER D EHR=ZFEZENFANA
the open offer and the related bonus element became effective on 7 ZTHASER UK AR E RIBEALFIE 2R
September 2010, the exercise prices of share options were adjusted to ZE-FFNAEALENE  BREZITEREDE
HK$5.693 and HK$4.523 accordingly. 7 B HEJE 3 B Z=5.693% 7T 5 4.523 7T ©

b. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the b. AT 5L Y BB % A & INPAXSE [B] 2 (1L B8 [ AR 75

acquisition and operation of INPAX Group.

The weighted average remaining contractual life and TETFFHEE TN ZMARITEBEREN
weighted average exercise price of the outstanding share bD*é?i’]ﬂﬁ?m A FEH R NEFETEE
options under Scheme 2002 is approximately 1.3 (2015: DRI ABLIF(ZE—RF 23F )1 E
2.3) years and HK$4.682 (2015: HK$4.682) per share HxHxTﬁM 6828 L (ZZT —h F :4.682%
respectively. JT) e
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

42. IR Es & ()

(CONTINUED)
Scheme 2012 —E-ZF58
Number of share options
BRERE
Outstanding at Outstanding at Outstanding at
Subscription 1 January Granted 31 December Exercise 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercisable period price per share 2015 during the year 2015 during the year 2016
R-B-E1% RZE-5x%
K-B-1% +2f t=A
-A-H =t+-H =t+-H
8 BHEH Bkl SRABE MR RERRE MR RERGE MR
Directors 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 o HK$0.211 120,000,000 - 120,000,000 (40,000,000) 80,000,000
g% ZZ-MERALHE  6May 2024 0211
“E-MERALAE
ZE-MERARA
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28 - 270,000,000 270,000,000 - 270,000,000
ZZ-RF+-AWA 3 November 2018 085
“E-nft-AmA
E23-\F
+-A=8
120,000,000 270,000,000 390,000,000 (40,000,000) 350,000,000
Employees 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 o HK$0.211 50,000,000 - 50,000,000 - 50,000,000
kg ZI-MERALH  6May 2024 0211
ZE-RERALAE
ZEMERARA
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28 - 280,000,000 280,000,000 - 280,000,000
ZZ-RF+-AMA 3 November 2018 0285
ZE-nE+—AEA
22F-)\F
T-HA=H
50,000,000 280,000,000 330,000,000 - 330,000,000
Consultants (Note a) 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 o HK$0.211 196,000,000 - 196,000,000 - 196,000,000
&R (fia) “E-NERALHE 6 May2024 0211%T
ZE-RERALAE
ZZMERARA
366,000,000 550,000,000 916,000,000 (40,000,000) 876,000,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERTTE 366,000,000 916,000,000 876,000,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.252 HK$0.254
MEFHTEE 025287 0.252% 7t
Weighted average remaining
contractual life 5 years 39 years
METHHBAOFH 5% 39%
Note: Bt -
a. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the a. BERBAEEZ & EAH KRR EE R AR

financing, restructuring and development of the Group.

o
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IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The share options under Scheme 2012 granted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 vested immediately at the
date of grant.

40,000,000 share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil).

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 5
March 2008, 7 May 2008, 7 May 2014 and 4 November
2015 are approximately HK$18,086,000, HK$30,502,000,
HK$42,163,000 and HK$49,194,000 respectively. The fair
value of service received from the Directors and employees
in return for share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. In the opinion of
the Directors, in view of the fair value of the service received
from the consultants could not be estimated reliably by the
Company, the fair value of the service received from the
consultants was measured indirectly by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted to the consultants.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes
model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

42. IR st & ()

RBE-_T-AF+-_A=t—HLFE
RE-Z-—FEREZBRENEH
SpaAllisd

NBE-Z—RE+-_A=+—BILFE
£40,000,00017 BE AL HEVETT{E (2 —RF
+=ZA=+—H8:8)-

RZBEENF=ZARAH —ZZEZEN\EFRHA
tH ZE-—WFRALtABA=_F—RF
T—ANAREZERE AT ATES
5114 /18,086,000 7T * 30,502,000/ 7T *
42,163,000/ 7T }249,194,000/8 70 fE B E
BREBREDNR2ERDES REERE
2R THEZ2ERR D EREN QAT ERE -
EERB ERARQRRTEEAZGEFBEIR
BEER 2 BR S A T{E - 2 WEER 2 AR
BHAFEN2ZEMERENEREZA
FEMESE-

ZERNTFETVRAZXBANA DR —EF
AETEAE -ZRA 2B ARENT

Scheme 2012 —E-CZF58
4 November
2015
—ZE—HE
+—AMmA
Grant date share price HHBHZRE HK$0.2500
0.25007%8 7T
Exercise price T8 E HK$0.2800
0.28007%8 7T
Contractual life AHFH 3 years
3%
Expected volatility TEET R I8 69.85%
Dividend yield % B [ 2 & 0%
Risk-free interest rate 3 b A 2= 0.761%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

Expected volatility for the options granted on 4 November
2015 was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous 3 years.

Expected volatility for the options granted on 5 March 2008,
7 May 2008 and 7 May 2014 was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous b years.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group and in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% or HK$1,500 since
June 2014 in maximum of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of PRC. The retirement scheme contributions,
which are based on a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of the relevant subsidiary’s employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period to which they relate
and represent the amount of contributions payable by the
subsidiary to the scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme operated by
the government of PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions paid and payable to the scheme by
the Group at rate specified in the rules of the scheme.

42.

43.

BRERTE (&)

R-F-—RAFt-ANBRBZEEREZ
FEFHRIE IR AR AR BN BEI[FE
2R SLRIBEESE ©

RZZZENF=ARAHE ZZFEZ/N\FLH
TtER-Z-MFERALBREZERE
Z TR B TR A AR R BN B ESESF
J& 2 R LR R EEE ©

ZEAMRAZEAFHEREEEEY
TATEEE - TERHETAEAEER
RZR B REMGHEL AR

R AKAE R 58

AEBREBMARERERRI R
BIEATERE S ([RERFE]) BES
Bl EERASEZ EENRTE  ffE
FEARESHAEE - AEERRE S S
ShAEE T &AM RE% &S £ 51,500
AR (ZE-—HFRAR) BEZHZR
Gl

ARBRFENME AR BT EBRFLE
MBI R E R IKRE A ET B B R IKET
A TDREBMNBARERENEARTE
METADLE XRBEBEBRAABILE
B R R EMG BRI RS B R
ftb 2 T UK 2 2R FARR o AN SR B o B BT A
22 RIKENGE 2 B TIERREEIE
AR TE Z R o

BRREMAARGZE B S R EAM 2 E RS
“IER BEAKBERER TR T 2R
&SN RN 2 K
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M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not paid the
social security fund for and on behalf of its employees
which expose the Group to the risk of being imposed
the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The social security fund accrued up to 31 December
2016 of approximately HK$40,206,000 (equivalent
to RMB36,221,000) in aggregate, were recorded as
“Trade, bills and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (2015: HK$39,681,000
(equivalent to RMB33,628,000)).

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the relevant government authority
on 26 January 2015 in respect of the settlement of
the unpaid social security fund. Per the agreement,
all outstanding amounts should be repaid before
December 2019. The Directors considered that if the
Group could settle the unpaid social security fund
according to the repayment agreement, no penalty
would be imposed by the relevant government
authority.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not paid the
housing provident fund contributions for and on behalf
of its employees which expose the Group to the risk of
being imposed the penalty by the relevant government
authority. The housing provident fund contributions
accrued up to 31 December 2016 of approximately
HK$5,483,000 (equivalent to RMB4,940,000) in
aggregate, were recorded as “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2015: HK$6,798,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,761,000)).

The Directors are of the opinion that the possibility to
the risk of being imposed the penalty by the relevant
government authority is remote.
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(a)

ARIAEE

R-ZT—-XE+-A=1+—H K
EEHAARREZEREEHZ S
RES HWLAEEEZHABK
RNHEFPEUNSI R AR - BE_F
—RNFE+ZA=ZFT—AZETHER
E& A H4 540,206,000/ 7T (HHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

The Company had recognised the provision in relation
to the litigations of approximately RMB13,812,000
(2015: RMB10,611,000) under “Trade, bill and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at 31 December 2016. On the basis of

internal legal advice from the Group that it is not

probable that these claims would result in an out flow

of economic benefits exceeding the provisions made by

the Group. Details are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

In June 2016, a contractor filed its writ to
Jiangxi Province Nanchang County People’s
Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed
payment of contracting services. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued
of approximately RMB313,000 in aggregate,
were recognised under “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In August 2016, a supplier filed its writ to Gaoyou
City People’s Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
for the failed payment of the sale of cable. At
the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the
principal payment and the relevant interests
accrued of approximately RMB392,000 in
aggregate, were recognised under “Trade,
bills and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

44.

(c)

FRRIAEE (F)

ARRER-_TF—R"F+_A=1+—
Az aMBEARiRNz 85 &
iR R H A AN TR | BER R SRRAME
2 BELH ANR®13,812,0007T (=&
—hF: AR¥10,611,0007T) © B
AEEZAERER ZFRET
RAIBEEBUSEN R & FRHBBA AR
SEERZBE - FBEEINWT

() MZT-—REXA —R25ER
FIE M ERARAREH
LT REM A & KR
BRIER S - RIE R - %
DR B AKERZEN
AR REREFE AR
#) R/ AR H313,0007T - B4R
EBUBRABRATES R&
R H A A FRIR ] ABR -

() REB—NENA R
I B T AR B 1R M 6 5T
PR B oK X 3 0 T
SESR S LN
BR BHAEEZENALN
HRIAMEETF 8 A 0B A
R#392,00070  EREA
BRBRI[E 5 BREEf
R BOB ) AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

In September 2015, a contractor filed its
writ to Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failed payment of provided
vessel decoration services. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB4,636,000 in aggregate,
were recognised under “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In November 2015, a supplier filed its writ to
Jiujiang Arbitration Commission against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failed payment of provided
gas services. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding
payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB3,422,000 in aggregate, were recognised
under “Trade, bills and other payables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In November 2015, a contractor filed its writ to
Shanghai Jinshan District People’s Court against
Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failed payment of
provided vessel decoration services. At the end
of the reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued
of approximately RMB762,000 in aggregate,
were recognised under “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(Continued)

(vi) In December 2014, a contractor filed its
writ to Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failed payment of provided
vessel decoration services. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB4,287,000 in aggregate,
were recognised under “Trade, bills and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

On 3 December 2015, Merge Limited and other
shareholders of Zhejiang Ocean as counter guarantors
(collectively referred to the “Counter Guarantor”)
entered into the counter guarantee agreement with
Zhoushan Marine Comprehensive Development
and Investment Co., Ltd* (1L G F4RA X
ZEHMRAT) (the “Guarantor”), pursuant to which
the Counter Guarantors shall, in proportion to their
respective shareholding in Zhejiang Ocean and upon
demand of the Guarantor, indemnify the Guarantor
for all liabilities and expenses which may be incurred
by the Guarantor under any guarantee given or to
be given by the Guarantor in favour of Zhejiang
Ocean during the period from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2020 in respect of loan agreements
and asset securitization agreements entered into
by Zhejiang Ocean (the “Guarantee”), up to an
aggregate amount of RMB900,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,107,000,000), together with
any interests, penalty, compensation and related fees
and expenses which may be payable by the Guarantor
under the Guarantee. Accordingly, the maximum
amount which Merge Limited shall indemnify the
Guarantor is 20% of the aforesaid aggregate amount,
being RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$221,400,000).

44.

FRRIAEE (F)

(c) (#&)

(d)

(Vi) RZZE—MFE+_A —E58
R E RS EE IR ST ET
PR M B R S A M 2 B PR 75
RIEMH LM - RIME AR - 7%5F
ALK BRAREE ZENAR
R RAREER T EE HL
A AR B4 287 0007T © B RER
B BRABRATE S B
REMERKIE] AR

RZE—hFE+-_A=0 BA4ER
RARAIEFZEMBRE (1A
RERT HBAIRERE])EA
WEFRERBIRERGR AR ([
WAL RERWGZ B RIE
RABREBEZESARNIIEF 25
BB RERE B BHERA
AR —hF—HA—HEZZZ
TE+-_A=+—BHMEMNTE
FRIU 2 BERBREAEERSLR
FBTFHBLTFUNTEEAESR
AZEARER(TER] BELES
A A R #900,000,0007T (8% 7 49
1,107,000,000/& 7T.) ) M A & 2= 4 /Y
—1BERAY  ERERARER
TR BEAS AT MFIE SR B
18 0% 2 F BRI E IR 75 B R
E-Ht BEBRAREMERA
EHz REzGReEA LB
220% + Bl A R #180,000,0007T (48
B 1 #9221,400,000/8 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of the counter-guarantee are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 December 2015.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group has no other material contingent liabilities at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

44, RARBAREE (&)

BRARERZFBIRENRART ARG
—T-AFt+=-A=HZ2Af-

B EXFRBEEN EERAAEEN T
—RE+-A=+—BAR-"E—FHFE+—
A=t—BUYEAMEMERIREE-

45, KEHERIE
AEBEEAEBBAA

RBEMR AEECBEFPATHZAR

REBENKERNT

payments:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —F R 96 -

The property held has committed tenants for next one year
(2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45.

(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments payable
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

REMERRE (F)

AEBEEREEA (H)
K&K AEEE TIARREN %
2 FE G # T TR T BRI S A
R AR B R 2RI

2016 2015

—EB-AF —

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

Within one year —FR 4,378 6,188
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZERF

(BIEEEMS) 697 4,499

5,075 10,687

Operating lease payments represent rental payables by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for an average term of 2 years (2015: 2
years).

REHENREAREREETHAE
¥rfMNzET EHLERmESRFHE2
FHP(ZZE—RF 2F)FE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions and balances with related parties during the

year as follows:

(@) Amounts due to related parties

BREAT

46. ERABA LR S

BRREGAMHRAREMIDABEE &K
SERNFRRAEBALZERRS NG

(@ ENEEBALRER

2016 2015
—E—-REF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Jiangxi Haoli Fanya Energy Development — JT78 2 F'Z 2 hEJR % R
Co., Ltd. (“Haoli Energy”) (Note i) BRAR ([EFgER])
(Htazi) - 3,711
Mr. Wu Ge (“Mr Wu") (Note ii) REEE([REE])
(Htatii)
— advanced loan —BNER 25 27
— consideration payable for the — Uk EE N T2 m R
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinfu and ZREREFHE
accrued salaries 400 425
425 4,163
(b) Amounts due to directors (b) ENESFE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mr. Li Ming (“Mr. Li") (Note i) RS A ([25E4E])
(Bt aiii ) 1,046 47
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong (“Mr. Zhang”) (Note iv) sk TR 54 ([RFE£E )
(Htaziv) 5 50
Mr. Wang San Long (“Mr. Wang”) (Note vi) ST =854 ([JE%E])
(Kiatvi)
— consideration payable for the —FhUK BB T & 8 m
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinfu and ZREREFH2
accrued salaries 470 500
1,521 597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B HMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

46. BERABEA LR 5 (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Transactions with related parties (c) HEREBALZRES
2016 2015
—E—-REF —ET-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses and guarantee fee paid =11 REN ZRER 2 A 25
and payable to Haoli Energy (Note i) S RERE (KETi) - 881
Interest expenses paid and payable to B REMELEZFERAY
Mr. Wang (Note vi) (Kazvi) - 85
- 966

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The legal representative of Haoli Energy is Mr. Zhang. Mr.
Zhang is the executive director and chief executive officer of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
amount due to Haoli Energy is unsecured, interest-bearing at
14.4% per annum and repayable on demand.

Mr. Wu is the senior management of the Group. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Li, is the executive director of the Company, the amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Li has provided a personal guarantee in favor of the
Group to guarantee a facility of RMB525,000,000 (2015:
RMB170,000,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Mr. Li also had provided a personal-guarantee to secure the
payment obligations of the borrowings of RMB200,000,000
(2015: RMB200,000,000) from one of the shareholders of the
Group’s associate, Zhejiang Ocean during the year ended 31
December 2016.

BsE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

EFIREIRZZARR BRI L - RIELBAAF]
ZHTEERTTHBE -REE-F—0F 1=
A=+—HILFE T ZFIGERZ KBTI
O IRFFE14.4%51 8 RALRBRIERE

RAELRAEEZ GREEE - ZHNBERELR
B RBRBESNEE

FAERARBIZHITEF LKA RBELIT
B ERBIEELEE

REE-_F—NFE+_A=1+—HIFE F5%
FEUREEBZw AEEEAERLIERP
B2 $R171% 1.2 g & A K #525,000,0007T ( =
T—AF: ARK170,000,0005T) °

REBEE-FE—NE+_A=+—HILEEZ"
FARENBEREZE—SALT (BAEEH
HE NI EFZHP —ERE)EHXA
K #200,000,000T (ZE—HF AR
200,000,0007T ) 2 & (EHRHE ELA B LR

PBETEEBRAT F{ 2016

275



276

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Transactions with related parties

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Mr. Zhang is the executive director of the Company, the amount
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

For the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Success Capture Limited, Pacific Greatest Limited, a company
incorporated on the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
(the “Vendor”) is held as to 22% by Mr. Zhang.

(v) Mr. Zhang has provided a personal guarantee in favour of
the Group to guarantee a facility of RMB430,000,000 (2015:
Nil) granted by banks in the PRC during the year ended 31
December 2016.

(vi) Mr. Wang is the executive director of the Company. The
balances of amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Wang also had provided a personal-guarantee in favor of
the Group to guarantee a facility of RMB158,015,000 (2015:
RMBZ277,000,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The key management of the Group comprises
all Directors and chief executives, detail of their
remuneration are disclosed in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. The remuneration
of Directors and chief executives recommended by
the remuneration committee and with reference to the
market trends.

The Directors are of the view that the terms of
the above related party transactions are fair and
reasonable, based on normal commercial terms where
no charge over the assets of the Group is created in
respect of the above transactions.
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S Success Capture LimitedZ 2 352
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v) REE-F-ANFT-A=+—HILF
B RAELBUAREBBZ mm AR HE
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B#430,000,0007T ( =F —H4F  fE) °

i) EEERARAZHITEE FHHE
PRI B RARESIEE -
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B IAENREUREBEZ s AIEH
TEA ERAIER B B2 RITIRA 2 HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

47. KPRl 2 MR R R R

2016 2015
—EB—-RE —E-—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz WE R - -
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE 433,770 707,391
Restricted cash SR IR & 94,000 -
527,770 707,391
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables E fth fE Y F008 - 16
Loan to a subsidiary REF—HEHEARTZER (b 95,258 273,474
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE =] - 56,948
Investments held for trading BEEBEZIRE 2,177 1,952
Bank balances and cash RITEH LIRS 300 3,904
97,735 336,294
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables E fth fE S 5008 30,612 21,740
Amount due to a director B —REEHKIE (a) 1,000 -
Contingent consideration ARE 317,628 -
Convertible bonds payable FEAT AT (B 256,032 248,609
605,272 270,349
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) RBEEFE(BEEFEHE)
ASSETS (507,537) 65,945
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERRDAR
LIABILITIES 20,233 773,336
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IRE B RRMUSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

47. AP El 2 MR R R R HE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(CONTINUED)
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5t FET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARE - 315,740
Financial guarantee IS YEIR 672,460 190,720
Convertible bonds payable JEA Al A R B 5 92,847 45,123
765,307 551,583
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (BEFE EEFE (745,074) 221,753
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFEE
Share capital % 7R 600,138 597,899
Reserves i (1,345,212) (376,146)
(745,074) 221,753

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2017 and consigned on its behalf by:

LI Ming
Z= 5
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE I FEEIRMYEE

T XE+ZAS+—HILER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & —

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

47. 7

™

B Z BRI R K

Notes: it st -
(a)  Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (a) B —BEFREELF 2B RBZENKE
demand. &Ee
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, a loan of approximately b)) REE=ZZFT-—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE"
HK$95,258,000 (equivalent to HK$60,000,000 and RMB31,764,000) R & [FT & R IR T B 3K #995,258,000/% 7T
(2015: HK$273,474,000 (equivalent to HK$153,114,000 and (#8 & 7%60,000,000/% 7T 1 A £ #31,764,000
RMB102,000,000)) was granted to Jiangxi Shipbuilding by the ) (ZZF— A 273,474,000/ ¢ (15 &R
Company, in which the amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 7.5% 153,114,0007% 7T 11 A R #102,000,0005T ) ) °
per annum and repayable within one year. ZEARBERIF BFFEI 5% B RAR—
FREE -
(c) Movements in the Company’s reserves (c) ARrIfFBEZE
Share Convertible
Share Contributed option bonds  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
AERRES
R RE ARG BRERE fikfE B4yl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FHEL FHL THL FHT FHT
(Note 35)
(Kizt35)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1%¥—A—-H 875,349 3,368,411 85,856 156,621 (4,724,381) (238,144)
Loss for the year, representing total ~~ AEEE1E
comprehensive expenses for the year (Bl R2EFA X ) - - - - (796,632) (796,632)
Recognition of equity component of
convertible bonds payable - - - 20,518 - 20,518
Issuance of shares upon REBATHREFVIE
conversion of CBVI BIIRG 530,707 - - (145,278) - 385,429
Issuance of shares upon B AR EFVIE
conversion of CBVII BITR 47,124 - - (20,518) - 26,606
Issuance of shares for the acquisition %477 AR 17 LA Y 5 B B A
of subsidiaries 53,198 - - - - 53,198
Issuance of shares for settlement BITRIDAEEER
of loans 123,685 - - - - 123,685
Recognition of equity-settled BRUBREEERD 2
share-based payments B - - 49,194 - - 49,194
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-RF+ZA=1+—H 1,630,063 3,368,411 135,050 11,343 (5,521,013) (376,146)
Loss for the year, representing total ~~ AEEE1E
comprehensive expenses (FER2ERZLE)
for the year - - - - (975,853) (975,853)
Issuance of shares upon REREETERETRG
exercise of share options 11,580 - (5,140) - - 6,440
Issuance of shares upon RERARRERIXE
conversion of CBIX BTG 347 - - - - 347
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1+-A 1,641,990 3,368,411 129,910 11,343 (6,496,866)  (1,345,212)
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M BEMIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — T — "F+-_A=Z+—BILtFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KR T 2 M B A 18
THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RBMERAR ALARFEEMEEREN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: M ARFFEIBEMT
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
AL/
KWEAREH BELHLY EfRA/2RELR RRAFERERRER LA FREREREREZILA TERH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE “E-Rf “E-RE ZE-nf
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei B B 53 i B B 53
% % % % % % % %
INPAX Technology Limited British Virgin Islands* 50,000 ordinary shares of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
EEROEE USD1 each RERR
50,000R B RABIET
ZERR
Merge Limited Hong Kong 300,000,000 ordinary 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Trading and investment
FEERLH B shares of HK$1 each holding
300,000 000 5 R EE BHRBERR
1Bz &8k
China Ocean Shipbuilding British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERIES” USDI each RERR
\RERERET
2ERk
China Ocean Natural Gas British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERLHE" USD1 each RERR
IREREEIET
ZEER
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Senvices Limited E¥ HKS$1 each BEXH
IREREEIET
2ERR
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited i HKS1 each and sale agent for
FAMH (B%)ERAR IRERAELET shipbuilding
2ERR RERRRERHERR
China Ocean (LNG) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
B HK$1 each EELK
1hEREEIET
ZEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #{Z =T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRBz B A AFFE (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RBEHR BAREELEEZEN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: WEBARFBEWT: (&)
(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/
hWEAREE BExBHY BARA/ERER KRRfEHERER LA EEEFBRERZLA TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-1% ZE-AE —E-1%
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B B# 53 E# B HE 553
% % % % % % % %
Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union PRC** USD 59,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing metal
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd e registered capital vessel, vessel ancillary
IEINBAERERERAR 59,000,000£ 7T products and reparation
EfsRER of vessels
RECEMM B
REERUR
EEhH
Jivjiang Jinfu Equipment PRC* RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Metal structure
Manufacturing Company Limited hE registered capital and component
AISREBEEERAT A 8300000007 manufacturing
BHEMAR SERERBHRE
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC* RMB 300,000,000 paid-up, - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Provision of financial
Financial Leasing Company Limited ~ R ** registered capital leasing, acquisition and
(Formerly known as China Ocean AKH300,000,0007 sale and lease back
Shipbuilding (Shenzhen) Financial EERaig-v of fixed assets and
Leasing Company Limited) advisory services, and
PEET (R REREARAT business factoring in the
(iR Eh (R RERS PRC
ARAR) RyERERERS
WENREER
HREEEER
BRRE AR
*HRE
Jiangxi Jincao New Energy PRC RMB3,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Development of new
Development Company Limited TE registered capital energy technology and
IR S RERERAF AR 3,000,007 energy conservation
EfamER facilties
BRIERRMR
LER
Briliant Plus Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands™ 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
ARRAHE" USDI each REER
1REREEIZT
ZEBR
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRBz B A S (&)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

RBEHR BARREREEARFEH
B RBRFEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/
HWEAREH BExHny BiRE/ERER ARAFBRERER LA AEBFBRERZLA TEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-1% ZE-RE 0%
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B HE 553 B i B# %
% % % % % % % %
Power On Investment Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
ERREAES USDI each RERR
IRERAEIETZ
B
China Ocean Prosperity Logistic Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Import and export
Limited B HKS1 each electronic devices
IREREEISTL EFREELD
LR
China Ocean Materials Trading PRC RMB65,000,000 paid-up - 55 - 100 - 75 - 100 Manufacturing and sales
(Shenzhen) Company Limited H registered capital and (Note ¢) of intelligent car parking
RMB35,000,000 unpaid (Wite) in the PRC
registered capital RAEZER
AR #65,000,0007C HERHBERE
EAHMERR
B 35,000,000
AEMER
Power On Heavy Lift 1071 Limited Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
SRmNe USD1 each RERR
IRERAEBIET,
LAk
Power On Heavy Lift 1072 Limited Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
SRREE USDI each RERR
\hEREEIETZ
EAR
Success Capture Limited British Virgin Islands * 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
RERIES USDI for consistency REER
each
10000REREEIET
ZEBR
Shandong Ruitong (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Parking Management Senvices i HKS$1 each RERR
Company Limited 10,000R B REELET
WERE (5% FEER 2ERk
RBERAR
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Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:
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48. XA 2B A RS (&)

RBEHR BARREREEARFERN
MEARFENT: (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/
hWEAREE BExBHY BARA/ERER KRRfEHERER LA EEEFBRERZLA TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-1% ZE-AE —E-1%
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B B B# 53 E# B HE 553
% % % % % % % %

Shenzhen China Ocean Saige PRC RMB32,500,000 unpaid - 55.25% - - - 55.25% - - Investment and
Intelligent Parking Development T registered capital management of
Company Limited (Note 2) AR 3250000070 intelligent car parking

AT ERREERERRERAT AHRER in the PRC
(Kizta) RPERER

ERERRES

Liaochen Dereton Industrial PRC** 1USD3,500,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Development Co. Ltd e registered capital RARR

PEEREERERERLA 3500,000£ 7

G

Shandong Dereton Automotive PRC** RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Designing, manufacturing
Parking Equipment Co. Ltd RE registered capital and and installation of

URRBEEREERAA RMB20,000,000 unpaid inteligent automotive

registered capital parking equipment in

A5 30,000,000 the PRC
BHRMARR ReBRG HER
AR 20,000,000 RERRAERER
AEHMER

Shenzhen Shanling Automotive PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Operating of “Internet of
Electronic Technology Co. Ltd ik registered capital Vehicles" and designing

MR EETREERAR AR5,000,0007T and manufacturing of

EgamER electronic automotive
devices in the PRC
RAEFERBELR
FRBEAE
ERE]

Jiangxi Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60  Investment and
Management Service Co. Ltd T registered capital and management of car

TEREHEEREERARARA RMB5,000,000 unpaid parks

registered capital REREERES
AR #5,0000007

BEHEMARR

AR #5,000,0007C

Fafax
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRBz B A S (&)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RBEHR BARREREEARFEH
B RBRFEWT : (&)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/
HWEAREH BExHny BiRE/ERER ARAFBRERER LA AEBFBRERZLA TEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-1% ZE-RE —E-nf
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B HE 553 B i B# %
% % % % % % % %
Shandong Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB1,000,000 paid-up - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60 Investment and
Industry Co. Ltd PE registered capital management of car
WRZHHBPEEZARAR AR%1,0000007T parks
ESHREAL REREREES
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.1 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd i registered capital services
AR E100,0007T FHRER RS
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.2 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd h registered capital senvices
AR 1000007 FHRERRE
AHRER
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC* RMB100,000,000 paid-up - 100 - - - 100 - - Investment holding
Company Limited (Note a) PE registered capital REER
PEEL (M) BRAR (Hia) AR 100,000,0007C
ESHREAL
Jiangxi China Ocean Industry PRC RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - - - 100 - - Inactive
Company Limited (Note a) f registered capital TEER
IRPEEIARLA (Mita) AR 8100,000,0007T
AEMEAR
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THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

48. XA 2B A RS (&)

RBEHR BARREREEARFERN
MEARFENT: (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/
hWEAREE BExBHY BARA/ERER KRRfEHERER LA EEEFBRERZLA TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-1% ZE-AE —E-1%
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B B B# 53 E# B HE 553
% % % % % % % %
Xian China Ocean Huafu Parking PE RMB50,000,000 unpaid - 100 - - - 100 - - Inactive
Management Company Limited registered capital TEEK
(Note a) AR 50,000,007
BRTEEEREER AEHER
BRAA (Hrita)
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuandongli PE RMB34,500,000 unpaid - 69 - - - 69 - - Inactive
Communication Technology registered capital TEEK
Company Limited (Note ) AR 3450000070
RTRETHNBER AEHER
BRAA (Hrita)
Shenzhen Yuandongli Technology PE RMB500,000 paid up - 100 - - - 100 - - Invention of software and
Company Limited registered capital information technology
AT NREERAT AR H500,0007T senvices, selling
EfGRER software
FERHR
BRRERE
HERH
* The companies are engaged in investment holding and have no * ZENAWEREER WEBETFEEZEEM
specific principal place of operation. e
i The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned o ZERNALINEBERZEZ M
enterprises.
# Jinjiang Jinfu is controlled by the Company through contracted # VI EMAAR NGB RE K HE 7
agreements.
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48.

49.

50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2016.

b) The shareholding has been decreased from 100% to 55%. Details of
the disposal has been disclosed in Note 50.

c) The Group is able to exercise control over China Ocean Materials
Trading because it appointed three out of four directors of China Ocean
Materials Trading.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at 31
December 2016 and 2015 or at any time during both years.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue
of approximately HK$16,386,000 was recognised by the
intelligent car parking and automotive device business
which represented the fair value of 12 properties located in
Shandong Province and Shanxi Province at the settlement
date in exchange for the intelligent car parking structure.
The properties were recorded as investment properties
as disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 June 2016, the non-controlling shareholders acquired
20% paid-up registered capital in China Ocean Materials
Trading with the cash consideration of HK$11,100,000
(RMB10,000,000), the Group’s equity interests in China
Ocean Materials Trading was diluted from 100% to 80%.
The difference between the cash consideration received and
the carrying value of net assets deemed disposed of in an
equity transaction with non-controlling interest resulted from
the change in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$457,000 was recognised
in equity as other reserve and an increase of approximately
HK$10,643,000 was recognised in the non-controlling
interests.
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50. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

51.

52.

(CONTINUED)

On 13 December 2016, the non-controlling interests
shareholders further acquired 25% paid-up registered capital
in China Ocean Materials Trading with the cash consideration
of HK$38,849,000 (RMB35,000,000), the Group’s equity
interests in China Ocean Materials Trading was further
diluted from 80% to 55%. The different between the cash
consideration received and the carrying value of net assets
deemed disposed of in an equity transaction with non-
controlling interest resulted from the change in the Group's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control over the subsidiary amounting to approximately
HK$4,706,000 was recognised in equity as other reserve
and an increase of approximately HK$34,143,000 was
recognised in the non-controlling interests.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@) Subsequent to the reporting period, the Subscriber
of the CBIX had exercised the conversion option
to convert the principal amount aggregated of
HK$12,000,000 in consideration for conversion of
58,160,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

(b) On 14 March 2017, the shareholders of the Company
has passed an ordinary resolution at a special general
meeting to approve the Acquisition Agreement (as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 24
February 2017) in connection with the proposed
acquisition of the entire registered capital of Nantong
Huakai Heavy Industry Company Limited. Details of
the acquisition has been disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 24 February 2017.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2016, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2015: Nil).

50. RIEHE—FEHE2E (&)

51.

52.

R-ZB-RFT-A+=B FEkEx
PR3 — AT £ ((E38,849,000/& 7T ( A
R #35,000,0007T ) W iE /B E 2 25% B
BAEMER AEERTEME 2 gL
— 2 HBO%EEEE55%  ANEE N — B
NEIFfAEEED 2 (TESHREY
i 88 2 B 2 4% 4 ) B R B SR PR AR A 2 A AR
RpPEYHRRERBIFEHEEEF
1B AR {E 2 fA] /) Z= %R 494,706,000/ TTE R
BETELSEMEERER L CMAIFE
P& 4 25 18 AN 4934,143,0007% T

ERHEEE

(a) REFRHE TBRBREFXZRE
ABTTHEERENEBRASBE
12,000,000/ 7T 2 Al A AR (& 5 - LA
B R 7)58,160,0000% & 3/ A%

(b) RZZE—+HF=A+HMHE KRAK
RRBRFRIAS RB— BT @R
@A UHERBERKERBEL
BETAERAR 2 EEMER 2 WEH
#(EERARTAHA-_T—tF
“A-tTHBZAER)  KREEEZ
HBERARREHR T —1tF—
AZTMAZEHARKE-

Hﬁ/%\
R-IZE-RFUERNSERRERET

ARBE BRI - B W& 2R IR E
ERKETABRE (ZF—0F 8)-
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Financial Summary

FEEE
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE | Z2—8F ZT—WNF =T—=F T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET FET FET
RESULTS ¥E
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEEE (359,226) (500,813) (633,177) (337,440) (344,101)
At 31 December
Rt+t=ZB=+—-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE | ZF—aF ZT-mF T-=F ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FiET FiET FEL FEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERER
TOTAL ASSETS BEMHE 2,679,607 2,321,824 1,859,744 1,653,894 2,188,314
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEBS (3,284,359) | (2,708,596)  (2,638,022)  (2,691,096)  (2,911,388)
NET LIABILITIES BEFH (604,752) (386,772) (778,278)  (1,037,202) (723,074)
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